STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
/ TUESDAY, OCTOBER 7T, 2014 10:00 A.M.
DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA
AGENDA
MARSHALL MCBRIDE BILL MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
| LANCE GILMAN
" VICE-CHAIRMAN
BILL SJOVANGEN | VANESSA STEPHENS

- COMMISSIONER o CLERK-TREASURER

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise,

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for October 7,2014

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for September 2, 2014,
CONSENT AGENDA

(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of

5. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 08/29/14 for $149,450.58 and $74,460.99.
Accounts Payable date 9/ 19/14 for $1,508,565.41 and $9,765.33.

6. For possible action approval of Business License First Readings ~

a. PEPS EQUIPMENT - Contractor / 1953 N Warren Road ~ San Jacinto, CA (equipment

rental)
'b. ZULILY, INC. - General / 3200 USA Parkway (ecommerce) TRI

¢. T & T ELECTRIC, INC. - Contractor / PO Box 7377 ~ Reno (electrical contractor)

d. ARH ARCHAEOLOGY - Home Business / PO Box 784 ~ Virginia City (archaeological
consultant)

1




HARRIS INDUSTRIAL GASES - General / 236 East Sydney (welding equip supply) TRI

LEE’S PEST CONTROL ~ Contractor / 21 Van Fleet Drive ~ Yerington (pest control)

AMERICAN EQUIPMENT, INC. - Contractor / 1315 Greg Street #114 ~ Sparks {crane

manufacturer)

PROFICIENT HEATING & AIR - Contractor / 385 Freeport Blvd. #9 ~ Sparks (hvac

ontractor)

SUNTEC CONCRETE, INC. ~ Contractor / 2221 West Shangri La Road ~ Phoenix, AZ

(concrete cont.)

- WOODSTOVE DISTRIBUTORS - Contractor / 881 Tahoe Blvd ~ Incline Village (fireplace
sales/install)

k. WWCLICENSE, LLC - General / One Verizon Way ~ Basking Ridge, NJ

= @

=
.

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM BOARD

7.

DISCISSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Amend the Agreement for the Sale of Untreated Water
between Comstock Mining, Incorporated and Storey County Water and Sewer System

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

8.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve bid award in the amount of $880,372 for Public

Works Project No. ST-2014-323 - Five Mile and Divide Reservoir Rehabilitation

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of resolution 14-410 Expressing interest by
Storey County in obtaining the delivery of effluent generated by the Truckee meadows
Wastewater Treatment Facility for use at the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center in Storey County and
requesting the City of Reno and the City of Sparks to consider making avaijlable the effluent to
be transported in a pipeline to Storey County

DISCUSSION (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
BOARD COMMENT (No Action ~ No Public Comment)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Authorize the County Manager, Sheriff and District
Attorney to enter into a contract with the Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA) for the housing of tribal
inmates.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve the first reading of ordinance 14-259 Amending
Storey County Code section 3.12.012 updating the plan of projects for the proceeds of the
infrastructure tax, and providing for other property related matters. .

DISCUSSION (No Action): Retired Senior Volunteer Program (RSVP) Update on activities in
Storey County

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Proclaim October 5-11, 2014 as Fire Prevention Week in
Storey County




COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
16. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:
a. INTELLISOURCE, LLC - General / 3200 USA Parkway (HR for Zulily) TRI
b. AMERICAN EAGLE ELECTRIC, INC. - Contractor / 1055 Industrial Way #6 ~ Sparks
(Elect Cont)

¢. JOHNCO ENTERPRISES - Contractor / 2875 N Escondido Court ~ Reno (Contractor)

d. FRAZIER MASONRY CORP - Contractor / 747 East Ave 1.8 ~ Lancaster, CA (Contractor)
COMSTOCK PAINTING & HANDYMAN - Contractor / 4450 Lousetown ~ VCH
(Contractor)

TCR CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Contractor / 3976 Kentwood Court ~ Reno (Contractor)
ARDAGH METAL PACKAGING USA, INC. - General / 900 Waltham Way (can mfg) TRI
A-Z WELDING & FABRICATION, LLC - General / 1215 Alexandria (welding fab) TRI
ROSSCO ENT., dba AP STAINLESS MFG - General / 1215 Alexandria (manufacturing) TRI

g

oo e

17. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
18. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

* Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

* Agendaitems must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (7 75) 847-0969.

* Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

* Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be Hmited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

» Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440,

In accordance with Federal law and US. Department of agriculture policy, this institution is
prohibited from discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability
(Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To file a complaint of discrimination write to USDA,
Director, Office of civil rights, 1400 Independence avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call
(800) 795-3272 (voice) or 202-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and
lender. The TTY, VCO voice carry over) or HCO hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868; voice
only 800-326-6868. Check the customer Guide section of your telephone book under Services for
Individuals with a Hearing or Speech Disability.




CERTIFICATION OF POSTING

I, Vanessa Stephens, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before October Z, 2014; Virginia
City Post Office, Storey County Courthouse, Virginia City Fire Department, Virginia City Highlands
Fire Department and Lockwood Fire Department.

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 2, 2014 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of minutes for September 2, 2014

2. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.
3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 775 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Minutes are attached.
5. Supporting materials: Attached.

6. Fiscal impact: N/A

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
Céunty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[ Approved

] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied

Continued

) ——
el el

Agenda Item No. 4




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 2N, 2014 9:15 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE BILL MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
BILL SJOVANGEN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman Gilman, Commissioner Sjovangen, County Manager
Pat Whitten, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Senior Planner/Administrative Office Austin Osborne,
Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, Clerk/Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, District Attorney Bill Maddox,
Special Counsel Robert Morris, Community Services Director Cherie Nevin, Deputy District
Attorney Anne Langer, Planner Dessic Redmond and Fire Chief Gary Hames.

1. CALL TO ORDER CLOSED SESSION MEETING AT 9:15 A.M. pursuant to NRS 288.220 for
the purpose of conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor
negotiations between Storey County (Employer) and the Storey County Sheriff’s Office
Employees’ Association/Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3 (Union).

The closed session was called to order at 9:15a.m.; adjourned at 9:55a.m.

2. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.
The meeting was called to order by the Chair at 10:01 a.m.

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for September 2, 2014
Kay Dean, Virginia City Highlands: Asked that item 10 be removed from the Consent Agenda.
Motion: Approve agenda for September 2, 2014, with the exception of item 10. Action: Approve

Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)




5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of minutes for August 19, 2014

Motion: Approve minutes for August 19, 2014 Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen
Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration of approval of Six Mile Canyon Drainage
Improvement Grant Professional Engineering Service Agreement with Farr West Engineering
(Originally listed as item 10 under the Consent Agenda.)

Grants and Emergency Management Coordinator, Cherie Nevin: In 2009 Storey County submitted
a grant application through the Nevada Division of Emergency Management for FEMA pre-disaster
mitigation funding. We worked all that time to get the environmental studies and paperwork done
and finally received the grant in June of this year. We sought two different professional service
agreements; one from a firm in Minden and the other one that we have here from Far West. The total
cost of this agreement is in the grant award which is for approximately $1.5 million. We do have a
match, but these engineering costs are included as a line item in the grant.

Kay Dean, Virginia City Highlands: She looked at the contract and thinks Storey County might pay
more than the amount designated.

Lucas Tipton, Far West Engineering: The contract amount for this project is $280K and includes
various engineering and surveying tasks as well as construction management. The fees are less than
the budget for this project.

Chairman McBride noted that when a project goes for this length of time, it is routine to have it on
the consent agenda when it comes to fruition like this. '

Motion: Approve Six Mile Canyon Drainage Improvement Grant Professional Engineering Service
Agreement with Farr West Engineering Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen
Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vete: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

CONSENT AGENDA

6. For possible approval Assessor’s recommended corrections for APN 003-002-12 to tax roll for
2014/2015 tax year.

7. Por possible action approval of Assessor’s recommended corrections for APN 003-045-21 to the
2014/2014 tax roll for partial property tax abatements pursuant to NRS 3614722 through
361.4724

8. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 08/15/14 for $339,856.38. Accounts Payable
date for 8/22/14 for $493,792.68 and $4,019.70.

9. For possible action approval of National Preparedness Month Proclamation




10. For possible action consideration of approval of Six Mile Canyon Drainage Improvement Grant
Professional Engineering Service Agreement with Farr West Engineering (Heard and acted upon
under regular agendn.)

11. For possible action approval of Business License First Readings -

a. AGGREGATE RESOURCE DRILLING, LLC - Contractor / 4080 Commercial Ave ~
Springtield, OR (rock driller)

b. BW CABINETS & DOORS, INC. - Contractor / 52 Miles Road ~ Carson City (cabinet
sales/installer)

¢. PAUL BROOKS GENERAL CONTRACTOR -~ Contractor / 199 East Winnie Lane ~ Carson

| City, NV (Contractor)

d. TFG CONSULTING, LLC - General / 1273 Lariat Court ~ Minden (Consultant)

e. WINDAK, INC. - Contractor / 1254 26th Street ~ Hickory, NC (servicing equipment in
County)

f. DAVE'SHANDYMAN SERVICES - General / 1647 Clover Leaf Drive ~ Sparks (Handyman)

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

Motion: Approve consent agenda Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded
by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

12, DISCUSSION (No Action): Dave Szabo, VFW Commander to make presentation to SCSO and
SCFD

Dave Szabo, VFW Post 8071 Virginia City: VFW Meetings are the first Saturday of every month at
the Washoe Club at 1pm. All are welcome. This is a national program that recognizes first
responders; We are at the post level. He went on to present plaques and read letters of
commendation to Sgt. Melanie Keener, Paramedic/ Firefighters Benjamin Brown, and Jeffrey Nevin,

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Variance 2014-014. By Mark Stevens in the Virginia City
Highlands 1 Acre Estates located at 2010 Silverado Road, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 003-081-
38). A request for Variance for a reduced rear-yard setback of 20 feet from the required 40 feet
rear-yard setback for the placement of a proposed single-family residence. Also, the Applicant
requests a Variance for the allowance of a detached accessory building to be closer than 50% of
the depth of the lot from the front property line.

Planner Dessie Redmond: Stated that Mark Stevens is unable to be present today. She explained
the purpose of the variance and added that all the details are in the staff report.

6.1.1 That there are special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including the
configuration of the subject property. Therefore, the strict application of the zoning ordinance
deprives the subject property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity or under
identical zone classification; and

6.1.2 That the granting of the Variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial
property rights of the property owner; and




6.1.3 That the granting of the Variance will not, under the circumstances of the particular case,
adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons residing or working in the
neighborhood of the subject property and will not materially detrimental to the public welfare or
materially injurious to property or improvements in the neighborhood of the subject property; and

6.1.4 The proposed Variance is in compliance with all Federal, Nevada State, and Storey County
regulations, and;

6.1.5 The proposed Variance is in compliance with Storey County Code 17.03.140 Variances, 17.12.48
Accessory Buildings and 17.40 Estates when all Conditions of Approval are met; and

6.1.6 The proposed Variance is in compliance with and supports the goals, objectives and
recommendations of the Storey County Master Plan.

Motion: Approve Variance 2014-014. By Mark Stevens in the Virginia City Highlands 1 Acre Estates
located at 2010 Silverado Road, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 003-081-38), Action: Approve Moved
by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE  ACTION:  The applicant, Comstock Mining LLC, requests
amendments to existing Special Use Permit No. 2000-222-A-3 to modify and expand applicable
land area and allowable uses. The amendments apply to mining, processing, mine definition,
exploration, and ancillary uses on the subject land in American Flat and Gold Hill. The location
of the land subject to this SUP request is located approximately in Township 16 North, Range 20
East, Sections 1 and 12; and Township 16 North, Range 21 East, Sections 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9
(MDB&M).

Senior Planner/Administrative Officer Austin Osborne: This is a comprehensive review and
amendment of a SUP from 2000. Three Planning Commission meetings have been held with
discussions on all the changes. He reviewed some of the changes and showed the expansion areas on
a projected map.

Bill Maddox noted that all of the commissioners attended the Planning Commission meetings that
discussed this item. Mr. Sjovangen said he attended all four of those meetings. Mr, Gilman attended
three of the four. Mr. McBride attended three (perhaps all four).

Corrado De Gasperis, President of Comstock Mining: Gave a short presentation and complimented
the productiveness of the sessions and a meaningful amendment. He believes it sets a new standard
and puts unprecedented controls on all. Open dialogue brought them to good protections for
residences and good conclusions to concerns. It formalizes historical restoration and reclamation. He
illustrated the areas and some of the restoration efforts with projected maps and pictures.

The Chair called for a recess at 10:48am; meeting called to order at 11:06a.m.

Callie Thompson Czech, Gold Hill: Asked that the 500 foot boarder be left open for discussion so
that overburden can be brought onto their property. Mr. Osborne said that substantial discussion

4




has taken place on this subject. It is essential there is a no-operation area that affects property
owners that do not want the activity. They concluded that they could apply for a temporary waiver
at the time when they want to do it. It would be up to the Cox’s to allow it or not.

Ron Cox, Gold Hill: Thought this was settled. Everyone has the 500 foot boundary. They could
hire this work done, but Comstock cannot do it. Mrs. Cox has an asthma issue.

Mr. McBride and Mr. Sjovangen don’t understand how they can exclude CMI from this activity. This
is an item that should be discussed at the time and shouldn’t be part of the SUP.

Kim Fegert, Gold Hill Historical Society: He has never seen such a comprehensive approach. He
complimented the process and the attention to preservation.

Mr. Osborne clarified some of the amendments and language and read the findings:

8.1 Motion for approval

The following are found regarding the amended SUP under the recommended conditions of
approval shown in Section 9. A motion for approval should include at a minimum these findings
and may include other findings deemed appropriate and factual by the body.

8.1.1 Requirement by code

All land within the amended SUP boundary is zoned SPR Special Planning Review and F Forestry.
Accordingly, the application for amended SUP was submitted pursuant to SCC Sections
17.32.020(M-N), and 17.44.030(A) which list “mining” and “milling and processing related to
mining” as allowed in each zone with an SUP approved by the Board of County Commissioner with
recommendation by the Planning Commission.

8.1.2 SCC 17.92 findings incorporated

SCC Section 17.92.030 lists findings of fact related to mining; mining uses and rights; rights and
protections of non-mining uses potentially impacted by mining; and protecting the historical value
and integrity of the Virginia City National Historic Landmark. Those findings in their entirety are
hereby incorporated into the approval of the amended SUP, and it is hereby recognized that the
amended SUP conforms to the purpose and intent of the findings.

8.1.3 Requirement by code

The conditions of the amended SUP are not in conflict with the purpose, intent, and other specific
requirements of the F Forestry Zone and SPR Special Planning Review Zone in which subject use
will be located.

8.1.4 Use compatibility

The conditions of approval under the amended SUP impose sufficient regulations on the proposed
use to reasonably mitigate associated impacts on the surrounding environment and existing adjacent
land uses.

8.1.5 Regulation compatibility
The conditions under the amended SUP are at least as stringent as and not in conflict with the
applicable federal, state, and county regulations. The minimum requirements under SCC Chapter

5




17.03 (Administrative Provision) and SCC 17.92 (mining) for issuance of an SUP are incorporated
into the conditions of the amended SUP.

8.1.6 Conformance with prior SUP

The amended conditions and the remaining unchanged conditions the amended SUP comply with
the land use requirements of the underlying regulatory zones and are a stringent and not in conflict
with federal, state, and county regulations pertaining to the uses allowed by the amended SUP,

Mr. Gilman opened up discussion to request that the operating plan be brought before the board for
final approval before project commencement. The annual review will be about history, not the
future. '

Mr. Sjovangen feels confident that they will have a good ongoing relationship with CMI.

Mr. McBride also feels satisfied about the how the process has gone and is confident with how it sits
right now.

Mr. Osborne asked if they would like to do as the Planning Commission did and do a run through of
the changes with an informal vote on each change before public comment and the full motion.

Mr. Gilman asked for clarification about language on page 8 under “Subject Processing” concerning
ore processing from the area and how it may affect use of Hwy. 341, Mr. Osborne explained that the
language referred to has been removed.

Mr. Osborne reviewed the following changes:

* Section 3.1 “The following thresholds to be a rolling maximum acreage at any given time.”
The board voted yea.

¢ Assurances - no processing of ore from other parts of Storey County, but the applicant may
process ore from the subject property, but from nowhere else. The board voted yea.

* Assurance - reclamation of the haul roads and the ancillary haul roads are pursuant to the
NDEP or BLM requirements whatever is applicable and it is not “may”, but “shall”. The
board voted yea.

* Assurance that the operating plan and modifications thereto is submitted to Planning staff for
review and development of a summary report. The plan and staff summary report then goes
straight to the County Commission, but not the Planning Commission, for a vote to validate
that the plan conforms to the conditions of the special use permit. The board voted yea.

Mr. Whitten is in support of the SUP and commended the staff and applicant on the process.

Mr. Maddox clarified that major modifications to the operating plan would come to the commission,
but he wanted to know if they wanted the plan itself be brought to this board and voted on for
approval, or just review. Vice-Chairman Gilman stated that he wanted the board to vote to accept or
not accept the operation plan as conforming to the conditions of the SUP. Mr. Osborne clarified that
they have the SUP boundary. Inside that is NDEP approved plan of operations that includes all the
specifics. Then there is the county’s requirement that in some cases exceeds the NDEP or BLM
requirement. This board would be reviewing all of that for conformance with the conditions of the
SUP. Mr. Gilman agreed that was what he was requesting,

6




Mr. De Gasperis feels the request for understanding major changes is very prudent. He asked for
clarification that if a fully compliant operating plan came before the commission, could that
potentially deny the submitted plan. Mr. DeGasperis stated that he believed that the goal of the
Commissioners with regard to the operating plan was to assure that it conforms to the conditions of
the SUP, not approve or deny the plan. He stated that it appeared that the mining company would be
able to proceed as planned once the Commissioners verified that the submitted plan is conforming.
He stated that if the Commission is to vote to approve or deny the operating plan, the objective of
securing the special use permit entitlements, that will enable the company to invest millions of
dollars in its operation, will not be met.

Mr. Gilman agreed that the intended requirement is for the applicant to presents the operating plan,
and future amendments thereto, to the board so that it may validate that he proposed operation plan
conforms to the conditions of the SUP. The subject operation may not proceed under the new
operating plan until the board agrees that it is conforming,

Motion: Based on Findings of Fact shown in Subsection 8.1 and conditions of approval shown in
Section 9 of this report, compliance with federal, state, and county regulations, and the
recommendation for approval by the Planning Commission and staff, I motion to approve SUP
Application No. 2000-222-A-4, amending SUP No. 2000-222-A-3 to expand the subject land area and
amend uses as provided in the Planning Commission and staff recommendation for mining,
processing mine definition and exploration, and ancillary uses. Action: Approve Moved by Vice-
Chairman Gilman Seconded by Commissioner Sjovangen Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote
(summary: Yes=3)

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: In accordance with an approval of Special Use Permit No.
2000-222-A-4 by Comstock Mining LLC, county planning staff hereby recommends closure and
nullification of existing Special Use Permit No. 2011-016 (“Exploration SUP”). This SUP request
is subject to approval of preceding SUP No. 2000-222-A-4 by Comstock Mining, L.LC. This SUP
amendment request shall not be subject to hearing or modification if said SUP is not approved.

Motion: Approve Action: In accordance with the approval of Special Use Permit No. 2000-222-A-4 by
Comstock Mining, LLC, compliance with federal, state, and county regulations, and the
recommendation of approval by the Planning Commission and staff, I Commissioner Bill Sjovangen
find that existing SUP No. 2011-016 is no longer necessary and may conflict with the provisions of
SUP No. 2000-222-A-4, and, therefore, I motion to approve permanent closure of existing SUP No.
2011-016 ("Exploration SUP”). Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman
Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

16. RECESS STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS TO CONVENE AS BOARD OF
FIRE COMMISSIONERS

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
between the Storey County Board of Fire Commissioners (Employer) and the Storey County
Firefighters” Association IAFF Local 4227 (Firefighters’ Association) pertaining to salaries, merit
steps, and employees anniversary/hire dates.




Austin Osborne explained that earlier in the year the collective bargaining agreement was approved
between the Fire Board of Commissioners and the Fire District. They are not asking for an
amendment, but a clarification. There has been some ambiguity as to when merit increases are
offered to different staff that are hired at different times. This is a memorandum of understanding.

Motion: Approve Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Storey County Board of Fire
Commissioners (Employer) and the Storey County Firefighters’” Association IAFF Local 4227
(Firefighters’ Association) pertaining to salaries, merit steps, and employees anniversary/hire dates
Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

18. ADJOURN FIRE COMMISSIONERS TO RECONVENE AS STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS

19. DISCUSSION (No Action -~ No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

Community Services Director Cherie Nevin:

* Flue immunization clinic on September 17 from 3:30 to 6pm at the Hillside Elementary School
in Lockwood. Open to all residents of the L.ockwood community.

e Storey County Health Fair - October 18 from 10am-2pm

¢ October 18 - Mark Twain Community Center - pancake breakfast tentatively planned

e Thursday - kicking off the courthouse seismic retrofit update study that we have received
grant funds for. Structural Engineer Mel Green, who did the study for us in the early 90’s will
be here as will Dean and Shannon.

e She and Deborah Griffin have been speaking with the communities to see what they would
like to have as far has health services.

e Mark Twain Community Center will be holding elections on September 17. They are also
making improvements to the center. The library is up and running. They are hoping to add
maybe some horseshoe pits to the area outside the park. Boy Scouts meet regularly at the
center.

¢ September 12 they will be meeting with MTCC board and Community Chest to discuss youth
programming.

Lockwood Community/Senior Center Representative Merilee Miller:
* In August the finished installing tree sculptures in front of the community building with fire
retardant. She would like to see a mural.
» Meeting on the 23t at 12:30 at the community building

Fire Chief Gary Hames:
» Half the interim seasonal wildland firefighters will have hours reduced beginning September
7%, with the second half September 215t and they will be back in May.
¢ Hazardous materials incident last weekend in TRI. First opportunity to use a full quad-county
response team. It went very smoothly with no injuries.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher:
» Updated the board on the audited financial statements. Field work will be done hopefully by
the middle of this month. Internal statements for July will be ready this week.
8




» Risk management meeting tomorrow encompassing our volunteer program,

» Met with the Carson City comptroller concerning the V&T rail commission. He has assured
Mr. Gallagher that they will sit down this week to discuss the numbers.

» He attended a committee on the Dept. of Taxation local government finance. There are
resolutions to be presented to the next legislature concerning heart/lung disease. There was
discussion of “separate local government.”

* Introduced Marilyn Fitzgerald from Connecticut and thanked her for service to the country.

Sheriff Gerald Antinoro:

* Melanie Keener was recognized earlier by the VEW. As of two weeks ago she is now acting
Chief Deputy.

 The gentleman whose body was discovered in a septic tank nearly a year ago is about to be
laid to rest. He was a decorated Vietnam veteran. There will be a service for him at the
Veteran’s Cemetery in Fernley tomorrow at 11am.

e Parking lot improvements in Lockwood are done.

» Wild Horse Fair and Labor Day were successful.

» Dept. of Agriculture came to pick up four Horses due to public safety risk. We are working on
making sure they go to rescue instead of auction.

» Angelo Petrini will be leaving the Delta and Bonanza today. Working for liquor license for
new owner.

Mr. Gilman asked about how the horses are handled. Mr. Antinoro explained that the Dept. of Ag,
Can do whatever they want as the horses are their property, but his deputies forwarded a few
complaints to them which started this process. Mr. Gilman asked if the County Manager could be
notified before they come into the County. Mr. McBride said that they had, in fact, been notified. Mr.
Maddox shared that they are responsible for wild horses on private lands; but have no budget for it.
They do the best they can. Mr. Antinoro understood that they were planning on picking up eight
horses, but only took four. He doesn’t believe they have plans to come back.

Assemblyman Jim Wheeler: noted that during the last session he put through an amendment to a
bill that would allow the Wild Horse Preservation League to enter into negotiations with the
Department of Agriculture for the management of the Virginia Range horses. Those negotiations are
ongoing and it looks like they are getting pretty close. Private donations will go to manage the
animals, so we will probably see better management of them over the next two years or so.

Senior Planner/Administrative Austin Osborne:

* NRS requires that we establish utility corridors in each of the counties where high voltage
transmission lines would be permitted. We are working on structuring this with the Master
Plan. He described locations and what might be there and local control.

» There was a rumor that the county was looking at housing moratoriums in the Highlands. This
is false. We are though working on a moratorium on lawns, swimming pools, and ponds in
the Highlands. There is an ongoing stream of people coming to his department with wells that
have dried up. Any development in this endeavor will be done in public hearings as to allow
public participation.




County Manager Pat Whitten:
e They are looking into hiring a new full-time building inspector in response to dynamic
growth.
e Two of the four houses are gone next door. They are hung up on some small issued on the
next two. He responded to the comment about adequate parking in the area and confirmed
that they do need the parking.

20. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

Vice-Chairman Gilman:
¢ Acknowledged Austin Osborne, the Planning Commission, and all that worked on the
Mining SUP.
Chairman McBride
* Lacy ] Dalton’s Wild Horse Fair was a huge success last weekend. We all agree that
something needs to be done with the horses.
» He received an unsolicited offer in casual conversation of over twice what the county paid for
the bank building they just purchased. He told them that if they could get a bank in there,
they would consider his offer.

21. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of modification and extension of Collective
Bargaining Agreement between Storey County (Employer) and the Storey County Sheriff's Office
Employees’ Association/Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3 (Union).

Austin Osborne: complimented the process and the parties. He explained some of the issues that
were bargained such as salaries and benefits and how we compare regionally.

Hugh Gallagher: discussed the fiscal impact estimate. He went over the benefits to the county of
dependent care exclusions and salary step increases. He feels they have a financially sound contract
that the Unions and the County can be proud of.

Mark Joseph Phillips, Storey County Resident: He commented that today’s packet does not include
a copy of the contract; he requested a copy of the contract. Mr. Osborne explained that when
bargaining is complete it will become public record, but they are technically still in negotiations and
according to NRS it must remain confidential. Mr. Phillips feels it is a violation of open meeting law.
Mr. Whitten explained that in anticipation of this question they have consulted with legal counsel
and they are okay.

Motion: Approve modification and extension of Collective Bargaining Agreement between Storey
County (Employer) and the Storey County Sheriff's Office Employees’ Association/Operating
Engineers Local Union No. 3 (Union) Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen
Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

Mr. Whitten and Mr. Osborne offered the contract as public record now that negotiations are
complete.

The Chair called for a recess at 12:45pm; meeting called to order at 12:54p.m.
10




22. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Acceptance and award of contract for three (3) ambulance
re-chassis to Fire Trucks Unlimited in the amount of $200,505.

Chief Fire Chief, Gary Hames: Reviewed the bids they received and some of the process of coming
to this decision. New ambulances are selling now for $180k to $200k. The boxes have been well
cared for, but the chassis have failed.

Motion: Approve acceptance and award of contract for three (3) ambulance re-chassis to Fire Trucks
Unlimited in the amount of $200,505 Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded
by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

23. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Purchase of three (3) Dodge Ram 4500 regular cab chassis
through Nevada State Purchasing or other vendor if less then state purchasing, in the amount not
to exceed $142,113.

Chief Hames made the board aware that the 2014 pricing has been discontinued. He has been told
that the seller would honor the 2014 pricing, but they need to act sooner rather than later. He is
hoping the current vehicles last long enough to get these,

Motion: Approve purchase of three (3) Dodge Ram 4500 regular cab chassis through Nevada State
Purchasing or other vendor if less then state purchasing, in the amount not to exceed $142,113
Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

24. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Acceptance and award of contract for three (3) Type 1
Triple Combination Structural Fire Fighting Engines to Ferrara Fire Apparatus in the amount of
$1,640,828.

Chief Hames: sent out 37 invitations to bid with only 4 responses. He went over the process of
coming to this decision. The loan terms were briefly explained. USDA is funding 100% at an interest
rate around 3.7% which is much better than private lending. Life expectancy is 20-30 years. Mr.
Hames explained that they did try to explore grant options and were denied at every front.

Motion: Approve acceptance and award of contract for three (3) Type I Triple Combination
Structural Fire Fighting Engines to Ferrara Fire Apparatus in the amount of $1,640,828, Action:
Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

25. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Reimbursement for fire alarm system at Gold Hill Train
Station, requested by Kim Fegert.

Kim Fegert, Gold Hill Historical Society: Documentation has been submitted to explain the request.
Mr. Whitten had a staff recommendation after discussion with the D.A. not to reimburse the $350.
The County has not been provided with the lease. The County has moved away from Burgarello.
Staff recommends making payment not to exceed $532.36 upon cancellation of this system. Mr.
McBride confirmed that it is due to expire in February 2015. Mr. Gilman asked for clarification on the

11




amount. Mr. Fegert reviewed some details of the submitted documents and explained the amounts
that GHHS paid for the Alarm System. Mr. McBride indicated that there is an invoice for the
purchase of the security equipment and another invoice for the lease. Mr. Fegert explained that at
first it was leased, and then subsequently purchased. There are separate amounts for the purchase
and the installation. Lease payments are not included in the amount they are requesting and were not
continued after they vacated the building. He went on to explain the legality of needing to finish the
contract with Burgarello as well as paying out money they needed to receive value for and thus the
need to purchase the equipment. Mr. Maddox suggested that he and the County Manager further
review the documents. Mr. Whitten said they needed to see if it was compatible with PDI who they
currently use and he doubts that it is.

Motion: Approve, Action: Continue this item so that Bill Maddox and Pat Whitten may review the
documents and make a recommendation. Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-
Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING CONTINUED

26. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit Extension & Amendment 2012-014-A-
1-2014. By Robert MacLachlan on behalf of Vista Towers, for a property located at 21485
Saddleback Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 003-101-66). The
applicant requests an amendment to Special Use Permit 2012-014 in order to modify a condition
of the “mono-pine” wireless communications tower may commence. The applicant is also
requesting an extension to Special Use Permit 2012-014 which, due to inactivity, will expire.

Planner Dessie Redmond: Staff recommends continuing this item.

Motion: Continue to the Storey County Board of County Commission meeting September 16, 2014 at
10:00a.m., here in the courthouse. Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded
by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

27. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Parcel Map 2014-012. By Vincent Griffith on behalf of
Western 102/ Western 102 LTD c/o Annette Mansfield, for a property located at 2633 Waltham
Way, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 004-092-76). A parcel map to create two separate
parcels of land from one existing parcel of land.

Planner Dessie Redmond: Details are listed in the staff report.

5.1.1 The Parcel Map must comply with NRS 278.461 through 278.469 relating to the division of land
into 4 or less parcels; and

5.1.2 The Parcel Map complies with all Federal, Nevada State, and County regulations pertaining to
Parcel Maps and permitted land uses; and

5.1.3 The Parcel Map will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards on the abutting
properties or the surrounding vicinity; and

5.1.4 The conditions under this Parcel Map do not conflict with the minimum requirements in SCC
Chapters 17.35 1-2 Heavy Industrial Zone or any other Federal, Nevada State, or County regulations.

12




Motion: Approve Parcel Map 2014-012 Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen
Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

28. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

a.
b.

@

A el 2 ¢ H

CHEWY.COM LLC - General / 700 Milan (ecommerce fulfillment ctr) TRI

PEEK BROTHERS CONSTRUCTION INC. - Contractor / 400 Carroll Drive - Fernley
(contractor)

A & J PAVING - Contractor / 1490 Cherokee Trail ~ Reno (coniractor)

dba RED ROCK SPRING WATER / General - 1145 Icchouse Avenue ~ Sparks (water
delivery)

MARTINEZ TREXLER REAL ESTATE GROUP / Home Business - 92 West Taylor (real
estate)

ARDAGH METAL PACKAGING USA, INC. - General / 900 Waltham Way (can mig) TRI

W G YATES & SONS CONST CO - Contractor / 2641 Portofino Drive (contractor) TRI
A-Z WELDING & FABRICATION, LLC - General / 1215 Alexandria (welding fab) ~ TRI
ROSSCO ENT., dba AP STAINLESS MFG - General / 1215 Alexandria (manufacturing) TRI

RITCHIE BROS AUCTIONEERS - General / 20202 East Highway 80 MCC

Senior Planner/Administrative Officer Austin Osborne: Went through staff recommendations for
approvals and continuations.

Motion: Continue F, H and I Action: Approve continuations Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen
Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

Motion: Approve A, B, C, D, E, G and | Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen
Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

29. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action}

Kim Fegert, Gold Hill Historical Society: Requested communication by letter rather than email on
the aforementioned documents.

Mark Joseph Phillips, Virginia City resident: Risk Management meeting mentioned earlier, he
would like a time and place. Mr. Whitten explained that it was an internal staff meeting. Mr.
Phillips does not agree that a closed meeting should take place that is closed to the public. He asked
about his concerns to the deed to the Crystal Bar. Mr. Whitten said it is still being researched by

staff,

30. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned by the call of the Chair at 1:36p.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

13




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 7, 2014 Estimate of time required: 0 min

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 08/29/14 for $149,450.58
and $74,460.99. Accounts Payable date 9/19/14 for $1,508,565.41 and $9,765.33.

2. Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted as part of the Consent Agenda

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1006

4, Staff summary: Please find attached the claims
5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: NA Fund: NA _ NA  Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
_NA_ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Comptroller

@Munty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[ Approved f

] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [

Continued

[ —

Agenda Item No. 6




ATUNSVIEL

AETICULLINOD

YIANOISSIHHOD YENOISSIAWOD NYWEIVH?

FSIBUOTSSTUNC) O paeog Ajunod Asxolg syl Aq pesoaddy

8505V EFT 08D A03ONPag TEIOL
0o0- LI JOT JI2ISURIL IIS8[) TeI0T
Junowy sadeqd ¢ pea  # ad
/# dwg  /sosyp
¥T/62/80 23 Moayy Zojonpa@ :adiy TT0IARd
INYNINITING zeasThey Woayd 9¥:8RIOT PT/2T/60 runy

z =Beg WELSAS TIOMAVA ALNNCD AS¥OLS YOTS0¥y :3dan




YEINSTIIL

HITIOULANOD
S i e e P
HANOISSIWWOD YANOISSIWWOD NYHIIVHD

PEIBUOTSSTWWO) JO paeog Ajunod Aexoag ayjz Aq paroxddy

66°09%"¥L I83o9YD I0jonpag Telo
00" SdLAd Ao JeFsuURL] iI9sn [PIOL
unowy

29Aegd ¥ peq # aa
/% dwg  /yoeyp

¥1/62/80 :37BQ yoO8UD aoaonpaa tadAl Troxdeg

AUYNINITIYI I97s1bay ooy

98 TT: 0T ¥1/2T/60 uny
Z abeg WALSAS TI0HAYd AINNCD AFUOLS

YOTS0Ud :3dey




007 €1
00°5L
86"zt

SB'¥ST

05°L65'T
91 0€T

00 0% ' T
05°99%'S§
TYLOL
ADIHD

1 abeg

0¥ LY
96°TE
ST791T
I0°1IL
00" ¥
[ - FA
L' %9
587901
0 %1
G0’ &as
T2 PEL
L6 2%
617171
88°LPT
¥8 ¥8T
¥9°9¢
LL'oL
EL'0S
28" ge
T7'SLT
Q0'ST¥
0066
00766
LL %2
varsg
T9" €€
0% 0LE
LT 9%
ZE'TL
oL 2
E1 E1E
ST'L8

00'€T
00°sL
86°2¢
0% LT
GL'LS
69°'9¢€
TE'0T
LL'8

88°'¢€1T

0§°LPT'T
00" 0%5%

09°201
95 €2

00°0%5°T

05 99%'S

THNOOWY

Cst0L
05%0L
0sPoL
0sv0L
oatvoL
05702
0570L
0S¥0L
0s¥0L
08704
asv0L
0S¥0L
0S%F0L
0s%0L
05%0L
0S%0L
05%0L
0s%0L
CS¥OL
05704
0StoL
0S%0L
0S%0L
0s¥%0L
0S5%04L
0S%04L
05%0L
05S%0L
050t
0%F0L
o0SP0L
as%04

00s0L
£550L
CLvOL
TIVOL
Tiv0L
TIFOL
9eP0L
9e¥v0L
9EV0L

TTroL
2TPOL

SEPOL
SEROL

TE¥0L

9vS0L

HSNWIL

¥I/61/6
$T/61/6
¥1/61/8
¥I/61/6
¥T/61/6
71/61/8
F1/6T/86
vI/61/6
PI/6T/6
¥1/61/86
PI/6T/86
v1/6T/6
YI/6T/6
PT/6T/6
¥1/61/6
¥1/61/6
¥1/61/6
Y1/61/6
PL/61/6
YI/6T/8
¥1/61/6
¥T/6T/6
YI/6T/6
YI/6T/8
¥1/81/6
YT/61/6
y1/61/6
B1/61/6
v1/61/6
PT/6T/6
¥T/61/6
PI/6T/6

¥1/61/6
YT/61/8
PT/61/6
B1/61/6
F1/61/6
¥1/6T/6
PI/ET/6
PL/6T/6
¥1/61/6

¥1/61/6
¥1/61/6

FI/61/8
¥T/6T/6

¥I/6T/6
YI/6T/6

TLYa

¥1/91/6

¥ 0/d

YA JUKS

YA TUHS

TYEH JuaWs

TVEW JHNS

TYIN TUENS

TYEW TAAVEL JINY
IVEW JNA

TYEN TIATEL ANH
IYEN AN

Ta0s NI

Tand ANA

TYEN ENA

TYEN ANX

TELOW JINXY

Td0d ANM

TYHEN NI

TaNd ANA

TYEN dNA

TLIW AN

TVEN TIAVEL JNX
DNINIVIL

TENE FYII A¥M
TENd FAId AWM
TENS H¥Id AWM
TYAH THAVEL FEId AWM
TWEN TEAVYYL HATI AWM
TINA SYHLFIE qIve
TENd SYHLSIS dIvL
INIYH OLOY

Tadfd SYILSES qIvd
LNIVW 2079

TENI SYALSIS (rivd

qZ4 ¥HSN FONIWNEANCOI'IHL
FSNOHLENOD ENIT 15d
ADIULIEC

HD

dOHS

JOHS

AUANNYT ¥L IS

AIaNNVT gL 1s

AMANOYT TL LS

AD0T TIOL HLIM VI
EA00T TEOL FAVAT NIWAY

SHITdANS SWA
STITINS SWA

Lu0d4dns

894 SUNYIHDIH

NOILATEISHA dDIOANI

HELSIOEY ADEHD
AILNOOD AZHOLS

YOoLZH# YOTUAWY 40 ANVE
IAEES HORAYFANCDHTIAL 191V
27T II ALITIHCH 1RV

SSANTTAK dNY HICIVEH DUV

JONI O05TIY

INYIAYE ' HIZNIIOVH ‘NOSITITY

NI NON SYOulY

ONI SWEILSAS ¥IVd JHINYAQY
ONIAYG [ % ¥

HOaNaA

P1/91/60
STETH]

gozoe
T0Z0®
¢ozo8

66T08

86108

LETOR8

96708
S6TCE
¥6108
AHEFWNN
HADHHD

toeleq uny
toN Jaecdsy




Z

THLOL
¥J3EHD

sbeg

¥Lr22T
98° 59
ST T¥%T
28709
&%'8BZ
SL°19¢
P 6¢
65 88T
5 2 5
QT - st
6T°TT
BZ 0S5
3]
86°'6
66'9%
29° 11
SZ°hE
66° 6%
SS'E0T
TE°' 56
2018
00502
00'¥8T
007 6L
-00° 002
¥S5°¥9%
S¥ 0T
29°'%e
LE'ET
¢g-se
LE'QET
66 TLT
(A3 454
92922
SET Y
00" 0ET
BL'BE9
08 QST
26 '6ET
SEET
S1°9¢8
[A AN -YA"1
0082
L&' ge
6o se
0008
LETTET
ZE'PT
86" L9
PE6PE
S6'S¥
T9' 92T
[A+R+1:1
CE-AR e
L&A 144
EL'¥QT

INQOWY

QskoL
asvoL
0504
05%0L
0S%0L
0SFOL
0SP0L
0s¥0oL
08S%0L
0s5voL
0S%0OL
0580L
0S¥O0L
0SH0L
05%0L
0svoL
0s¥0L
05v0L
0570L
QSECL
0S%0L
05%0L
0S%0L
0S¥%0L
05¥v0L
05¥%0L
05%04L
0S%0L
05%0L
QSFOL
0S¥0L
05%0L
0S%0L
05%0L
05%0L
0S%0L
05F0L
05F0L
0sv0L
0S¥0L
0s¥oL
0S%0L
0S%0L
0s%0L
Q5%0L
As%0L
0S%0L
0s¥oL
a5%0L
05%0L
0S%0L
05%0L
0S¥OL
CS¥GL
09%0L
0S¥04

H#SNYYL

¥1/61/6
PT/6T/6
YI/61/8
¥1/61/6
¥1/61/6
YI/6T/6
¥1/61/6
¥T/61/6
PI/6T/6
YI/61/6
¥1/61/6
PUI/61/6
¥I/6T/6
Y1/61/8
PL/61/6
Y1/61/6
¥T/6T/6
¥T/61/8
B1/61/6
vi/61/6
YI/E1/6
P1/6T1/6
PT/6T/6
YI/61/6
PL/6T/6
PT/61/6
PI/61/6
¥1/61/6
FT/6T/6
Yi/6T/6
¥I/61/6
Y1/6T/6
¥I/6T/6
¥I/61/6
FI/61/6
51/61/6
¥I/61/6
YI/6T/6
Y1/6T/6
PT/6T/6
YI/6T/6
YT/61/6
¥1/61/6
F1/61/6
¥T/61/6
PL/6T/6
PI/6T/6
YI/61/6
¥I/61/8
¥1/61/6
Y1/61/6
P1/61/6
¥I1/6T/6
PL/6T/6
¥1/6T/6
PT/6T/6

HLwa

FL/91/6

THOI QWAL

IYER QWYL

IMIVW dWYD AddVH
TYEW OWEL

INTYW NWAL

TALOW NKUL

AN OWHL

TYER QWL

TYEN NWYL

SAITAANS DNILYIEIO
TENS dWYD Add¥H
TEQL OWEL

TYIR QWA

XYM

SEITAANS SWA

SUEACD 1EIINO
SNOILYNLISIOEY /ETLTL
k- (oNAsT: G (i oTat:]
TELOW LING ONIDH0OT
TINd LINA ONIDDOT
TH0S LIND ONIDOHOT
TEINI LINA NIDDOT
WYXE HOLDEASNI A¥Id
ENITNO II ¥OLOEISNI 2¥IE
QNOAFY LI$04HA TYINIY dvD
SHIAVENE LINDVID
TYEN TIAVEL JINA
Tang aNd

NY¥d INEA WOOHELYE
TYEW THAYEL NOLTHYD
AN NOLIYYD

TENG NOLTIYD

TENd NOLTEYD

TYER NOLTHYD

TYER NOLTNYD

TELOW NOLTHYD

1404 NOITHYD

AN NOLTIVD

NILSHI INVYQAH 904 $30AYD
EOYLS0L

TTOAOWIL HOd IVETID
NIWIDWYTIdEY ¥OSSIUAWOD NIV
OYTd ILVLS AN

TYEW THHS

IVER dINS

TYAN TUERS

TE0S TEWS

TYEW THNS

12Nd qQEHS

VAW CGEWS

TYEW GEWS

TYEW QHKWS

1IN TUHS

IYEN HWHS

TS qERS

INIYH C4WS

NOTLATHISEC HEIICANTL

MALSIORY ADIAHD
ALNDOD AHYOLS

HOANTA

BT/91/60
STETE

HEEWNAN
HOHEHD

a%eqg uny
oN Axeday




0 PLE IS0L ¥L/61/6 ¥T/T¢€/2T-%1/T/0T ASYAT

INI WEYTY OTTadvDdng ¥0ZC8
00°66T 00°66T Z5T0L YI/6T/8 IIX SNET-LEED 0%

SESTHANALNG A¥ddg EOZ03
5% 100’61 zZ9' %2 0S%0L v1/61/6 SEITAANS HNILVEAA0
0% 9¢T 0SB0 PI/61/6 TN NYWEZLGH
T6°LbS'T 0SPOL ¥T/6T/6 TYINIE ¥W¥D NYWIEIVM
£0°'05 0S%0L $1/6T/6 TENE WOMOYMIHD
76 €€ 08504 ¥I/6T/6 SEITANS ONMINYITD
96° Tt 05902 YI/61/% TENS WOXNYMIHD
9¢° 81 0SbOL YT/61/6 TINA WOMNYMIHD
S6°62 0S¥0L ¥1/61/6 Bla
BE'0E 0SP0L ¥1/6T/6 TINS NYWHALYM
-4 05P0L F1/6T/6 TAAd NYWHIIYM
BL' 9L 05B0L ¥1/6T/6 T1A0d WAANYMIHD
98 STT 0SPOL PE/ET/6 TALOW WOMOYMIHD
6" EE 0S%0L $1/6T/6 XYM 40014
00°08z'2 05%0L ¥1/6T1/6 ISHNOD NOILISNYEL SWa
L% 0TT 0S¥OL PI/6T/6 TYEW WOTH 7D S
£0°1Q 05%0L YI/6T/8 TALOW WOTE 210 §
0T T2T 0S%0L ¥1/61/6 TaNd WOTE 10 S
00°'8S 0S%0L PI/6T/6 TaENG WATE FATD §
LO'TOT 0SF0L ¥1/61/6 TEAd SWYD AddvH
SZ 08 0S%0L ¥1/6T/6 1404 HWOTE 3ID 8
00 %L 0SkOL PT/6T/6 130d ARNSIHM
0 FOT'T 05%0L YT/6T/6 AYD IYINAY AAMSIHM
00°02 0S%0L P1/61/6 TYEW ANMSIHM
0L'6%T 0S%0OL YI/6T/6 T3NS dWYD AdAVH
00°SL 05%0L PI/ET/6 TEN WOTE 21D §
00°58 0S¥oL ¥T/61/6 1904 WOTE ETD 8§
8% L 0S%0L ?1/61/6 TYEW WOTE 31D S
66°6 0SYOL ¥1/6T/6 TYEN WOTE 3710 §
05° 98 0SY0L FL/6T/6 104 XIASTHM
YL'E6S 0SkOL VI/6T/6 TANS DATHE ATILIT
0029 08H04 PL/6T/6 TaNE FOHALHE FATLLIT
ZE2'1T 0SP0L vi/61/8 TYEW ¥90I¥8 ATLLIT
£9°Z% 09%0L ¥I/61/6 INIYW ZTOIHAA
z28° 1T 0S¥P0L  FT/6T/6 TYEW EOCGINE ETIIIT
L6 ET 0s¥koL ¥T/61/6 Av¥qs ong
Y0 50T 05%0L ¥1/61/8 1IN EHGIYE TTLLIT
LL'BIT 0SPOL BT/61/6 TEILOW FOII¥E TILLIT
00'SL 0SkOL ¥T/61/6 TINd FOHATEE FIILIT
BF 12 0SF0L ¥T/6T/6 TAND SL IM
¢o'oeT 05902 ¥1/61/6 TINg ADAI¥E FTLLIT
6E°SET 0S¥0L YI/6T/6 THLOW E2aIvd HILLIT
00°007 05804 PL/6T/6 TN EOOTEE EILLIT
98'58 0SvoL YI/61/6 TOYLSOI
00°89T 0S¥0L ¥T/6T/6 THLOW QWML
£T' 1SS 08%0L $1/61/6 Tand OWEL
SL'ZL 0SVOL ¥1/61/6 TEINA dAWYD AJdYH
0z’ 0z 0850L F1/6T1/6 TYEH QWAL
00001 0504 P1/61t/6 THEAA AWML,
00" ¥g 0S%0L PI/ET/6 TEEW QWAL
00'ET 0SH0L PI/6T/6 OYAR QWEL
29 €T 05904 PI/6T/6 TYEW dWYD AddWH
58°0T 05%0L  PT/6T/6 TYEN (WYL

TYLIOL LNOOWRY #SNVHL FL¥a ¥ o/d NOILAI¥ISEE AII0ANI HOaNEA YTIWNN
MDEHD ADFHO
¥T/9T/6 WILSIOFAY AJIKD PT/921/60 ¢ 93eq unyg

£ abeg ALNNOD ATHOLS STET8d ‘ON 3z0dey




4

00°1Ts o0 8¥y
00" €

8T 2Tt 0S5"T2T

€% 91T
f-R A

£9 fEL’8

oy Let ¥ LEL

00" 9gs 00 98BS
i AR A% LA A
0o-zoz 00’202

TT'E€L0'€E 95°Z%8

55°0£2'¢T

LT ' ¥L LT ¥4
09°'58Y 91882
Py LET

TZ'8L8 $z°'8
L¥'ST
SE'OF
6€°12
Sg£'e
BEZ'SE
86 LS
16" 9%
66" €0T
89 L
ZLETT
66°11
85°5¢€
v gz
6573
69°6
86" %9
98" €9

-€2°vE
€2 ¥E

Z6° €9 05" 3%
A A
Lt w6 LY V6

00°SLE 007 TLE

00" ¥
¥0'PLE
TELO LNOOWY
HOEHD

abeg

00°09F'5
£€S'EL8’'E

L1504
LTS0L

SZP0L
PSPOL
§0P0L

T0s0L
10504

SLYOL
21504
20504
LTP0L

9Tv0L
9TvoL

ST¥OL

£1v0L
ETFOL

¥FIPOL
TIvOL
yIv0L
PivoLs
PIVOL
PIPOL
PI70L
PIVOL
FIFOL
¥IvoL
¥I¥0L
¥ivoL
AN {¢TA
PI%0L
¥I¥0L
FI¥0L
PIPOL
PTROL
PIVOL
FIFOL

T9r0L
LEVOL

AR TR
STS0L
STS0L

HENVAL

YI/6T/%
YL/E1/6

$1/61/6
PI/6T/6
YI/6T/6

¥T/61/6
VI/ET/E

PI/61/6
¥T/6T/6
¥1/61/6
¥1/61/6

Y1/61/8
PL/6T/5

P1/61/6

¥1/6T/6
FT/6T/6

¥1/61/6
YI/6T/6
PI/6T/6
YI/61/56
YI/6T/6
v1/61/6
v1/6T1/6
¥1/61/6
YI/ET/6
¥i/61/6
$T1/6T/6
PT/6T/6
PL/6T/6
¥I/81/6
¥1/61/6
¥L/6T/6
¥1/61/6
P1/61/6
vL/61/6
YI/6T/6

P1/61/6
PI/61/6

¥T/81/6
¥1/61/6
¥T/61/6

A R4

PI/9T/6

YI0Z2 '01 1435 -BZ 9OV

SEY ETIW $-JI9 Ol FDILON
ZOIION 2ITHnd DHID
NOLLIQE 62 onv

29380 PTO0Z LsnpNv
SSIT DESD PIOC ISNoNV

d2S¥NGSId INTWHS INNYD
¥1/61/01 - ®1/2%/8
SE509-¥AAYOT IVD
L940ddns dFEOLI0

TISIIA %7 "INO -FVIL HDA
TASEIA ¥ INO Md

gAYD ‘TT9594¥d

AQCE ETLLOYHL '09%LS OF
FOLYNIOY "‘ONIN ‘0994508

LON ‘37109 THAHM-?068508
ONILLIZ~8EZZ94d
NEDOTYH- 2+ 8T5d2

HOLIMS ¥I¥-BE€ZC9dl
dW¥'T OIYH 2349
SHALTIL-NDOLS

HELTIA YIV-AD0LS
AITING FKII ' £8EESATANOD
SYALTIA-AS0LS

YALII4 TIO-AD0LS
HOLIMS 'dWVT ‘S0%9Sd0HS
IO ¥YED’'2yBTGHd

IYES TIO'ZYLBTSUd
ATTING “6LZESHSTWHOD
dALTIL HIV ‘2§sevsd
dY¥D BYD-90628ud

HELTIL ‘WYYIY-S0v9SMd
TI0 d¥ED '4I% '0L-D€
LIN JALIII-PHZzoud

LIM HALITA-5HZ29dud

JAMAS /TALEH
BALYM NETQUYDWHCD TOOMMDIOT

FEVLHSOH-LNTd UMS

Y10 ‘0T Id95-8Z DOV

NOILAI¥ISHE] ADIOAMI

HHELSIDEY HDFTHD
ALNACD AT¥OLS

ONI SNCISIA ADOLSWOD

OTT TTIW 4o ADQLEWOD

(oA) HTDINOWHD ADOLSWCD

ONI I9EHD ALINAWWOD
NOHdETAL AINNOD TIIHDUAHD
ONI ¥00dINQ Sd9D

JE00 INEWATIAOE NYWHSYD

ONI ®ITEASYD

ONI 00 TIO AFTIVA NOSUYD

SANIDNE TTIYWS NOSUWD

ONI TU04 TYLIAYD

SLEYd OLOY ALID TYLILYD

NEWIAQHAWI TYHINID NOANYD

TYINLENANT VINJOIIIYD

SIMAT LIODS 'TIHWANEG
HOONEA

PT/9T/60
S{£THd

6TZ08

81208

LIzo8

21208
STZ08
»1Z08
£1208

[A A

11208

GTZ08

60208

80208

L0208

90e08

s0Zoe

AIFHAN

ADEHD
i Aa3eg uny
o 3z0day




(AR -1 ZevoL YI/61/6 DNIATIHS -dOHS
HOIAYEAS LIGHEUD LOLEA ZWOH 0%208

05001 002 cezsoL v1/61/6
08" 96 2Z50L YI/6T/6 FP10Z ‘0T IJES-82 S0Y
OHDE UEYM HIUNO4 JTYOLSIH 6ETO8
00°562'¢ 00°962'¢ T8S50L PL/6T/6 dIX INITYW TYONNY
DNIDWWIOYDINW LYESHI HOIH 8e€zZ08
SELTE'T SE°LTE T vEROL ¥I/61/6 €¥ YOSNAS Hd 'IYLIDIdA
ANYAWNCD HOYH LEZNY
€€ 9L8 00’0y £ev 0L FI/61/6 SHLILITIIN Ad dNd
€€ o1¢E 06F0L F1/61/6 LMY Mg aMod
00-ges L0S0L ¥1/6T/6 MW XINNOD avnd M¥ad dNog
OTT SLNIWLTIANI 41D R
Q0° 507 00'50% 85504 Vi/6T/6 SdH ¢
WOL ‘RYEESNYHD SEZ08
TL ¥PT 00°6€E £EFOL YI/ET/6 SEAQTD
ggrgeg £Ev0L YL/ET/8 AV LITIOL M¥¥d MT
TE 9T CEVOL P1/61/6 SOVE HSVHL -¥ID ¥5 M1
[A4- R CEVOL P1/61/6 YOLYEEJ0 NOLING 'Zi-gdd
HADNIVED AXA:]
T5'8LY T2 'BLE LLFOL ¥T/61/6 TEASANHSIA LNAWHS INIYD
QLT NJ3y ¥ dTAVD £€E08
£17.96'¢ T9°'220'¢ TEVOL PL/6T/6 2EY ¥ 15d -MT
0T 062 2EFOL PI/ET/6 0F ¥ 0§ NIWVHL IAIHA
2P PSS T CEVOL YI/81/6 0EM0T % 00F QTIHU
27T ADMENT SHEATd [AXA:
11°'8S TT°SS LOWOL ¥i/61/6 ISNONY dTI0D
OLLYdNDDO HAOYINVYAGY LSUILA TE20s
LS 'Q%T LS OFT FEFQL FI/6T/6 o5
a7 S¥DTTIEERES 0EZ08
S0°'6 §0°6 69%04 YI/6T1/6 DNIddIHS
J¥0D SSEUAXH TYyIgdd E2Z08
6Z°9EE'IS 8L°T6L'8T 6T%0L YI/61/% STI0S (ALIENIWNYINGD JEAN
TS pED 'EE 9Zv0L YT/ET/8 TCAY ¥ SIAHY 'NOISHEHC =Avids
DNIMHENIONG LSEM dyvd 82208
Q0 08T 00 08T TZsoL ¥1/61/6 S¥M0O0H oA 40 1549 05
L QEu¥NOmT "HEDSNILLA L2Z08
Qg 00-oee Fev0L FI/6T/6 AHVIS0d NOILOMTE TYdENED
HOIAMES ONITIVH HEITONS 9FZ08
25'¥61 Z9 P61 88%0L ¥1/61/6 dE5INASTIA LNAWHS INUYD
NHOL' % ¥AZLINHDS 'XIIAYHO SEZZo8
SHT6TE 587011 0%¥0L PI/61/6 SNEWITIWYS00E DOLW ~YILYM
4] Z9v0L YT/81/8 HELTM
S6°EL 99%04L ¥i1/61/6 qILYM T4 LS
06" TS gZFOL ¥1/61/6 SYHTOOD WHILYM HO
ONI ¥Sn SHOIV( vezoe
00°0L9°T Q0'0Ls 'Y EBFOL YI/6T/6 INIWAILYEY TaEM IWL
ONT A¥ES NOLLONAOY J40¥D £TZ08
00" ¥oe 00°¥02 02504 YL/6T/6 ¥T02 0T 1dE§-8Z o0V
¥ QIAVIDC ‘YLISEHD (4411}
00°99S5°L 00°998"w 61S0L Y1/61/8 H¥IVA ASEOH (IIM
op'ooL'e ETS0L PI/6T/6 SAYd yYM TIATID
+ WIAEKW S.LJEON0D FAIIYEHED TZZ08
Qg8 008 80504 Y1/6T/6
DT SEDLAYAS STTYMNICD oZeos
009501 00'$50'1 8TS0L Y1/6T/6 P10¢ ALOEIAL HSYD "o
IYLOL LNOOWY #SNVIL d1¥d # o/fd NOIXLETHDSHA ZDIOANI AOANTA JATNON
HEHD HDAHD
F1/91/6 HEILSIDAY HOFHD ¥T/8T/60 ¢ 23leq uny

5 abeg ALNOOD AFHOLS STETEd :on JIoday




SLd¥d ADNHUI ¥ OLAY WAYN 65208

20596 S.°9T 9VHOL ¥1/61/6 SINYd SWNTd -T00d
E%°62 0LVPOL  ¥I/6T/6 $5I144NS 40
§5'09 0LEOL PT/6T/6 53174305 30
6Z 8LV 0L¥OL YI/6T/6 S8I144ns 4o
HYYMTEYH EAOHTNNOKW gszoe
00°00T'Z 00°007'2 25504 YI/6T/6
I LNEE0Y ‘SINNOW LSZ08
9T €66 9T ' £5§ SYHOL ¥1/61/6 SEYIL- £8ZESATAHINOD
OLNEWYHDOWS 40 HAIJ, NYOUCKH 95208
5622 g6 22 0Ts0L ¥T/6T/6
O IDEYIA HOUYNOW 59208
S9° 9% 59 b¥ PEY0L YI/6T/6 ITANYH -WSI¥NOL
02 WOLOW THOH TEVHIINW r¥sT03
§Z'090°S L8'6TR EEFOL ¥1/61/8 HOLOH
£8°9%T'S 66%0L  FT/6T/6 FTANLINIOI
D9 LB BOSOL  PI/6T/6 XINTETH
L TIST 0EV0L YI/61/6 SAITE4NS HITAS0
-98'§€¢ 56%0L ¥L/6T1/6 3IqIAYD
~L8 6TZ 6670L ¥I/6T/6 LIAIUD
NI SNOILIATOS ZIIJIQ OWLIAW £5208
¥9° 98 T8 LPT 9550L YT/61/6 Dd YOSSISSY L SNOANIM
£8°9TL LBYOL Y1/61/6 TLAAN AYCLYANYH dWOD SWYS
ONI STIHOLYEOHYT WK z5z08
00°SBT'E oorsetr’e SES0L ¥1/61/6 MANIVLIEY ATIOLI0O
07T SINAAN FNTE CINOIN 15208
SE'8EE SE BEE S2S0L ¥T/6T/6 NOTSSIWWOD %58 ATAL HIP
DT SINEAR ANTA AINOIT [EEATS
00'E0F ‘T 00'000'2 ¥ZS0L PI/61/6 dNIYYLS  ANYE HSNOHINO
00'€0%'6 $2S04 ¥L/6T/6 AACYddY 4XE Eovd ESNOHLAO
277 SINAIAZ 207 dIADIT £%Z08
L L6 662 £I50L ¥T/61/6
80’9 £TS0L ¥1/61/6
16" 8€E €TS0L ¥1/61/6
oL 1E ETS0L YI/6T/6
NI SADIA¥ES ANIT FDYNONYT 8¥208
00°569 00969 89404 ¥I/6T/6 Idd ANVIATIM
SNOS % $Iz¥nd N 1 LPZ08
05'80S 00" %08 £250L v1/61/6 ¥102 ‘0T Ld55-8Z ©0%
05" ¥ £250L ¥1/61/6
¥ NVILSINHD '¥ETHIEIN 9rzoe
00°'00T 007001 SYS0L ¥1/61/6
: HYIYS ‘NRSNED SPzoe
00°0ZT 00'0¢€ 90%0L ¥I/6T/6 2040 WOSHEY
0006 30%0L PL/6T/6 ISEL TYDISAHG
dd ONILTINSNOD QW 249 AYD ?H208
T9'66L°6 26 2% PSGOL ?1/61/6 Od MOSSHSSY WvH
€0 L¥L'E 7SS0L ¥1/61/6 SESNHEDI LIOSOHEDINW
211 ED¥N0S TLI £%208
Z6° 89S 9T gt ETHOL Y1/61/6 NOTIV¥D 53 UHJHS HLISNO
gL 88C 05504 PT/6T/6 PT0Z dWS LPT IN
NI IOW QANI NIV.LNOOW NOYI 29208
00°92T 00°82T L9P0L PL/6T/6 dINSYIENEN 20T
TISNNODEA0DN TYNOILVNYELNI %208
6T TLS Svrev ZEVOL PT/61/6 HOSSHIAWOD AIW-¥LIS
TBTLLE ZrroL Y1I/81/6 DNIATIHS -dOHS
TYLOL INOCWY #SNVEL qIva # 0/a NOILAINOSEA HIOANI MOANZA YAARAN
AOFHD ¥DEHD
YI/9T/6 HWALSIODAY MDEHD PT/9T/6C ¢ ®3®q UNY

9  8beg ALNOQD AZHOLS STETEd :ON 3x0doy




L

00°0e¢
00'022
00-0ezZ
00" 0L 00 oL
S0°'0§¢€ S0 '0SE
8% 0€D 8% 26T
00°9¢Z
00°S50%'T 00°S0%’T
ZL'PRT TLPHT
00'%TT 00" %11
00°'59%2 0008
00°05
00°59%
ST 8LS'TT ST 8LS'TT
L 8S2’Z vL'8ST'T
gL geeL SL°6ZL
1L 0L L oL
000821 00°082°1T
PE009 FE 009
LG PLE'T LE PLE'Z
82 'TLT’'T BEZ'2LE'T
£V FBY 'O 308 1:3 21
S6'L68 -S0°€1F
99" 60¢€
PITE
99°92
$1°16
9£°S82
9T 02T
9T°' 02T
%0 ' I5E
¥5°90¢
[A 88T
6 8€Z
Y116
%6 ¥¥E
-Z1°e8t
BT'€T BT' L
TYLOL INNOWY
ADIHD
abeg

8L70L
2L¥ 0L
8LPOL
SBYOL
0TFOL

£5¥%0L
£5¥0L

B0%0L
g¥soL
2ESQL
TLw0L
TeroL
TEPOL
LETOL
98%0L
86¥0L
BEE0L
ool
SEVOL
LS¥OL
&750L
8SF0L
8¥v0L
89704
8vFOL
g8¥FOL
8¥¥v0L
8¥¥0L
8¥tr0L
8PVOL
gvyoL
BFFOL
8¥¥0L
ayvoL
ayvoL
aFvoL
g¥voL
LPPOL

#INVAEL

P1/6T/6
YI/ET/6
YTI/6T/8
¥1/61/6
YTI/61/6

PT/6T/6
¥I/6T/6

P1/61/6

" FT/6T/6

bT/e1/6

PI/61/6
PI/6T/6
PT/6T/6

PT/6T/6
YI/6T/6
ET/61/5
%1/61/6
PL/6T/6
Y1/61/8
FI/81/6
PI/6T/6
¥1/61/6

¥T/6T/6
P1/61/6
YI/6T/6
¥I/6T/6
YT/61/6
¥1/61/6
¥1/61/6
YI/61/6
V1/6T1/6
Y1/61/6
¥T/61/6
¥1/61/6
¥T/61/6
YI/61/6
¥1/61/6

P1/61/6

arLya

¥1/91/6

DI-LCT DNIN¥YL HD
20-1L0T DNINXUYd HD
DO-LOT ONINEYd HO

AJIAE0 MWD

SNOIS ONINWYd ON DA
SLIATY LJAEHL IINY

NOISSIWWOD DNINNYIL
TILOETION STAI
JaAVEYd A¥d HOgY1

LNIVW TY.LI04
HE4 TYLYCd ATHIMOW
NOTIWIED dWYILS TYLIDIA

SLE00 ¥HONEJEA DITdnd
ESVET AVEd dAMvY

SEOIAYES HTOWWd HINOX

ONTLNIYdTIDONIS
NOILONGCHEd ISd
QHLIFLOYd STANNL
AQ/SAIC0D ¥ED dIUOSHIY
ASYHOUNG YALYM LSNONY

SEANEE -0L-DE ¥d
SHIYELLYE-BEZTIUS
AYELLYE dTIng
SHAOTD-dOHS
AYALIVE-€82ESATING
WA"9PE0TZETIY -20€95 OF
SYIAITYO-Z¥8TSUL
SEEJITYD EAVNH-ZTPBTISHI
HOLOY/WNUA~THFBTSUL
HOLVHANED -6 L ZESHWOD
LNAWETI 41V dINNI-£95Z2bdd
HOLYNUELTIY-90£9508
AYELIVE - $6 2P GNEId
SEAVEE -0L-DH Wa
AEELLVE ~NY'1d

HILYYLE -SLd¥d

NOILATIHRSHd HDIOANMI

HHLSIDEY MDEHD
ALNOCD AEAOLS

ONI 'SNIMNIOEL MOUHOTXO
IS 2 SOIHVED HAIS FHL NO

277 "LOIEd WI¥A HLISAI0

OTT DNILINSNGD NOLION
ONI YINYOJITYD 40 THLXAN
ONI EDIA¥IS TV¥HET VAYAEN

J7TT SNHOL YAVARN

(oMY} LT IOTE YIYAIN
YAANTIHG DITENE AEN

HOHL NOILVWMOANT AAN
SEDUNOSHY NYWLRH AZN
NOILYXYL 1480 AHN

ALFAVS DITANd LATA AHN
ALZAYS 21TANd J0 I4Ad AAN
SEDUNOSHY NYMWOE 1430 AN
HATTOULAWOD AEN

SINOO0¥D 3 HOTH NIWAY AXN

S1¥¥d OLOVY 3N

¥OaNIA

PT/91/6¢
ST£1Ed

LLZ08
9,08

SLToB

¥L208
TLEOR
ZLET08

TLE0s

0LZ08
69208
89208
L9208
agegne
S9Z08
FoZ08
£9zo8
29208

T8208

09Z08

UHGHON

HIEHD
toajeq uny
ioN jxodey




g

¥8'EL

00°59LT
S1'£02
00 gLe
ge’0es

[ %111

SE°8¢€

83 8bs
ST ZELBLE
Q0- g8

T8'S¥9'e

LE P8

95°00%

co"o8

0O B99'T
00°059
TYIOL
ASERD

sbeg

L4708 14

f+h g
027
S0’
86"
6E° ¥
LT
9% €T
[4 3
IT'¥%
sL's
66"
89°'1
S6°1
po°
IS 08
6T'C
S0 %
05
88T
60"

00°GLT
ST 02
00 gLe
V€ 063

00 ' 0F¥
CEEPT

007 %€
SZ'¥

g0’ gvs
SZ'ZZL 8LE
0058

S8 0E
96°¥Z9’EC

LE'PE

3909
0" 0%F

00" 8L
00°2
00'899°¢

LNOCHY

EESOL

TPS0L
T¥S0L
T¥504
I¥s0L
%504
TPsSOL
TeSOL
1v50L
TPs0L
TES0L
TPS0L
T¥S0L
bsoL
T#S0L
T#S0L
TIPsoL
T%50L
1¥S0L
TFS0L
9s0L

TF%0L
oB¥OL
T8¥0L
6ZF0OL

90S0L
20804

TESOL
TESOL

GESOL
BIHOL
6LY0L

0zZtoL
0Zv0OL

2L¥0L

6¥H0L
6¥70L

6250L
6Z50L

68%0L

HSNTHEL

P1/61/6

Y1/67/6
P1/61/6
PL/6T/6
YI/6T/%
¥1/61/6
PT/61/6
51/61/6
¥I/6T/6
YI/61/6
$T/61/6
¥T/6T/6
PI/ET/E
YI/61/6
YI/61/6
¥1/61/6
¥T/61/6
FI/GT/6
¥I/61/6
¥1/6T1/6
PL/6T/6

YI/61/6
YI/61/6
¥1/61/6
PT/61/6

PI/61/6
¥1/61/6

vI/6T/6
¥1/61/6

$1/61/6
P1/6T/6
PI/6T/6

YT/6T1/6
¥1/61/6

F1/61/6

P1/61/6
¥L/61/6

YI/61/6
YT/61/6

v1/61/6

HLYa

PL/9T/6

WSI¥NOL DA

ONINNYT

LI

YALNED WOINIS M7
{2A) 2¥IZ
HANOISSINWCD

¥a

HJL¥ESIT TYYLNED
HOSSESSY
LNEWIOTTATA ALINNKWOD
(DA) FYIg
AOCHEDOT/adIa
NIWGY/2ETIOULdN0D
dATUZHS

ar

JAINZHS

SAUOM DITEnd

(DA) 8914

AAAAODTA

HEE1D

T¥L/89I4

I8l LVWZVHIC/8 WOCULSIY
SHITI40S SWE

FAYISANYT I¥L

SHEUILAA

LETILE 3 WNCI-HAIJOD
T0-9L9ZN3 YWHLLOTE SISO
¥T0Z ‘01 1435 -8Z oNW
$I02/T2/8-0€/L STIYIDOS
PL-0€-8 NIHI NOILYDITdaY
ANCD "HIIAL0 NOSIVIT §udd

1 "aevod
I "YOIH4AY

0E8¥NES I INEWHS INIYS
SHAYIE A IM-IHOYOT IuL
Z/T 1IN HNIEO 2L-T ¥4
PIOE ‘0T Id¥S -8Z oN¥

EUYMIIS SIDHLYISIOT

NOILAIEDSH] HOIOAMI

YIALSIDEY MDIHD
ALNOCD AIU0OLS

0T NI SEDIAYAS TYE0TY DdS

dT NI S3DIANZES TIVHOTD DS
INI ANYJWOD IAH-INYS

ONI ODdand

NI ONTAYDEANYT NITED ONEY

NI HIIT JUYANV.LS HoNVITII

(Y3} DRI 0D NYDHOW AVY

W IANYS ’auodavy
DNI SHIDALVHELS dvd
ONI NOIIDNHELSNOD 3D

S LNEWIYILIY ATdWY 2I7Td0d

5 INBWAYILEY XATAWE DITHNG

I 0D EHONUNIA TYNOISSITJACHUd

NYTIdHEM0d

d OTHONY T INIVLEH
NI SNOILWDINNWWOD NINSNHS
JOUNZA

P1/91/60
STETHd

€6208

26208
16208
06208
68zZ08

88208
L8zog

SBE08
58208
Ld: XA

€8208

28208

T8Z08
0gzog

6L208
84208

HTIHON
ADEHD

9a'g uny
oM 3x0dey




S0 ¥5¢E

0SS '6¥E

00'68

00°50¢€

Q0 e6L

05'L89

8" 596 'H06

0SS LFT
ev vt
00°'SsZ6
Q0 s5¢

06 TLy
00007
¥ETSEG
00 0TI
TC'e8

2P ¥80°3

2014
IYLOL
ADIHD

6 abeg

00" 00T
00001
00° 0S8
00001
00" 0%
S6°8

05'6T

09°GZ¢

0s°L9
00'Z8e

Co 38
00t

ST €91
S8 TP

00° 66
00 0oL
0522
00'0%9
00- gz

oog
¥8° L6 V06

GsLwe
[AIEA A
0075286
00" s¢g
00" TLy
00001
FETSES
007 02T
To°¢ee
TL'es
LL%E
£L'8ts’'e
PP 81V'Z
TE"09
20 FTIL

£5° €12
e TS

LNOOWY

ZFS0L
Zvs0L
%504
TFS0L
Z¥s50L

€8¥0L
1X:3. 009
ELYOL

BEFOL
ZBYOL

0FS0L
0¥50L

95v0L
as¥voL

§ESOL
GESOL

8€504
8TS0L
8ES0L

9ES0L
L¥SOL

18%0L
vLPOL
L2ZS0L
SESOL
SS8¥0L
19%0L
LESOL
S9%0L
YESQOL
ZTS0L
21504
€Ts0L
2is0L
ZTs0L
CISoL

ZTS0L
TIS0L

#ENYAL

YI/6T/6
¥1/61/6
YT/61/6
YI/61/6
¥1/61/6

PI/6T/6
Y1/61/6
¥I/6T/6

YT/61/6
¥1/61/6

¥1/61/6
PI/61/6

¥T/61/8
?T/61/6

¥1/61/6
VI/61/6

¥T/61/6
PI/6T/86
PL/BT/6

Y1/61/8
P1/61/6

¥1/6T/6
¥T/6T/6
¥1/61/6
¥1/61/6
PI/6T/6
¥1/61/6
vi/61/8
TI/E1/6
¥1/61/6
PT/6T/6
PI/61/6
¥T/6T/6
PT/6T/8
YL/E1/6
»1/61/6

¥1/61/6
FI/61/58

HLY¥a

¥1/91/6

# G/fd

SLNEAT ? ANISILS LNIOOT
SINZAR Z AMIJILS INIDOA
ANZJILS INZOOGT

SINIAT T CNEJILS INEDCd
JI7 BIT AV § J4ATHIHS
HIL SHWYH

SNOLLOE SEWYH

SHNMEL

J0LK TYLNIY ANYL EFL¥M
LSAS ¥ELTIA OZTH £L INIVW

P10Z ‘01 IdAS-8Z ONY

AAUI~ N¥EA 50LT
S/M- NHEEI SOLT

162 '0T L4HS - 82 ONY

¥I0Z '01 14ES -8Z o0V

Y10z 0T 1d3S-82 20V
AEAIEDEE X¥1 AL¥EJO¥d

FSVE JLYDIYODY

¥IYDO

SHAINS FSNOHINO ¥ TEWYD

PLOT ‘0T IdIS-8% D0V

MOTd-A

song

SLHOIT 15 ALID YINISHIA

ALYWNILEE

WSTHNOL DA

§-15 AYIZ Q0LE-€PE

TYL SMM DITHNd ¥OEEC-£FE

SNOLLYSINNWWOD-2T¥9-262
HOISSIWNWOD g8960-6%8
dor E960-L%8
HAAYODEY LSEQ-LEbE

dTIAZD WHOD 9%60-LbB
Ya ¥960-L%8

NOIL4AI¥ISEd HILOAMI

FILSIDAE ADFHO
ALNQOD XZHOLS

ety

2TT ¥IYAEN 40 ALIWUOJIINO

SAS YEIVM SMOOVHEW FEUDOMNHL

ONI SHANLNHA-IHEL

LNINIAOUAWI TVHINID IN¥IL

SAOEMCO) FNOLSEWOYL ZHL

SESIEdEIING MYESE NOS

LOIYLSEId TOO0HDIE ©D 4§
SHYUOM 2ITdRd 0D 18

UTLNED ONEA ¥ JO0s SHLIWS
¥ad 577 SEIYISNANT MDIAS
YHEd TYNOILYN HLVLS dEATIS
SHINISNANI FIVLS d4IJATIS
ONT TORLNGD LSdd WHHHAIS
02 VAMOd DI4IDVd VIUEIS
JELYYOSUOONT HIY vHIdLS

ONI SEDIANAS TYEQID D088

DNI SEDIATES 1¥9g0ID DdS
YOTNIA

¥T/91/60
STETEE

TTE08

0TEC®

60£08

80ECE

L0€08

90€08

S0€08

vOE08
E0E08
2O0E0®
T0€08
0008
66208
86208
Lezos
96208

56208

¥6zo8

HIFWON

HIEHD
ajeq uny
oN jacdsy




o1

TP 995°805'T

S0'LEZE'E

06 SET

00’82

00°0S5L'%

ELANA
ogrce
S5'EL6°T
00-g2¢
00'999°T

00°316'¢

00°'BBI'E

82095

6E'LEB

TYLOL
ADFHD

abeg

TYLOL S3D3HD

50" §BE
0§ °SBL
6VTE50°Y

96 °101
SE6' €€

oo ge

0552’y
05" L8Y

S2'ZTE'T
0002
S5'ZZ6°1
00°5zZ¢€
00°999'1

00°00T'1
00" bE
00'059°%
00* 00T
00°z¢g

o0 voL
00 €51
00°90T°2
00'9TZ
00’6

BZ' 099

gorot
6¢"°
00'0¢€
00" 08¢
00 0s
004

LNOQWY

£0S0L
£080L
£0S0L

S050L
9870L

LEVQL

¥0S0L
vosoL

09%0L
£5%0L
8EFOL
11504
PEVOL

PPS0L
¥soL
hS0L
¥PSOL
vrSoL

£P50L
EFS0L
EFSOL
£€bsoL
£¥S0L

yeYvOL

TFSOL
ZvsoL
2¥50L
[4: 3113
cPSoL
Z¥SoL

HENWEL

P1/6T/6
¥1/61/6
YI/E1/8

YT/61/8
¥1/61/6

¥1/61/6

¥1/61/6
¥I/6T/6

YT/61/6
¥I/61/6
¥1/61/8
¥I/61/6
¥1/61/8

YI/6T/6
PI/6T/6
¥I/61/6
YI/6T/6
YI/ET/6

Y1/61/6
PT/6T/6
PT/61/6
PL/6T/6
¥T/61/6

¥1/61/86

PI/6T/6
VI/ET/6
vI/61/6
YI/6T/6
YI/ET/6
$T/61/6

[0 A

PT/9T/6

q5vd LOT-4 HD
A5V¥E LOT-4 HD
H5YE D9Y¥ FdId HOA

NOILYLS HSVMEAY TOCd
8T680T-€3T ANY

OIZd0 HINOISSIWWOD dVEX T

TUL ‘'AMOE NOILIANCD avod
I¥L ‘A¥MNS NOILIGNGCD Qvod

OWAH O¥Ed SOLT
WHOATTIOD TYLOL

IE020Y STVEN JOINAS IMMOT

BIDIAMES ISIAEE0T

L IdE8 -ST onv
PL0E ‘5 HEAWELAES
¥10Z ‘0T 1498 - g% onY

I0Z '0T1 14E$-82 NV
5817ddNS SWE

A20LSWOD FHI 40 FISVL
SEOWY WYD ET0Z TINY doud
ANEJTLS LNIZDOd
NOILIOdSNTEL

NOILAI¥OSET HDIOANI

YELSILDIE HUDEHD
ALNOCD AE¥OLS

ONI HLAISNOD d€ €208
3NI TY0IAEW H3Z ZZc08
g TYYS EHSNYWIOOM 1cE0s

ONI SAIHACY TOOM 0ZTEO®

0D A184NS YAYARN NYALSEM 6TE08
YT TYININNOYIANT NYELSIM 8TeE08
AYES HOINES ALNOOS HOHSYM LTECR
YT 0D HOHSWM o7€08

BEALVIJOSEY ¥ HINTYM STE08

ONI S¥N0L ALID WINISHIA FTI€08

02 WY FIAONYL ¥ YINIOAUIA ETE£08

NOILYNOAHOD FUWOVAIA <1eD8

HOGNZA HITHAN
MOEHD

¥1/91/60 ¢ @3eg uny

STETEd 'ON 3jr0day




HANOI S5 IWHOD

PI/61/6 ELVA MDAHD T¥ G95°805'T TYLICL SHDEHD

NCOILIIVZTHOHLOV NV MEIATY A0 LNIWIDAF IMONIDY




T

Y/

EL'S9L°6

££759L°8

IYLCL
qa¥n

abedg

66" %9
66661
86 FL
66" %9

0% 64T
9€' 98

€ 182
82°9T
66" 9¢€
60°80¢€'T
98° %2
00°09
£1°66
LE'E

£ LS
00°0T
00°0S
00" ZST’2
0052

05 S8

96 SE
66" b2
Lo's

LB 0E
444
82’60
68" €T
9.°88%
00°00¢€
96° 5%
00°0SL'T
S8 TV

0P PSS T
¥0°zZ
S0'ee
£1'66
00'S¢E
00°L8

08 0€T

LNOCHY

HEYT

59¢
53¢
s8¢
A
s8¢
0%z
652
652
65¢€
992
L
vacz
¥oe
98¢
€9¢g
[4:14
(414
(414
oo
vee
02z
65¢
B8ST
65T
652
95¢
39¢
852
09z
6EFT
19¢
15-14
£92
95¢
114
95¢
852
992
29z

HENTHEL

7d

UATTOALIHOD

~

TYOHLNY ONV MAIAZY 40 INZWIDAITMONADY

¥1/61/6
¥1/6T/6
¥1/61/6
¥1/61/6
PL/6T/6
YT/6T/6
¥T/6T/6
PT/6T/6
PT/61/6
¥1/61/6
¥T/6T/6
PI/61/6
¥1/61/6
¥1/61/86
¥1/6T/6
¥I/61/6
YI/6T/6
¥1/61/6
FL/61/6
¥1/6T/6
F1/61/6
PI/6T/6
YI/6T/6
YT/6T/6
YT/6T/6
¥I/6T/6
¥T/61/6
YI/6T/6
¥T/61/6
YI/6T/6
PL/6T/6
YL/6T/6
¥I/61/%
YI/6T/%
¥1/61/6
¥1/61/6
PI/61/6
¥1/61/6
¥1/61/86

JLva

A¥ILILYE 540

XMELLYE §dn

LI QUYOHAHY SYIAYEAS
A¥ALI¥E sdn

MADOT JATYTAHS O4AWOLOD
ONAT ¥ISHEL HATIYISIOET
SAQVIE YAdAIHD HDA
SAAYIE WHIIIHD HOA
YALTIE ¥IV-SI¥YIOd
dITddNS SAUE /ACLEHY NY
LIS0dEA ANOD

L% J0 WAISNW AN

WON04

TTENIN NOZVINY

d¥W ¥0d SNId dOHS LJdID
MHLYM JOHS 12ID

HYIONVHOEAWN dOHS I1JIID
YYNIWES % LSYIAYIHH ¥H
T1/6 ONILHEW DVARIS ATE
THL A7IE O¥WdQTS Y04 Sv9D

UTOAYHD ENOHZ ¥¥D

TLILOMHE "dHNNL-TOLD ¥4
YOO aNTIOU-NUHE SOLT
dL IVWEVHTE/8 -SHHONNT
H0O08 NOILALILSNOD AN
HOTICL QL LICIND
IAE90T NIALLIHM NVEYNHA
SELVMNI d0d IINWA

ay LNIdE

‘OA NI LEEW DEY NIVWOQ
HWOOE AEMD0L HO¥E THWYD
YHCHOOEY YOJID 'T¥AN
YISANYA SNEHAHLE

EENE WNE0d DEAD ~TALOH
ALYId JWYN

ID Y040 STIVHL LSNaOMVS
SINIWDId FTHUYRH

NOILAIYDSEA

FILSIDEY q¥¥d FSYHIENI

ALNNOD AZYOLS

ANVIO-C8TFIS
ANYIA-E8TFTS
ANYII-t8TVI9
ANYAJ-£8TF19
9-TZ6e¥LBEBY

S6E TT0 BUTY NHLLIHM
IO¥d YHAWNIIA-YILEIAS
O¥d UHAWEEA-YILLIYIAS
STAYHD IN-VILIEAS
SB809608D%# HIWS

¥d¥ THLOH dNOWaId
dNOD N2ISEAd dANQHIEY
TEONNY 2802 dNOWMAZY
JEAACHEY

AYMTM ©d

SHLINE &4

SAIGNYD S8y pd

WO¥d HLEYE WOLSND Hd
VAHNN IN¥EQES0
YAYAEN TILOH INHO0YEQ
TT/6 NOYAHHD ENNOE50
ADYHS OIATH-NIAENW
SYEAQD INIA S.EMOT
DONIDVY LIKWNS-MHOSYD
0T/6 STMOT-MNOSYL
AVMHENS -S5IIdND D
''LEZTETS0TOPTOAH ANI
AONIDHY LILYAH
SAILYISTOAT NIVE
NISOA

FTOINCHD 48 aad

AQavad C2 ada

NNI ONYTIEATIS M2
60STH¥H MOEHD

FINNIC YO4D
NIHLSIMLSIE -NIAEN'D
S400TIVO-YHOLOE
SYYETO# HINW

PELFEOH TYAOHdAY
LNGWAYd

+[B3CL PABON

GEY0 TYID¥EWWOD FNOQ STTEM 8¢

# EDIOANI IddIC-aNOg

HOANTA YAGWON
od
¥T/91/60 a3egq uny

ISogbstd :ON jIodey



4

TYLOL
a- 00

abeg

YANOTSS TWWOD

NYWEIYHD
LNMOWYE HSNVIL CAR-{a) HOILAI¥)SHEG

FILIIDIY TUYD FSYENING
ALNQQD AEYOLS

# EDIOANI I4HEd-aNOJI

YOANIA

¥1/9T/60
LScebsdd

JEENON

od
t 93eg unyg
10N axoday




T

AUYd SANWIEDIH

LNIWAYA %05 TYILINI

2beg

NOIIdTHDSEA

YENOISSIWWOD

4Lva NOILVZINOHLIOY ANY MITANE J0 LINFWIDATTMONNOV

08" PP '6F TYLOL SHOFHD QEdAL
¥I/61/6 09 %¥P’S DNIAWE 0 % ¥ STEO8
LAGCD € DNIAVA )-8 44 -1 8ZST 5302
FI/6T/6 00 0OL'E® L TIVHIIW ‘¥3IIXvE vZe0g
Z00¥ ASNOHLEN0D corooL'eYy Lzez ST0Z
HEDICANI F1va TELOL LNQOWY HWYN ZOONHEA #OHODEM WVEA dHEUWAN

AVFED  MOIHD
YILSIDEY SADEHD JIALL
ALNAOD AZHOLS

TYOSId ¥DHHD
¥I/61/60 ¢ Saeg uny
06£18d :oN 3zodoy




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: {ol 1 { Y4 Estimate of time required: 0 -5

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings

2. Recommended motion; None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda)
I move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request)

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff sammary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally

approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Liegal review required: = None

““District Attorney

8. Reviewed by: /& :. ;
X__ Dgpartment Ji€ad

W‘l County Manager Other agency review:
(9. Board action:

[] Approved Approved with Modifications
[]

Departmnent Name: Community Development

Denied Continued

L e—
[ -

Agenda Item No. b




Storey County Community Bebelopment
Buginess

P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 + (775) 847-0966 * Fax (775) 847-0935 « buslic@storeycounty.org

Licensging

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office September 29, 2014
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Stacey Bucchianeri

Please add the following item(s) to the October 7, 2014, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

A. PEPS EQUIPMENT - Contractor / 1953 N Warren Road ~ San Jacinto, CA (equipment rental)

B. ZULILY, INC. — General / 3200 USA Parkway (ecommerce) TRI
C. T & T ELECTRIC, INC. - Contractor / PO Box 7377 ~ Reno (electrical contractor)

D. ARH ARCHAEOLOGY - Home Business / PO Box 784 ~ Virginia City (archaeological consultant)

E. HARRIS INDUSTRIAL GASES — General / 236 East Sydney (welding equip supply) TRI
F. LEE’S PEST CONTROL - Contractor / 21 Van Fleet Drive ~ Yerington (pest control)

G. AMERICAN EQUIPMENT, INC. — Contractor / 1315 Greg Street #114 ~ Sparks {crane manufacturer)
H. PROFICIENT HEATING & AIR - Contractor / 385 Freeport Blvd. #9 ~ Sparks (hvac contractor)

1. SUNTEC CONCRETE, INC, - Contractor / 2221 West Shangri La Road ~ Phoenix, AZ (concrete cont.)
J. WOODSTOVE DISTRIBUTORS — Contractor / 881 Tahoe Blvd ~ Incline Village (fireplace sales/install)
K. WWC LICENSE, LLC — General / One Verizon Way ~ Basking Ridge, NJ

Inspection Required
ec: Shannon Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Assessor’s Office

Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Fritz Klingler, Fire Dept.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Aection Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: DiScussion/Possible Action: Amend the Agreement for the sale of Untreated Water
between Comstock Mining, Incorporated and Storey County Water and Sewer System.

2. Recommended motion: Motion to approve amending the agreement for the sale of Untreated
Water between Comstock Mining Incorporated and Storey County Water and Sewer
System

3. Prepared by: Mike Nevin

Department: Public Works Telephone: 847-0958

4. Staff summary: See Page 2

5. Supporting materials:
ATTACHED:
A. Amended Agreement

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund:

Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head - Department Name: Storey County Water and Sewer System
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
| Denied [

Continued

bt bt




Staff summary:

The agreement with CMI is being amended so that CMI will advance Storey County
$277,225.00 for use in assisting the county with needed improvements and rehabilitation
of the Five Mile Reservoir. The Five Mile Reservoir rehabilitation provides a benefit to the
county in the form of increased usage of its water allotment from the Marlette agreement. It
will provide for the impoundment of nearly 8 million gallons of raw water that will be
beneficial for firefighting operations as well as providing for a critically important safety
cushion should line breaks or system repairs be needed on the aged and fragile sections of
the siphon between Lakeview Estates and Five Mile Reservoir.

The amended agreement allows for CMI to recapture these advance funds over a period of
up to 10.4 years with no interest. The payback comes from the profit side of the County
selling water to CMI.,

The County profits over and above its costs for purchase of raw water, including debt
service by a minimum of $ 1.57 per 1,000 gallons used by CMI. Under the amended
agreement $ 1.02.05 (65%) of the $ 1.57 per 1,000 gallons will be credited back to CMI
until the advance has been consumed thru water nsage. If CMI uses more water than the 26
million plus gallons, then the positive balance at the end of each year provides for
accelerated increase and the payback period shortens. .

The amended agreement guarantees that CMI will purchase 26,068,080 gallons of raw
water. This guaranteed purchase amounts to an estimated $ 40,926.89 in net revenue to the
Storey County Water and Sewer System annually.

This agreement is non-transferrable and non-assignable. If CMI ceases to operate then the
funds or balance thereof are kept by the County. There is no recourse.

Please refer to the entire agreement for additional information.

Agenda Item No. —:l"




AMENDED AGREEMENT FOR THE SALE OF UNTREATED WATER

An Agreement Between
COMSTOCK MINING, INCORPORATED
P.O. Box 1118, Virginia City, NV 89440
Phone: 847-5272 - Fax: 847-4762
And
STOREY COUNTY WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM
P.O. Box 435, Virginia City, NV 89440
Phone: 847-0958 - Fax: 847-0947

WHEREAS, Storey County is a governmental subdivision of the State of Nevada and therefore a
public agency under NRS 277.100; and

WHEREAS Storey County, as a separate board, owns and operates the Storey County Water and
Sewer System; and

'WHEREAS Comstock Mining, Inc. is a Nevada Corporation in good standing with the State of
Nevada and Storey County; and

WHEREAS Comstock Mining, Inc. holds a business license in Storey County and is served at its
property in American Flats by the Storey County Water and Sewer System; and

WHEREAS the Storey County Water and Sewer System and Comstock Mining Inc. entered into
an agreement dated April 3rd, 2013 and now wish to amend that agreement; and

WHEREAS the Storey County Water and Sewer System purchases untreated water from the State
of Nevada through its Marlette Lake Water System at the current unit rate per thousand gallons of $0.55
going to $0.75 July 1%, 2015, plus a monthly service charge of $1,690.24 for system wide improvements
for the delivery of said water from the Marlette Lake Water System; and

WHEREAS the Storey County Water Sewer System currently has access to over 150 acre feet or
more than it uses annually and; it would be of financial benefit for the Storey County Water and Sewer
System to sell a portion of this excess allocation to Comstock Mining, Inc. Therefore it is in the best
interest of the County to sell a portion of the excess annual allocation of untreated water to Comstock
Mining, Inc. for mining and milling purposes located at Comstock Mining’s American Flats processing
facility; and

WHEREAS the intention of the terms and conditions of this Agreement are in no way a
conveyance of guaranteed water rights from the Storey County Water and Sewer System to Comstock
Mining, Inc. This Agreement is intended only for the purpose of the sale of untreated water from the
Storey County Water and Sewer System to Comstock Mining, Inc. at a discounted rate agreed to by both
parties; and

WHEREAS the terms and conditions of this Agreement will in no way compromise the
delivery of water necessary for use by other customers of the Storey County Water and Sewer System in
the communities of Virginia City, Gold Hill, and Silver City.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein, the parties agree as
follows:




1. PARTIES. This Agreement for the Sale of Untreated Water (“Agrecment”) is made by
and between Comstock Mining, Inc. (“CMI”) and the Storey County Water and Sewer System (“Storey
County™). CMI and the Storey County Water and Sewer System are hereinafter referred together as “the
parties.”

2. AGREEMENT TERM. This Agreement becomes effective on October 7th, 2014. The
parties may conduct an annual review of this Agreement on or before July 1st, of each following year.
However, unless sooner terminated by either party as set forth in paragraph 13 ("TERMIN ATION™), this
Agreement remains in existence perpetually, and automatically renews on July 1st, of each year
thereafter.

3. DEFINITIONS. “Untreated Water” is water from the Marlette Lake System that has not
been treated by the chemicals necessary for distribution as drinking water.

4. LOCATION AND DELIVERY OF SERVICE. The Storey County Water and Sewer
System shall deliver untreated water to CMI using an existing connection just below the Ophir Grade road
at a location approximately 2.5 miles southwest of the Ophir Grade intersection with SR342 (“Virginia
City Pipeline”). This Agreement pertains only to this connection serving the American Flats mining
operations, primarily located at 1200 American Flats Rd., Virginia City, NV.

5. COST OF SERVICE AND RATES.

a. CMI agrees to purchase a minimum of approximately 26,068,160 gallons per year, of
untreated water at the following rate:

i.  Monthly meter base rate for existing 2” meter - $93.81
ii.  Monthly meter base rate for new 4" meter, as described in paragraph 12 - $293.39
iii.  Charge for gallons consumed - $2.39 per thousand gallons tifl June 30th, 2015
iv.  After July 1%, 2015 - $ 2.59 per thousand gallons consumed
v.  Any gallons over 16,292,550 through 26,068,080 not consumed in the 12 month
period shall be billed at the delta between what the Storey County Water and
Sewer System charges and what is charged by the State of Nevada which is $
1.57/1,000 gallons.
vi.  The current 12 month period will be extended cumulatively to June 30th, 2015

b. If the rates charged to the Storey County Water and Sewer System are increased by the State
of Nevada, Marlette Lake Water System, the Storey County Water and Sewer System shall
review the terms of this Agreement to determine if the rates listed herein require
modification. If the Storey County Water and Sewer System determines that modification is
required, the Storey County Water and Sewer System shall provide CMI with written notice
30 days in advance of any increase that may be necessary due to the State’s rate increases.

6. SERVICE FLOW RESTRICTION. The Storey County Water and Sewer System shall
restrict CMI’s flow from the Virginia City pipeline connection to a flow not to exceed 150 GPM as
calculated and shown in the base design scenario in the “Comstock Water” Plan (defined in paragraph
10). CMI must adhere to this base design calculation, to assure that the pipeline is not compromised by
any negative pressures that could occur to higher than allowed flows unless a higher rate is shown to be
safe by The Storey County Water and Sewer System’s engincer.




7. ADDITIONAL LIMITATIONS ON SERVICE. The Storey County Water and Sewer
System shall not be required to deplete its own water resources, services, and facilities to the detriment of
its normal water and sewer responsibilities. Any provision, duty, or obligation in this Agreement that
causes such detriment is subject to modification, severance, or termination.

8. BILLING. The Storey County Water and Sewer Systetn shall bill CMI on a monthly
basis at the above referenced rates. However, if in the 12 month period now commencing on July 1% 2015
following the effective date of this Agreement the delivery of untreated water to CMI is lower than the
agreed to minimum purchase of 26,068,080 Gallons Annuaily, the Storey County Water and Sewer
System shall bill CMI for the difference between 26,068,080 gallons and 16,292,550 Gallons at a rate of
$1.57 per thousand gallons. This paragraph applies to every subsequent 12 month period of this
Agreement.

9. METER READING. The Storey County Water and Sewer System shall read the water
meter serving CMI on a monthly basis and by the 10w day of every month; provided, however, that access
to the site is not hampered. Should access be unfeasible due to snow covered roads and/or other
blockages, the Storey County Water and Sewer System shall in good faith estimate the meter count based
upon the prior month’s usage. The Storey County Water and Sewer System shall read the currently
existing water meter until the new meters are installed as required in paragraphs 11 and 12 of this
Agreement.

10. SERVICE INTERRUPTION. In the event that the flow of water is interrupted due to a
break and/or significant leak the parties agree that the water flow to CMI may be temporarily shut off. If
any other need arises, the Storey County Water and Sewer System may also, in good faith, interrupt,
restrict, or temporarily shut off service to CMI. CMI shall hold the Storey County Water and Sewer
System harmless for any negative effects that may result from an interruption in service.

1. INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS. The parties agree that all services to be performed
are specifically described in this Agreement and its incorporated documents. The parties further agree that
this Agreement incorporates Job Number 0507 “Comstock Water,” which was designed by Farr West
Engineering and approved on January 13, 2013 by Storey County Public Works and/or the Storey County
Water and Sewer System (“Comstock Water Plan™).

12. CMI IMPROVEMENTS. CMI shall install and complete improvements in accordance
with the Comstock Water Plan; the federal, state, and local regulations governing water delivery and
service; and as further described below:

a. The parties agree that improvements to the upper tank may be delayed and subject to
improvements at the Five Mile Reservoir. If CMI does not complete the Five Mile Reservoir
improvements within thirty-six (36) months from the effective date of this Agreement, CMI
shall commence and complete the improvements at its upper tank location on Ophir Grade.

13. STOREY COUNTY IMPROVEMENTS. The Storey County Water and Sewer System
shall provide, fund, and install one 4” standard meter at the Ophir line location according to the Comstock
Water Plan. The Storey County Water and Sewer System shall install the meter when CMI makes the
upper line improvements. The Storey County Water and Sewer System shall check the meter in
accordance with paragraph 8 of this Agreement (“METER READING”) and reconcile this reading
against the lower meter to check for any line loss.




a. The Storey County Water and Sewer System is going to improve the water system at 5 mile
reservoir via a contract awarded to A & K Earth Movers, and to that end Comstock is going
to advance payment for water in the amount of $ 277,225.00 in amounts as determined by the
County Manger. Comstock will pay The Storey County Water and Sewer System up to
$7,225.00 in November 2014 and any other amounts due as billed by the County starting
January 2™, 2015.

b. The payback for those funds will be discounted from the monthly bills to Comstock
comimencing with the month of July 2015 until completed. The discounted rate will be at
65% of the delta (1.57/1000 gallons) between what the Storey County Water and Sewer
System pays for the water from the State of Nevada and the rate it charges CMI. That equals
a monthly credit commencing in July 2015 of $ 1.0205 per 1,000 gallons. At the bare
minimum wvsage the payback should be 10.42 years.

14. TERMINATION.

a. The parties may terminate this Agreement by mutual consent of both parties, or unilaterally
by either party, with or without cause.

b. To effectuate termination unilaterally, the terminating party shall give notice 30 calendar days
prior to the date of desired termination. Furthermore, the terminating party shall explicitly
state the date of desired termination in the notice. If notice is properly given, termination
becomes effective on the date provided in the termination notice.

¢. To effectuate termination by mutual consent, the parties shall together determine the exact
date of termination. The parties shall memorialize the termination date in writing signed by a
designated representative from each party. Termination becomes effective on the date stated
in the writing.

d. If authorization is necessary to terminate this Agreement, the terminating party or parties
shall seek approval by their governing body.

e. Before terminating this Agreement, the parties shall endeavor, in good faith, to provide each
other sufficient time to adjust and reorganize their respective water needs and operations.

15. NOTICE. The parties shall give notices or other communications required or permitted to
be given under this Agreement in writing, and deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally in
hand, by telephonic facsimile with simultaneous regular mail, or mailed certified mail, return receipt
requested, postage prepaid on the date posted, and addressed to the other party at the address set forth
above. Either party may change its address by written notice to the other, to be given in compliance with
the requirements stated herein.

16. INDEMNIFICATION

a. The parties shall each assume liability for the negligent actions of or failure to act by their
respective Boards, officers, agents, employees, volunteers and contractors, which may arise
out of this Agreement. Further, in executing this Agreement and to the extent permitted under
Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 41, and without waiving any provision thereof, the parties
hereto agree to hold harmless, indemnify and defend each other from all damages, costs or
expenses which any of them shall become obligated to pay by reason of liability imposed by
law for property damage or personal injury to or death of persons arising or resulting from the




negligent acts or omissions of their respective Boards, officers, agents, employees,
volunteers, and contractors which may arise under this Agreement.

b. The indemnification obligation under this paragraph is conditioned upon receipt of written
notice by the indemnifying party within 30 days of the indemnified party’s actual notice of
any actual or pending claim or cause of action. The indemnifying party shall not be liable to
hold harmless any attorneys' fees and costs for the indemnified party’s chosen right to
participate with legal counsel.

17. INSURANCE. Each party shall provide for their financial responsibilities regarding their
respective obligations, rights, and liabilities hereunder through the purchase of insurance or the provision
of an adequate self-funded program pursuant to Nevada Law.

18. INDEPENDENCE. The parties are associated with each other only for the purposes and
to the extent set forth in this Agreement and its incorporated documents. In respect to performance of
services pursuant to this Agreement, each party is and shall be independent and distinct from the other
party and, subject only to the terms of this Agreement. The parties shall also have the sole right to
supervise, manage, operate, control, and direct performance of the details incident to its duties under this
Agreement. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed to create a partnership or
joint venture, to create relationships of an employer-employee or principal-agent, or to otherwise create
any liability for one agency whatsoever with respect to the indebtedness, liabilities, and obligations of the
other agency or any other party. o

19. SEVERABILITY. If any provision contained in this Agreement is held to be
unenforceable by a court of law or equity, this Agreement shall be construed as if such provision did not
exist and the non-enforceability of such provision shall not be held to render any other provision or
provisions of this Agreement unenforceable.

20. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE. Time is of the essence with respect to all provisions within
this Agreement. The parties shall, in good faith, timely perform the duties and obligations set forth in this
Agreement. Any substantial delay in performance by cither party shall constitute a material breach of this
Agreement.

21. ASSIGNMENT AND DELEGATION. Neither party shall assign, transfer, or delegate
any rights, obligations or duties under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party.

22. PUBLIC RECORDS. Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents may be open
to public inspection and copying. The parties will have the duty to disclose unless a particular record is
made confidential by law or a common law balancing of interests.

23. CONFIDENTIALITY. Each party shall keep confidential all information, in whatever
form, produced, prepared, observed or received by that party to the extent that such information is
confidential by law or otherwise required by this Agreement.

24, PROPER AUTHORITY. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person
executing this Agreement on behalf of each party has full power and authority to enter into this
Agreement and that the parties are authorized by law to perform the services set forth in the Agreement.




25. GOVERNING LAW; JURISDICTION. This Agreement and the rights and obligations of
the parties herein shall be governed by, and construed according to the laws of the State of Nevada. The
parties agree that any proceedings with respect to the performance or enforcement of this Agreement shall
be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in the State of Nevada either in the First Judicial District
Court, the Third Judicial District Court, or the United States District Court in Reno.

26. THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement shall not be construed as or be deemed to be an
Agreement for the benefit of any third party or parties not specifically named herein, and no third party or
parties shall have a right of action hereunder for any cause whatsoever.

27. ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND MODIFICATION. This Agreement and its incorporated
document(s) constitute the entire agreement of the parties and such are intended as a complete and
exclusive statement of the promises, representations, negotiations, discussions, and other agreements that
may have been made in connection with the subject matter hereof. Unless an incorporated document to
this Agreement specificaily displays a mutual intent to amend a particular part of this Agreement, general
conflicts in language between any such document and this Agreement shall be construed consistent with
the terms of this Agreement 23,

28.  COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterpéu‘f copies,
and each of which so executed, irrespective of the date of execution and delivery, shall be deemed to be
an original, and all such counterparts together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to bé signed and inténd
to be legally bound thereby.

Comstock Mining Inc. _ Date
Corrado DeGasperis

President

The Storey County Water and Sewer System Chairman Date
Marshall McBride

Approved as to form by:

Storey County District Attorney Date
William A. Maddox




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approve bid award for Public Works Project No. ST-2014-323 - Five Mile and Divide
Reservoir Rehabilitation.

2. Recommended motion: Motion to approve bid award for Public Works Project No. ST-2104-
323 to A & K Earth Mover’s Inc. in the amount of $880,372.00 for the Five Mile and
Divide Reservoir Rehabilitation.

3. Prepared by: Mike Nevin
Department: Public Works Telephone: 847-0958

4. Staff summary: See Page 2

5. Supporting materials:
ALL ATTACHED:
A. PWP ST-2014-323 Bid Tabulation / Comparisons
B. Project Summary Funding
C. A &K Earth Mover’s Bid Submittal Documents
D. Farr West Engineering — Letter of Recommendation of Award

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: YES Fund: Infrastructure / Capital Projects

Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

3. Reviewed by:
' Department Head Department Name: Storey County Water System

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

——
S | B




Staff summary:

Storey County Public Works and the Storey County Water System have been working with
the County’s Engineer of Record, Farr West Engineering since 2011 to design, engineer
and develop plans for the rehabilitation of the Five Mile and Divide Reservoir’s. These
two reservoirs have been part of the water distribution system since the 1870’s, providing
combined critical storage of nearly 10 million gallons of raw water received from the
Marlette System.

In 2003 the Five Mile Reservoir was drained for cleaning and maintenance. To
accommodate draining, the northwest corner was cut, compromising the integrity and seal
of the dam. When this cut was re-constructed, proper compaction practices were not
followed resulting in the reservoir inability to contain water. Tt was taken off-line.

In 2012 the Divide Reservoir was drained when it was discovered that leakage was
occurring along the east side embankment. Over time the bentonite seal has deteriorated
and the decision was made to take this reservoir off-line as well.

Following field investigations, data gathering and geotechnical analysis it was determined
that repairing and lining the reservotrs with HDPE 60mil textured liner would be the most
cost efficient repair. Since both reservoir’s are determined to be of critical importance to
the overall water distribution system this project was determined to be of high importance
on the county infrastructure project list.

Engineering and design were completed in August 2014. The project was put out to public
bid on August 29, 2014. Bids were received and publicly opened on September 18, 2014.
Four (4) responsive/responsible bids were received for the project. All bids were
determined to be in compliance with applicable provisions of NRS 332 and 338. Bids
ranged from a high of $1,199,444.33 to a low of $1,023,566.00. The lowest
responsive/responsible bidder was A & K Earth Mover’s Inc. In order to bring the low bid
within range of available funding, discussions were held between staff, project engineer
and the apparent low bidder. These discussions resulted in the removal of items deemed
non-critical to the base bid, resulting in a reduction of $143,194.00, thus the base bid award
of $880,372.00. It was determined that none of the four (4) bid alternatives totaling
$172,058.00 are of critical project construction importance and are not included in this
award of bid.

Base Bid Breakdown:

Five Mile Reservoir - $544,450.00

Divide Reservoir - $335,992.00
Additional information regarding project funding can be found in the attached supporting
project funding sheet.

Agenda Item No. 8




CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

5-MILE RESERVOIR AND DIVIDE RESERVOIR LINING
PWP No. ST-2014-323

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

AUGUST 2014

_ OWNER: :
Storey County Public Works
"~ P.OBox435
100 Toll Road
Virginia City, Nevada 89440
{775) 847-0958

ENGINEER:

| FARR WEST
ENGINEERING
. Farr West Expincering
5442 Longley Lang, Suite A
Reno, Nevada 89511
{775) 851-4788
(775) 8510766 FAX




STOREY COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS

NOTICE INVITING SEALED PROPOSALS (BIDS)

5-MILE RESERYOIR AND DIVIDE RESERVOIR LINING
PWP No. $T-2014-323
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Storey County, as Owner, invites and will receive sealed proposals (bids),
including any .and all addenda, in a seated envelope addressed and delivered to:

Farr West Engineering

5-Mile Reservoir and Divide Reservoir Lining Project
5442 Longley Lane, Suite A

Reno, Nevada 89511

up to the hour of 2:00 p.m. on September 18,2014, Bids, thersfore, will be subsequently opened and read aloud
publicly in the office of Farr West Engineering, in Reno, Nevada, It is anticipated that the Storey County Board
of Commissioners will consider awarding the Contract on October 7, 2014 and work is anticipated to commence
mid-October 2014.

This project includes the installation of polyethylene liners systems at both the 5-Mile and Divide Reservoirs. Site
appurtenances included site fencing, surface treatments, elestrical, SCADA improvements and confrols. The
Engineer’s Base Bid estimate for the project is $606,000.00 A non-mandatory pre-bid conference will be held at
10:00a.1. on September 11, 2014 at the Storey County Public Works Office, 100 Toll Road, Virginda City
Nevada, with 2 site visit to follow. Interested parties are strongly encouraged to be in attendance.

The Contract Documents may be examined and downloaded for free at the Farr West Bid Room at

hitpy//farrwestengineering,com/bidroom.htipl, and riay bé examined af Nevada Blue Plan Room, Reno NV. The

Contract Documents may be purchased at Nevada Blue for the cost of printing,

Questiens regarding this project shafl be directed to: Mr. Chuck Reno, P.E., Farr West Engineering, 5442 Longley
Lane, Suite A, Reno, Nevada 89511, Phene: (775) 8514788, and Fax: (775) 8510766,

chuck@farrwestengineéring.com.

All bidders shall be licensed and qualified by the Nevada State Contractor’s Board to do the type of work
contemplated for this project prior to the time of opening of said bids and shall be skilled and regularly engaged in
the general class or type of work.

This proposal to the Owmer is irrevocable for a period of nincty (90) days after the date of the bid opening. The
right is reserved by Storey County Piblic Works 10 reject any and all bids, waive irregularitics, informalities, or
non-conformities, or to accept the bids deemed in their best intetest, such as the lowest, responsible, responsive
bid. Contingent items are indicated on the plans and specifications; however, the Owner reserve the right to
modify said contingent items along with non-contingent items. The right to add or delefe ftexns, or change
quantities shown en the bid forms is further reserved by Storey County.

00100-2




BID FORM

Project Identification: 3-Mile Reservoir and Divide Reservoir Lining Project

Storey County Public Works, State of Nevada PWP Number: ST-2014-323

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
Article 1 — Bid Recipient 1
Article 2 - Bidder's Acknowledgements y . e 1
Ariicle 3 - Bidder's Representations 1
Article 4 —Bidder's Certification 2
Article 5—Basis of Bid............. 3
Article 6 ~ Time of Completion 7
Atticle 7 — Attachments to This Bid £
Article 8 - Defined Terms...... &
Article 9 - Bid Submiittal.., )
ARTICLE 1 - BID RECIPIENT
This Bid is submitted to:
Farr West Enginecring
5-Mile Reservoir and Divide Reservoir Lining Project
5442 Longley Lans, Snite A
Reno, Nevada 8951}

101 Theundersigned Bidder proposes and agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to enter into an Agreement with Owner in the form
included in the Bidding Documents to perform all Work as specified or indicated in the Bidding Docwments for the
prices and within the times indigated in this Bid and in accordarice with the other terms and conditions of the Bidding
Documents.

ARTICLE 2~ BIDDER'S ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

201 Bidder accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Instructions to Bidders, inchiding without linmitation those dealing
with the disposition of Bid security, This Bid will remaiit subject to acceplance for 60 days after the Bid opening, or for
such longer pedod of time that Bidder may agree to in writing upon request of Owmer.

ARTICLE 3 - BIDDER’S REPRESENTATIONS
3.61  Insubmitting this Bid, Bidder represents that:

A. Bidder has examined and carefully studied the Bidding Docurents, other related data identified in the Bidding
Documents, and the -folIowi‘ug‘Addeﬂda, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged:

Addendum o,
/

B. Bidder has visited-the Site ard becoms fantiliar Wwith and is satisfied as to the general, local,-and Site conditions that
may affect cost, progress, and performamce of the Work.

"EICDCCA10 Suggested Hid Form for Canstraciion Conracts
Copyright D 2007 Natlonn) Seckery of Professionat Englneers for EFCDC. AY vights reserved
Page 10619




Bidder is familiar with and js satisfied as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, progress, and
performance of the Work.

Bidder has carefully studied all: (1) reporis of explorations and tests of subsurface conditicns at or contignous to
the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site
(except Underground Facilities) that have been identified in SC-4.02 a3 containing refiable "technical data” and @
reports and drawings of Hlazardous Environmental Conditions, if any, at the Site that have been identified in SC-
406 as containing reliable "technical data "

Bidder has considered the information known to Bidder; information commonly known to confraciors doing
business in the locality of the Site; information and observations obtained from visits to the Site; the Bidding
Documents; and the Site-related seports and drawings identified in the Bidding Documents, with respect to the
effect of such information, observations, and documents on (1) the cost, progress, and performance of the Work;
(2) the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by Biddér,
including applying the specific means, methods, fechniques, sequences, and procedures of construction expressly
required by the Bidding Documents; and (3) Bidder’s safety precautions and programs.

Bascd on the information and observations refermed to in Paragraph 3.01.E above, Bidder does not consider that
farther examinations, investigations, explorations, fests, studies, or data are necessary for the determination of this
Bid for performance of the Work at the price(s) bid and within the times required, and in accordance with the other
terms and conditions of the Bidding Docinnents.

Bidder is aware of the genern! nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at the Site that relates to the

. Work as indicated in the Bidding Documents.

Bidder has given Engiﬁeer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that Bidder has
discovered in the Bidding Documents, and the written resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Bidder.

The Bidding Documents are gencrally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions
for the performance of the Work for which this Bid is submitted.

Bidder will submit written svidence of its authority to do business in the State or other jurisdiction where the
Project is located not later tan the date of its execution of the Agreement.

For a Unit Price Bid, the CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the cost of the work and materials ancillary or
necessary to the Bid Irems are included with each appropriate Bid Ytem and that the OWNER will not pay extra for
work and/or materials which are ancillary or necessaty to each Bid Item.

ARTICLE 4 -- BIDDER’S CERTIFICATION

4.01 Bidder certifies that:

A

This Bid is genuine and nt made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed individual or entity and is not
submitted in conformity with any collusive agreement or rules of any group, assdciation, organization, or
corporation;

Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Bidder to submit & false or sham Bid;

C. Bidderhas not solicited or induced any individial or entity to refiain from bidding; and

Bidder has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, colhisive, or coercive practices in eompeting for the Contact. For
the purposes of this Paragraph 4.0LD:

1. “comupt practice” means the offering, piving, receiving, or soliciting of any thing of value lkely to influence
the action of 8 public official in the bidding process;

EICDE C-410 Siggested Bid Fovm for Conshruction Contragls
Copyright © 2007 National Soclety of Professional Enghneers for E¥CDC, AN rights reserved.
Pape2of 10




2. “fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made () to influence the bidding process
to the detriment of Owner, (b) to establish bid prices at arfificial non-competitive levels, or (c) to deprive
Owmer of the benefits of free and open competition;

3. “collusive practice™ means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, with or without the
knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish bid priees at arfifieial, non-competitive levels; and

4. “coercive practic” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons or their property to
influence their participation in the bidding process or affect the execution of the Contract.

ARTICLE 5-BASIS OF BID

Bidder will complete the Work in accordance with the Coniract Documents for the following price(s):

ten anth i HoitFric

1} Mobillzation and Demobilization 1 LS éé" 20009 L5 00, 7

2 | Site Demolition 1 15 [ B5me-md | 45 oo

3 |SteGrading o700 | o | e | i doo.om

4 ¢ Embankment Reconstruction 1,500 - CY 5’ 7D ,f:{ Kop.op .
5 Sidesiope Grading (Reconstruction) | 1,000 'CY_‘ .' o /ﬁﬂD i /0, Lo . U8

6 _|12"DiPipe(inietandOverfiow) | 200 | F § /o | 40 poo.ov

7 jlnletA 1o i st Amae l s n

8 ] 12"x12"x12" Tee o 1 EA } #po0. ) 7 A03.00

9 | 12" GV with Valve box 2 CEA | ALoo. o t & 30000

10 {inletB 1 s oo o0 | of pov. oo
11 _{ Overflow Structure 1 s L pwon | /9 000 v
12 | 12" Dl 45deg Elbow 2 EA Y Zoo.onl L R oro
13 | cutlet Structure 1 15 Biw.ov | 4 App. b
14 { Reservoir Drain (Fitting and GVs) | 15 T S o0 | 5 oo i
15 ferwoeepipe 0000 1 310 ] w | Zseol ds.e3 00
16 | Rip-Rap Drainage Outlet 2 1A mopov| R poe od
17 | Rip-Rap Swale 200 F 1 e | 4 sro.m
18  |Earthenswale | 8% | W4 saee | o s80.m
19 4 Transducer Conduit, Penetration and 1 kS | i A

§ Pull Box_ | fooo0. 00 | /8, 500.0D
. | Transducerwith Wiring and SCADA ‘

i 2{3* _} Integration : A | %5@-@ | Yoma
21§ Life Saving Buoy L3 _EA Jo0on | [ Do, oD
22 Saféty;Ne; . , I3 i EA Zom, 8T g?, 788 . 9D

23 | HOPE 60mil Textured Liner 87000 | sp 0. 95 g4 Lsp.od
24 | Sandbags 138 | sooe A, 290,80

EICDC G410 Snggwted Bid Form for Constriefion Contratts

Copyright © 2007 National Seciety of Professionsl Engineers for EXCDC, Al vights reserved.

Page 3 of i1}




o5+ | Gravel Roadway (4° thick w/ 370 o Lo.g Z: "g A oD
| geotextile) _ 2, gD B .
| 8" Chainfink Fence w/ Barb and Razor :
) 25 i Wire {Remove and Replace) 1‘45_0 LF 4605 g Z 200, B
27 20' Wide Gate (Barb and Razor Wire) 1 IS 3A0 . o A .00
28* | Circulation System . 1 S | Soma. bl 2 s 20
29% s Gendinnsie Gk Bemis #7270 30 | 2y LE® G 408. 80
. . _
{A) 5-mile
Reservoir . O
* Contingent Base Bld ltem Sub-totak: 5?% #0

BIEDe: c-ua'suggmea ,

Copyrigtit © 2007 Nationat Sockety of Professions} Engmaers for ETCDC Altrighis-reservedt.
Page# of 10

31 Moblhzatton and Demobilization 1 S | S58.0 ‘5]..5" 9&0 ﬁ})
32 §'site Demolition _ 1 Vs V/Smb-® | /5 oot
33 {SteGrding 1200 3 & { F3.0p | 37 tow. :fb
34 | Inlet w/6” Bi Pipe 1 s | S¥w.al Sim. 2

35 | Overflow Structure. 1 S {1 peewap V19 omp.op
36} 12" DI Pipe with Elbows {Overflow) 0 V¥ 1 g H 39, 55
37__| Ovtietstructare _ 1t Vs awm! 32me
38 18" HDPEPipe o 130 LF 2w A7) Ny Xy
39 Reservolr Prain {Fitting and GVs) 1 s | Zsmmoom 750D . &b
40 { Rip-Rap Drainage Outlet 2 EA LE00. Ub £ 200, 0D
Transducer Conduit, Penetration and ‘
) byl Box . ! Bl | Lowow
o« 1 Transducer with Wiring and _ ,
e | integration e 1 S 1t /, 50, o>
A3 | MfeSavingBuoy 3. EA L..oorn | 4 S500on
4% { Safety Net | ] A | Jep.op 7000
45 | HDPE 60mif Textured uner [ 57,000 SF 875 0“54 15000
46 | Sandbags o | IR EA STob V7 2D .
47 | Reservoir Perimeter Rrp-Rap N 325 ¢y | ,;;z_ AdL. oD
4q | B Chainlink Fence with Barbed Wire s '
B DT I /B Y54, 00
, 20 Wide, 6' High Gate with Barb Wire | ‘ ' }
L ® | andstn B P AR | 530000
.90 .} 6 Chalnfink Fence 1230 | F #aop 5 4, 3?9,
51 ] Wide, 6'High Gate ; e &




52 | 12' wide, & High Double Gate 1 A | G| Zw.s
53* | &' high Wire Fence 592 LF #4701 A 7 BAL., o
Electrical General Improvements .
* -t
_54 __} {Systemn Connection) ! 15 _ ﬂgfﬁb oD dfj 00 5t
_55% | Electrical Pedestal 2N o 0 0D 0B
1 56* [ Fountain (installed) 15 sjép;m,&é ‘ ﬁé S0t o
57
58
{8) Divide
Reserveir
* Contingent Base Bid ltem Sub-total: § 4479;/ ’/é‘ B

TOTAL BASE BID PRICE (Sub-total 4+B) - 5.7 042, S%L. 0 pwithout alternates)

s Lhefliivin Titnry Torer Tt tnst ot Bundis sy - by Dothuns

In Words

,”GravefRoadwav(t& thlckw/geotextile] 130 | oy ,‘ S0
60 | DG Surface [4" thick w/ geotextile) 300 oy 75 | A4 S00.0
6L

_ 82 —
Divide
Reservoir

Alternate-1:] \ﬁ? é]ﬁ '@

ALTERNATE-1 PRICE - § b, %50, 60 (without alternates)

s ’ﬂ/ﬂrm;@_tuc wze@%@ém.

EJICDC C418 Suggested Bid Form for Constraction Contracts | ‘
‘Copyright © 2007 National Sotiety of Pyuipsdiosnal Engincers for EXCDC, All rights reserved.
Page50f10




85 | Electrical Pull Box 7 225005 | 3 345 ab
66 | Light Pole Standard 8 1B S| S0 B08.00
67 EMMmezﬁvémm e | L3 |\ Zb. ) AT 4v-0p
68 - ' _ _
Divide |
Reservoir | -

Alterndte-2: | 5@ 'ﬁ%'@

ALTERNATE-2 PRICE - 5 ‘jé S¥sT (without alternates)
s Tty u Thabed P el ,ézn,/ Mm

In Words

69 irngation Pipe (15" dia, PVC) B0 | kI P £, 70D O

70 { Irrigation Valve Boxes ] 8 Vea ]l gmpo | slboon

71__ | Irvigation Backflow, HotboxandControls | 1 | 15 | /7sm.ap L4 vpo. 2
72 Jrrigation Drip Systemn 1200 | W | Z, 50 1 3 sp0. 0>

73 }landscaping T waw | & | a5 | Z9%5m

73 { " ¥

75

Bivide
Resetvoir -
Aternate3: | 97 S5

. (without alternatzs)

Al fTel ,erfmgz;:

ALTERNATE-3 PRICE - §

;@,.ém‘a% 5

" In Words —

“RICDC C-310 Suggested BIA Foris For Construétion Cantracts
Copyright © 2007 Nations] Soclety of Professionat Engimeers for EICDC. All riphts reserved.
Pige b of 10




Decorative Light Pole (Installed) 6 A | 28 A, Sev. 6B
1 Floating Dock (nstalled) 1 is | 200000 AL D80. 75
| Stairs {Installed) 1 s A/{/—’gg,a) %_'}6’@'9’3 i
| Rock Wall Repairs 110 LF e 5 25p. 5
- Bench {Instatled) 4 EA 750, 8b | 2 &0 U
' Picnic Table {Instatled) 2 EA | /%m0 A, &eo. b
82 | Trash Cans (installed) ENENEN SIS
8 | i
84
Divide _
Reservoir
Alternate-4: | N é(’f 35&5@
ALTERNATE-¢ PRICE - § . éﬁfa?ﬁz?. o Gwithout alternates)
sy 7 9-*/7/%‘72_@.:)&?%%& f/f:{ggﬁt’. ﬁé;; Aotlees.
In For

PLEASE NOTE: The Owner will award the base bid (Bid Schedule) to the overall lowest responsive bidder excluding
alternates. Contingent Base Bid Items are noted as a warning to the bidder thet if the base bid exceeds the available
funding then those contingent ftems will be removed without consuitation with the Contractor. However, in all cases the
Owmer reserves the right to reject any and all bids and remove items as nceded to meet available fimds,

Uit Prices have been.computed in accordance with Paragraph 11.63.8 of the General Conditions.

Bidder acknowledges that estimated quantities are not guarantesd, and are solely for the purpose of comparison of Bids,
and final payment for all unit pries Bid ftems will be based on actual quantities, determined as provided in the Contract

Documents.

The requirements of Novada Revised Statues (NRS) shall apply to #his project. The BIDDER s responsible for
compliance with afl applicable statues. These statutes include, but are not Hinsdted to:

A NRS 3380117  Quantificativn io receive preferences in bidding.

B. NRS338.020  Howly and daily rate of wages must not be fess than prevailing wage in county.

C NRS 338.080  Exemptions

D, NRS333.141  Bids to include ceriain information conceming subconiractors; requirements for substitution
of named subcontracis.

E. NRS 338147  Award of conitract to contractor who submits best bid.

ARTICLE, § - TIME OF COMPLETION

6.01  Bidder agrees that the Work will be substantially complete and will be completed and ready for final payment in
actordance with Paragraph 14.07 of the General Conditions on or before the dates or within the number of calendar
days indicated in the Agrecment, , )

EJCDC C-410 Sngpestéd Bid Form for Construction Contiacts
Copyright © 2007 Netional Sotiely of Professional Engineers for EYCDC. Al righis reserved.
Page 7ol 10




6.02  Bidder accepts the provisions of the Agreement as to liquidated damages.
ARTICLE 7 - ATTACHMENTS TO THIS BID
701  The foltowing documents are submitted with and made a condition of this Bid:

Required Bid securkty in the form of {Bid Bong (EYCDC No. C-430) or Certified Check (ciele type of security
provided); (0430-1 & -2);

List of Sub Contractors, 5% and 1% (440-1, 2);

List of Suppliers (may be included with List of Sub Contractors);

Contractors Qualifications Stafement with Project Completed & Projects in progress (450-1);

Contractor / Sub Contractor List of Liner Projects and Project References

Evidence of authority 10 do business in the State or jurisdiction of the Project;

Contractor’s License No. (may be combined with another attachment);

Contractors Qualifications Statement with supporting data (450-1);

EQEmEpgor »

FATLURE TO PROVIDE ALL ITEMS IN THIS ARTICLE MAY RESULT IN REJECTION OF THE
BID. : - :

ARTICLE 8 - DEFINED TERMS

801 The terms used in this Bid with initial capital letters have the meanings stated in the Instructions to Bidders, the General
Conditions, and the Supplementary Conditions,

EJCPC €410 Suggested Bid Form for Construction Contracts
Copyright © 2007 Nationat Socitty of Professionsl Enpineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
PageBof10




ARTICLE % -BID SUBMITTAL

9.01

This Bid is submeitted by:
I Bidder is:

An Individuat

Name {typed or printed):

By:

{Individual’s signature)

Doing business as:

A Parnership

A Comporation

Partnership Name:
By:
{Signature of general partner - attach evidence of authority to sign)
Name (typed or printed):
7 - -
Corporation Name: 7 /{ tﬁﬂﬂf %VE;EQ j; (SEAL)
State of Incorporation: /i{‘f AR -
Type (General Business, Professions], Seyvjsg/Lifited Liability): _é.?_{?_ ‘gr;ﬁmfwfff
By: fod / a
evidence of authority fo sigh)
Wame (typed or printed cﬁﬂw /? A‘ﬁ?f"

Title: Vide- %ﬁ'é@m’r’
ORATE

( )
Attest R ( '.‘7 /éd&c’

Date of Qualification to-do bilsiness in _[Seate where Project is Jocated] _is 9 ¢ 1/9%5

EJCDC C-410 Supgested Bid Fosm for Construetion Contracts
Copyright © 2007 National Soclety of Professions? Engizeers for EICDC, Al rights reserved.
Page 9 of 10




PENAL SUM FORM

BID BOND

Any singular reference to Bidder, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable.

BIDDER (Wame and Address): A & K Eaith Mavers, Inc.
12251 Trutkee Canyon Ci.
Sparks, NV 89434

SURETY (Name and Address of Principal Place of Business):  Great American Inswance Company
420 East South Temple, #330

Salt Lake City, UT 84111

OWNER (Namez and Address):  Storey County Public Works
) /o Farr West £ngineering
5442 Longley Lane, Suite A
Renp, NV 89511
BID
Bid Dne Date; 5-18-14
Deseription (Profect Name and Include Locafion},  Fiva Mile Reservolt and Divide Reservoir Lining, Virginia Gity, Nv

BOND
Bond Nomber:  na
Date (Noi later then Bid due date): 31114

Penal sy Fme percent Of al!ached bld $;ut5%vl

oD

Burety and Bidder, intending to be Jepally bound hereby, subject to the terms set Forth below, do each cause this Bid
Bond to be duly execnied by an aunthorized officer, agent, or representative.
Must be af leas) 5% of Bid amount,

BIDDER SURLTY
A& K Earh Movers, e, L {Seal} Greal American surance Company (Seal} ,

Bidder's Naiie srate 55 Suraly*s Name and Corporate Seal

By _ L/()}u MU/

75 gnature . ‘Signature (Attacl@ver of Attomey)

g‘bﬂ“ )4 // i ay Lori Jones
Piint Mame ' Print Name
I/' 5/ é@ﬁ T Altomey—ln—Facl

{Figares)

Tltle A Title ,r-) f
Aitest: @Jﬁ:wé{% /Lw/we/
Signatura
5 , = Agent
Title
Nofe.f Rrehe M@y« ihg any required notice. Provide execution by anp additional pariies,
such s JREE e rﬁ!rféﬂ%r‘ﬁ?ﬁ@?ﬁﬁ oy, 2018 ¢

EICHC C-430-Bid Bond (Penal Sum Form)
Prepared by the Engineers Foint Contract Daruments Commitice.

Papet ol2

s

S e e

Rt I R T TP

SRMLY e A




PENAL SUM FORM

1. Bidder and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, exccutors, administrators, SUCCESSOrs,
and assigns fo pay to Owner upon default of Bidder the penal sum set forth on the face of this Bond. Payment of
the penal sum is the extent of Bidder’s and Surety’s liability. Recovery of such penal sum under the terms of this
Bond shall be Owner’s sole and exclusive remedy upon defauit of Biddet.

2. Default of Bidder shall occur npon the fathwe of Bidder to deliver within the time reqﬁired by the Bidding
Documents (or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owaer) the executed Agreement required by the
Bidding Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents,

3. This obligation shall be nult and void if:

3.1 Owner accepts Bidder's Bid and Bidder delivers within the time required by the Bidding Documents (or
any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agrecment required by the Bidding
Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Detuniesits, or

3.2 All Bids are rejected by Owner, or

3.3 Owner fails 1o issue a Notice of Award to Bidder within the time specified in the Bidding Documenis
(or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Bidder and, if applicable, consented to by Surety when
required by Paragraph 5 hereof).

4. Payment under this Bond will be dve and payable upon default of Bidder and within 30 catendar days after
receipt by Bidder and Surety of written notice of default from Owner, which notice will be given with reasonable
prompiness, identifying this Bond and thie Project and including a stafement of the amount due.

5. Surely waives nolice of any and all defenses based on or arising out of any time extension to issue Notice of
Award agreed to in writing by Owner and Bidder, provided that the total time for issuing Notice of Award
including extensions shall not in the aggregate exceed 120 days from Bid due date without Surety’s written

consent.

6. No suit or action shall be commenced under this Bond prior to 30 calendar days after the notice of default
required In Paragraph 4 above is received by Bidder and Surety and in no case later than one year afler Bid due
date.

7. Any suit or action under this Bond shall be commenced only in a court of competent jurisdiction tocated in
the state in which the Project is located.

8. Nofices required hereunder shall be in writing and sent to Bidder and Surety at their respective addresses
shown on the face of this Bond. Such notices may be sent by personal delivery, commercial courier, or by United

 States Registered or Certified Mail, veturn receipt requested, postage pre-paid, and shall be deemed to be effective

upon receipt by the party concerned.

9. Surety shall cause to be attached to this Bond a current and effoctive Power of Attorney evidencing the
authority of the officer, agenit, or representative who executed this Bond on behalf of Surety to execute, seal, and
deliver such Bond and bind the Surely thershy.

10. This Bond is intended to conform to afl applicable siatutory requirements. Any applicable requirement of any
applicable statute that has been omitfed from this Bond shall be deemed to be included herein as if set forth at
length. If any provision of this Bend conflicts with any applicable statute, then the provision of said statute shall
govern and the remainder of this Bond that is not in conflict therewith sliall continue in full force and effect.

11. The term “Bid” as used herein includes a Bid, offer, or proposal as applicable.

EJCDC C-430 Bid Bond (Penal Sum Form)
Prepared by the Engloecrs Joint Contenct Decuments Comaiitee.
Page2of 2




GREAT AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY®
Administrative Office: 301 E4TH STREET ® CINCINNATI, OHIO 45202 ® 513-369-5000 ® FAX 543-723-2740

The number of persons anthorized by
this power of atterney is not moze than  TOUR
No. o 14717

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALLMEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That the GREAT AMERICAN INSURANCE. COMPANY, acorperation organized and existing nnder
and by virtue of the laws of the State of Qhio, does hereby nominate, constitnte and appoint ihe person or persons named below, sach individually ifmore than
one is named, its trne and lawful attorney-in<fact, for it and in its name, place and stead to execute on behalf of the said Company, as surety, any and ail bonds,
undertakings and coritracts of suretyship, or other writien obfigations in the natore therenf provided that the liability of the said Company on any such bond,
underiaking or contract of sureiyship executed under this authority shall not exceed the limit stated below.

Name Address Limit of Power
LOR! JONES TER! WOOD ALL OE ALL
NICK ROSSE PATRICIA OWENS RENO, NEVADA $100,000,000.00

This Power of Attomey revokes all previous powers issued on behalf of the attomey(s)-in-fact named above.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the GREAT AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY has caused these presenls to be_;s é
officers and its corporate seal herennto affixed this 19TH day of ‘MAR
Attest GREAT AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY
¢ R bl
¥ L
. PR huid
Assistand Secretary Divisional Senfor Vice Prosident

STATE OF OHIO, COUNTY OF HAMILTON - ss: DAVID . KITCHIN {877-377-2405)
On this 19TH day of MARCH , 2014, bofore me personally appeared DAVID €. KITCHIN, to me

known, being duly swom, df:bosm and says that he resides in Cincinnati, Chio, that he is a Divisional Senior Vice President of the Bond Division of Great
American Instrance Company, the Company described in and which executed the above instument; that he knows the seal of the said Company; that the sezl
affixed to the said instrument is such corporate seal; that it was so affixed by authority of his office under the By-Laws of said Compaay, and that he signed his

name thereto by like authority,
Shelfa Clontz
Notary Pubfic, Stio of Ohio céﬁg[&u%%

My Commission Expiies 08092015

This Power of Atiorney is granted by avthority of the following resohmtions adopted by the Board of Directors of Great Amerigan Insurance Company
by unanimous written consemt dated June 9, 2008.

RESOLVED: That the Divisional President, the several Divisional Sentor Vice Presidents, Divisional Viee Presidents aud Divisonal A ssistant Vice
Presidents, or any one of thew, be and hereby is quthorized, from time to time, to appoint one or more Allorneys-In-Fact to execute on behalf of the Compary,
as surety, avy and ail bonds, undertakings and contracts of suretyship, or other written obligations in the rature thereof: to prescribe their respective duties and
the respective limits of their authority; and 1o revoke any such appointment at any time.

RESQLVED FURTHER: Thet the Company seal and the signatwre of any of the aforesaid affivers and any Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the
Company may be affived by facsimile to any power of attorney or certificate of either given for the exacution of any bond, undertaldng, comiract of suretyship,

or other written obligation in the nature theraaf, such signature and seal when so used eing hereby adopted by the Company as the eriginal signature of such
officer and the original seal of the Compary, to be valid and binding upon the Company with the same force and affect as though manally affxed,

CERTIFICATION

I, STEPHEN C. BERAHA, Assistant Secretary of Great American Insnrance Company, do hereby cortify that the foregoing Power of Attorney and
the Resolutions of the Beard of Ditectors of June 9, 2008 Bave not been revaked and are now in full force and effect.

Signed and sealed this ' ka— day of jww , % ‘kf .

. ivf.BM |

Assfstant Secretary

S1029AD {12A13)

ned and attested by jts appropriag
H ., 2014




5% LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS

Each BIDDER shall list below the name of each subcontractor who will provide labor or a portion of the work
or improvement to the contractor for which he will be paid an amount exceeding 5 percent of the prime
contractor’s total bid and the number of the license issued to the subcontractor pursuant to chapter 624 of the
NRS. The general contractor shall aiso Yst himself as performing all remaining work not otherwise
subcontracted that is exceeding 5% of the total bid, A general description of this work shall be listed.

Project Name:; jfﬂd{_é Ié’éfw,( .". éﬂe@fg éﬁ&/@/&, .é//;/z‘??
Bidder Name: /éf ! 7(/5_@7‘;{/7?#?@@% il
BidderAddrwS:__,ﬁgﬂéjf TRYLLEE @m Vs éﬂm A Y T o

Telephone No.;__ (. 775} 5%35_’- /6 36

1. (Descrive all remaining work not otherwise (Remaining | (P rim/e?qrrac 2
subcontracted, see above,) e r;:en;aget of : ﬂ%ﬁb" fjflé
ork 1o
/{MM?’%%/ /ﬂ;"ﬁ subcomtracted:) JARST T K 5 iy &7

T esprrpcrE) Vo - T
| L3381 s
2, : e M
}’Emmff « Lotres a#%// : ‘éﬂm/‘ﬁ/‘éf YA
3 (subcontracior) _ - ]
- ' | " lsitsns Aarisins ar
blappse. T | i, . Asn
D Zis e By henic Few)
B AAE@ ' ?5/ g/ﬂe/c:; ~ H 5 102,
5 (subcontractor)
3 - : (ubcontractor)

7 . 1 5% supplier) // ;’i%g ”
@ﬁfﬁﬁne’ saretial S , ELTBEN Evigpa Ay
a4 T | i gapen

Iy o ; (5% sipplier)

NOTE: Addirional manbered pages may be attached if needed.
3% Suppliers may be included on this or another page.

05/01/01 _ 00440-1




1% LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS

Within 2 hours after the completion of the opening of the bids, the genera) contractors who submitted the three
lowest bids must submit 2 fist of the name of each subcantractor who will provide labor or a portion of the
work or fmprovement to the contractor for which he will be peid an amount exceeding 1 percent of the prime
<ontractor’s total bid or 350,000, whichever is greater, and the number of the license issued to the
subcontractor pursuant to chapter 624 of the NRS, This list may be emaited or faxed to the owner or owner's
representative, or may be snbmitied with the Bid Proposal Form. The general contractor shall also list himself
as performing all remaining work not otherwise subcontracted that is exceeding 1% of the total bid or $50,000,
whichever is greater. A general description of this work shall be listed. :

s I g s sve, et i oo Loning

Bidder Name: /ﬂ .‘X/ Edtry fTovers, 7
Bidder Addsess:, (AAG) 7 ek M L lnequn 573%4 A

------

Telephone No.: [ 77 ) Z),/Z,’J’:/ézé g

3 T . 7
ST % NITRbSE T e

| :,: gf&ﬁfdﬁ reemmm;:jgworkfmr olk n.ﬂse ] perce”ga:g;;:if { 7 %‘ > » Még
] - WOor .

/4 MMJM Uf#fd/ﬁfm subcontracted:} %:’Wﬁ»gfﬂ 7
GUBLoNTRATED T DI Shaakz, A S¢S

L8a8)l|  #auons
Z G =
g;w/&/mj Mz/ / ., 7 ;ézi Dt/

£
3, : ; ﬁaiﬁbéﬂr}ador) '
. : , Digrnins {endSiapa
| /,i;zdéc:@/zw/' | A7 / | /é;’“p»,/t/b’ ?é";;:g%
ry L (?cammctar) S .
. | ) et Suhe Clervand
- Hewri B i Ly A 504y |
- L DBt S
0 En o YA SRS, NV Ayt

6 , Y s
Tomony Llws | M| Sawis A st

7. {subcontractor)

NOTE: Additional mambered pages may be attached if needed.

03/01/01 00449-2




CONTRACTOR'S QUALIFICATIONS STATEMENT
PROJECTS COMPLETED & PROJECTS IN PROGRESS

Name, Location and Design Date _ Reference/Contact
Drescription of Project Owner Engineer Completed ContractPrice  Include Address and
Fhone
D Hrrchd

05/01/01 004906-1




Souihem Novada Clilce Nosiem Nevada Cifice
2310 Corporafe Circle, Soile 200 3670 Gateway Drive, Sufte 100

Herdoron Nevada 5074 STATE CONTRACTORS BOARD Roro, Mot o2t

The Nevada State Contractors Board certifies that

A&K EARFHMQVERS INC
J&WW oaar‘ﬁai

Ltééﬁse“No 0034543

Is duly licensed a}s a cantram;mthe fqllowmg classification(s):

PRINGIPALS: . ; " LIMIT: -
- '-i 5 a-sauﬁmemmﬂa : EXPIRES: B,,",;j.,';;‘?;'
KELLY BART HIATT, Prosident Quatifed In M

MICHARL ANTHOKY HIATT Ve Prasider

SCOTT RAY HIATTVica PresidentQualific

CHRISTIAN SPROSS,Secrstary -

SHARGN JUNE REAM, Treasurer

- thq’j@n Nevada Stafo Contradlors Bogrs”

STATE OF NEVADA STATE OF NEVADA

CONTRACTORY LICENSE -BYTATE CONTRACTORS BECARD
Senn COMPA 9670 Gataway Drive, Suila 108 Reno, Nevada: 85521
Thsis %mmmgfu THE s;ﬁYTEaF 2310 Com:rsteﬁmm%uﬂl: SGD Hmd?rso:v:lemda B9074
-REVADAFOR THE GUASSTICATIONS) SHOVN:
) . POGKET CARD RE-ORDER FORM
A &K EARTH MOVERSING- £IC, NO,
FALLDN NV 82406 Q024548 prle WA e (smoo”i"
EXPIRES: .
Fitm Kama
UM nimited 04302016 e
Classt A
Distor By
A&KEARTHMOVERS INC
SIS WIRBMILL DR
FALLON Y 8406

(NSPO Rov. #-12) {0) 297 w0




P

NEVADA STATE BUSINESS LICENSE

A & K EARTH MOVERS INC.
Nevada Business ldentiicatfon # NV18651001305

Expiration Date: September 30, 2014

I accordance with Title 7 of Nevada Revised Statules, pursuant to praper application duly filed
and payment of appropriate prescribed fees, the above named is hereby granted a Nevada State
Business License for business-activifies conducted within the State of Nevada.

This license shall be-considered valid untll the expiration date listed above unless suspended or
revoked in-accordance with Title 7 of Nevada Revised Statutes.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto y
set my hand and affixed the Great Seal of State, §
at my office on September 5, 2013 T ]

‘ ;a// %:—

ROSS MILLER
Secretary of State

This documant is net ransforabls-and:is-nat issued In lisu of any locally-required business license,
permitor registration.

Pleasy Post in a Conspicuous Logation

You may verify this Nevada Stale Business License
online &t www.nvsos.gov-unterthe Nevada Business Search.




NEVADA STATE CONTRACTORS BOARD

SE/D GATEWAY DRIVE, SUITE 100, REND, NEVADA, 89521 [T75) 683-1841 FAX [775) 508427, IVESTIGATIONS {775) 656-1150
ZUOCORPORATE CIRCLE SUITE 200, HENDERSCH, NEVADA, 3974, £702) 436-1100 FAX (767 4284100, IVESTIZATIONS (707} 2861140

CERTIFICATE OF ELIGIBILITY

PER NRS 338.147 and NRS 338.1389

CERTIFICATE NUMBER: BPRC-00-01-18-0004

A & K EARTH MOVERS INE. (HEREIN THE “SENERAL CONTRAGCTOR”) NEVADA STATE CONTRACTORS®
LICENSE NUMBER: L824548 ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:. 04/08/1987 BUSINESS TYPE: CORPORATION

CLASSIFICATION: A.-GENERAL ENGINEERING MONETARY LICENSE LIMIT: LINLIMITED STATUS: ACTIVE. 15
HERERY ISSUED THIS CERTIFICATE BY THE NEVADA STATE CONTRACTORS' EOARD, BASED UPON THE
INFORMATION CONTAINED N THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH NEVADA REVISED STATUTES (NRS) 338.147
AND NRS 338.1389 AND THE AFFIDAVIT OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT SUBMITTED TO THE NEVADA STATE
CONTRACTORS BOARD AS PROOF OF CONTRACTOR'S COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF NRE 338.147 AND
NRS 338.1338. IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF NRS 338.147(3), THE ABOVE-NAMED GENERAL
CONTRACTOR AND A CERTIFIED PLEBLIC ACCOUNTANY HAVE SUBMITTED FULLY EXECUTED AND NOTFARIZED
SWORN AFFIDAVITS AS PROOF OF PREFERENTIAL BIDDER STATUS, UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY, CERTIFYING
THAT THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR IS QUALIFIED TO RECEIVE A PREFERENCE IN BIDDING AS SET FORTH IN NRS -
338.147 ANE NRS 338.1389 AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO.

THES CERTIFICATE OF ELIGIBILITY IS ISSUED ON MAY 1, 2074 AND EXFIRES ON APRIL 30, 2015, UNLESS
SOONER REVOKED-OR SUSPENDED BY THE NEVADA STATE CONTRACTORS BOARD.

@% m;;z ﬂ (2 /7t
‘NANCY MATHIAS, LICENSING ADMINISTRATOR DATE

FOR MARG!I A. GREIN, EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Nevada Stale Contratoré Board assumes no jlability:or responaibaity for the asguracy of
validity of the Information contalned In the Sontractors Statemtent of Compliance or the Affidavit
of Certified Public Actountantad Proof of Contrattors Compliance with the Provisions of KRS
338.147 and NRS 335.1389. Tho:sbove-named Generzl Cantractor shall béar the responslbiliy to
ascertdin the accuracy and validity of the affidavite provided to support the issuance of this
certificate. -




FARR WEST

ENGINEERING

September 24, 2014

Mike Nevin, Public Works Director
Storey County Public Works

P.O. BOX 435

100 Toll Road

Virginia City, NV 89440

Subject: 5-MILE RESERVOIR AND DIVIDE RESERVOIR LINING, PROJECT
NO. ST-2014-323 - FUNDING LETTER

Dear Mike,

Bids for the 5-Mile Reservoir and Divide Reservoir Project were opened on September 18, 2014
and A&K Earthmovers was determined to be the lowest bidder. Unfortunately, the bid amounts
exceeded the anticipated budget. This letter addresses construction cost and the proposed funding
sources to complete the project.

To reduce overall cost and meet funding objectives items were removed from the Base Bid,
items were adjusted, and all of the four bid alternates were removed from consideration. Under
the scenario presented below the County’s cost of the project will be $880,372.00.

Construction Cost Summary:

Original Base Bid: $1,023,566.00
Items Removed from the Base Bid: :

¢ Item-28 Circulation System -$50,000.00

» Item-47 Reservoir Perimeter Rip-Rap ‘ -$26,000.00

e Item-48 6' Chainlink Fence with Barbed Wire and Slats -$10,452.00

¢ Jtem-53 4’ High Wire Fence -$27,824.00

s Item-56 Fountain (Installed) -$36.,000.00

Bid Items Removed (sub-total): -$150,276.00

Items quantities adjusted in the Base Bid:

¢ Item-46 Sandbags (Increase by 88 sandbags to 202) £1,320.00

e ltem-50; 6° Chainlink Fence (Increase by 134 to 1,364) $5,762.00
Adjustment to the Base Bid (sub-total): $7,082.00

Immediate Change Order to A&K: $-143,194.00

REVISED BASE BID: $880,372.00

5442 LONGLEY LANE, SUITEA » RENO NV 89511 « (775) 851-4788 » FAX (775} 851-0766




Item-46 and Item-50 were adjusted to obtain similar design functionality and create a net cost
savings for the project. In place of the Rip-Rap (Item-47) we added 88 additional sandbag (Item-
46) for anchoring the liner down (one every 10” along the perimeter of the Divide Reservoir);
this has a net cost saving of $24,680.00. Since Item-48 was removed, the quantity of 134 linear
feet of fencing was transferred to Item-50; this has a net cost saving of $4,690.00. The total net
cost saving for adjusting these two bid items is: $29,370.00.

Assuming no construction change orders, the two reservoirs can be constructed within the
Revised Base Bid budget presented above. Since adjustments were made to several Base Bid
items Farr West, under the direction of the County, contacted A&K Earthmovers and discussed
the changes with them. In an email confirmation on September 24, 2014 A&K acknowledged the
total for the 5-Mile site to be $544,450.00 and for the total for the Divide site to be $335,922.00.
Additionally, A&K acknowledged the revised Base Bid of $880.372.00 and can meet that
construction budget.

It is our understanding funding shall be by Storey County for the Base Bid amount. Any amounts
due to Storey County by others shall be obtained by Storey County and applied to the project as
required.

Should you have any questions or need additional information, please contact me at (775) 853-
7264. i :

Sincerely,
Farr West Engineering
A

Chuck Reno, P.E.
Project Manager




FARR WEST

ENGINEERING

September 25, 2014

Mike Nevin, Public Works Director

Storey County Public Works

P.O. BOX 435

100 Toll Road |
Virginia City, NV 89440 |

Subject: 5-MILE RESERVOIR AND DIVIDE RESERVOIR LINING PROJECT
(PROJECT NO. ST-2014-323) - RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD OF
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT '

Dear Mike,

As you are aware, bids for the 5-Mile Reservoir and Divide Reservoir Lining Project were
opened on September 18, 2014 and A&K Barthmovers {A&K) was determined to be the lowest
responsible and responsive bidder. A&K’s bid submittal was reviewed and was found to meet all
project requirements. References were checked and found to be positive; they come
recommended. Furthermore, A&K meets the qualifications presented in Instructions to Bidders,
Article 3, of the contract documents which is to say that together with their subcontractors they
have been engaged in this general class of work and have a history of completing projects
successfully. They and their subcontractors are licensed and bonded in Nevada,

Based on the above information, we recommend the Storey County Commissioners award to
A&K Earthmovers a total amount of $880,372.00 (Base Bid amount of $1,023,566.00 less an
immediate negative Change Order of $-143,194.00). The budget for construction leaves no
money for contingencies. Near the end of the project, if further funds are required, we will
negotiate with A&K and request additional funds be approved by the County Commissioners. As
of now, we do not expect any construction change orders and believe A&K will work with
Storey County Public Works to adequately address any concerns without increase to the

confracted amount.

Should you need any further information, please let me know.

Sincerely, .
Farr West Engineering

/; - - :
R ‘ ) /?
& o e
e B g o <.......,nw-'-="“"’°'"'”'wwm"""'-

-
Chuck Reno, P.E.
Project Manager

5442 LONGLEY LANE, SUITE A » RENQ NV 89511 » (775} 851-4788 « FAX (775) 851-0766




 FARR WEST

STOREY COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS
5-MILE RESERVOIR AND DIVIDE RESERVOIR LINING

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
PWP NO. ST-2014-323

ADDENDUM-1
September 12, 2014

| Bold italic items ave new items or clarifications per this addendum. Verbal statement ov
discussion in the pre-bid meeting, per telephone calls or emails are not permissible within the

| bid if not noted in an approved addendum.

Pre-Bid Meeting
September 11, 2014 10:00am

Pre-bid Meeting Agendd:

1.0 Iniroductions
1.1 Farr West Engineering
1.1.1 Project contacts:
1.1.1.1 Chuck Reno PE, Project Engineer,
chuck@farrwestengineering.com, 775-851-4788
1.2 Storey County Public Works
1.2.1 Mike Nevin, Public Works Director,
mnevin@storeycounty.org, 775-847-0958

2.0  Background
2.1 Project is lining two existing reservoirs from the 1880°. The water at 5-Mile is
~ still the only water supply for Virginia City, Gold Hill and Silver City.

2.2 The 5-Mile Reservoir has not been operational for the past 13 17 years. It holds
raw water from the State run Marlette Water System located west of Carson City.
The reservoir is fed by an inverted siphon system.

2.3 The Divide Reservoir has not been operation for the past year. Water for the
reservoir is fed from the overflow of the existing Divide Tank (treated water).
This project will create an antomatic feed system to the overflow point of the
tank. The Divide Reservoir is to become.a park-like setting.

3.0 Preparation of Bids

5442 LONGLEY LANE, SUITE A « REND NV 89511 » (775) 851-4788 « FAX (775) 851-0766




4.0

5.0

6.0

3.1  Bid Schedule :
3.1.1 Project will be awarded on the Base Bid, The Owner reserves the right to

remove items to meet available funding. Priority of items to be removed
are indicated in the Base Bid as “contingent items .
3.1.2 The Base Bid is separated into two sub-totals for each site. Base Bid runs

through bid Htem-56.
3.2 Submit Bids to Farr West Office up to the hour of 2:00pm, Thursday September
18, 2014, 2:00pm.

3.3 Bids will be opened and read aloud at 2:00pm, Thursday September 18, 2014 at
Farr West Rene Office (5442 Longley Lane, Suite A, Reno NV 89511)

34  Confractors must provide all items outlined in Article 7 (page 00410-5), If all
items ate not fully executed the bid will be rejected.

3.5  Contracts anticipated being awarded at the Tuesday, October 7, 2014 County
Cemmission Meeting, Construction to commence quickly thereafter,

3.6  Imsurance Requirements
3.6.1 Supplementary Conditions (page 0800-2, section 5.04); note additional

 insured requirement (page 0800-3, section 5.06). _

3.7  State prevailing wage rates shall apply if base bid amount is over prevailing wage
rate threshold.

3.8 Contacior shali note: “The Owner reserves the right to reject any and all bids and
remove items as needed to meet available funds.” (Section C-410, page 7)

3.9 Contractor to be aware of Section 01010 “Summary of Work” and Section 01025 .
“Measurement and Payment” of the approved specification and shall congider all
bid items on the information provided in the plans and specs.

Engineer’s Estimate for Project
4.1 $600,000.00 (Base Bid)

Contract Times
5.1 50 80 Calendar days for Substantial Completion (page 0520-1, 4.02) Changed to
80 days per this addendum

3.2 90 Calendar days for Final Completion (page 0520-2, 4.02)
53  Liquidated Damages are $1,200.00 per day (page 0520-2, 4.03)

Supplementary Conditions

6.1  Working Days/Hours — (Morday — Friday) 7:30am to 6:00pm, with extended
hours, if required, to finish a section of work, excepting Holidays. Fer Saturday
work, cantracior must apply to Storey Co. Public Works for permission.
Rain/snow Days and/or fire days shall be approved by Mike Nevin in writing. If
days are not approved in writing and Contractor exceeds contracted calendar days,
CONTRACTOR WILL BE ASSESSED DAILY LIQUIDATED DAMAGES,
NO EXCEPTIONS. There is na limit to working hours and/or working days at
the 5-Mile site. However, scheduling of inspecfions with Public Works staff
shail be coordinated with Mike Nevin. Overtime pay, if any, is the sole
responsibility of the Contractor.




7.0

2.0

6.2

6.3

64

Contractor to be aware there is gated access to the 5-Mile Reservoir Site. Consult
with Storey County Public Work.

Note, Appendix-A of the Project Specifications contain construction
requirements. Contractor to be familiar and follow construction guidelines.
Detailed as-built plans with constmetion photos are required.

Engineer’s Supplementary Coaditions

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Construction schedule and site priorities

7.1.1  Due to possible weather and access concerns to the 5-Mile Reservoir shall
have initial construction priotity. Consult with Owner for waterline
shutdown (Sec 0850-1, 1 & 2)

Quality Control Testing _

7.2.1 Contractor is responsible for all quality contro! testing on materials.
Report testing results to the engineer and Owner.

Permits

7.3.1 Contractor Responsible For
7.3.1.1 Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan {(SWPPP) — not required.
7.3.1.2 County Permit — Required. No Charge.
7.3.1.3 Hot Permit(s) (if required, see section 7.4.5 below)

Existing Utilities '

7.4.1  Lecation of existing utilities on plans are approximate, some are unknown
and some can have shallow bury depths. Contractor will be required to
pothole well ahead of installation of new structures and coordinate with
Storey County Public Works. Contractor will be responsible to call USA
for all utility locations.

7.4.2 Potholes are required 7 days wnin. prior to construction, report afl findings
to the engineer

7.4.3 Contractor to provide certified welders and special inspection for all welds
on the raw waterdine,

744 Waterline shutdown shall be coordinated and limited in duration, consult
with owner. Contractor to provide 48 hour advance request for pipeline
shutdown to Owner.

74.5 Ifneeded, the Contractor shall obtain a “Hot Permit(s)” from the Storey
County Fire Department prior to construction. Permit(s) will require on-
site water fire suppression requirements, defensible space requirements,
requirements during welding operations, etc,

Other Issues

8.1

8.2

83

Construction Water — Contractor is to provide all construction water. Construction

water for the Divide Reservoir is obtained from g metered raw water f station

near the water treatment piant. Water for the 5-Mile site can be obiained from

the existing ARV box (raw water) east of the existin g S-Mile tank. Consult with

Public Works staff for removal of ARV: Contractor to provide connection

fittings.

4-Wheel drive recommended for access to 5-Mile site.

Excess fill material.

8.3.1 Reservoir embankments have consolidated and shall not be disturbed
unless expressly noted on the design plans. Surface restorations shall be




2.0

limited to those areas noted. Do not remove and rebuild embankments

unless noted.

8.3.2 Contractor shall consult with owner for placement of excess material, if
any. Material shall be placed near each site and within the county’s
propezties.

8.3.3 Divide reservoir material may be placed at the southwest fill slope
adjacent to the Public Works maintenance yard storage.

8.34 5-Mile excess fill shall be disposed of, or used, along the east and west
embankments, enlarging the embanlanents if possible (conpact as requied
per the geotechnical report). The east embankment fill may depend on the
reconstruction model employed by the Contractor, per the geotechnical
repott,

84 Supply water line at the 5-Mile reservoir site is along the east slope of the east
embankment. Exact location is unknown. Contractor shall located and protect the

: axigting line:

8.5  Anydamage that is created during the project must be repaired at the contractor’s
expense to the owner’s satisfaction, ) , , _

86  Updated information — Farr West will send out the plan holder’s list and any
addendumms/misc. information via email. Make sure Farr West has the email of
the person that needs to be recéiving this information. REGISTER AT THE
FARR WEST BID ROOM AS AN OFFICIAL PLAN HOLDER TO RECEIVE

8.7  Graphical renderings and a colored plan view (sheet C8) of the Divide Reservoir
have been uploaded to the Farr West Bid Room. We encourage all contractors to
view them to have a better understanding of the project scope and area.

8.8  Staging areas.

8.8.1 To be determined in consultation and by consent of the Owner.

8.9  These “Pre-Bid Meeting” notes/revisions shall be issued as Addumdum-1 along
with any other required clarifications.

Pre-bid site visit
9.1  Owner and Engineer encourage all Contractors fo visit both sites prior to bidding,

9.2 Site visits to follow pre-bid mesting; Divide Reservoir and 5-meil reservoir.

100 Questions?

nestions/clarifications during Pre-Bid meeting:

. Light pole bases may be poured in place and not pre-manufactured. Bases shall meet

design standards of the noted pre-manufuctured bases, see detail E/D8.

. Liner skall be single sided texiure Ener with textured side up.
\ Remindet: NV Surveyor is required to lnyout both sites. Contractor is to provide and

pay for construction staking. See sheet notes on sheet C5 and C8,

. Electrical questions te be addressed via emuail (see emuailed questions aidressed below),
. 1t was pointed out that unless the embankment of the reservoirs are noted to be

removed/modified or reconstructed, they should not be disturbed. There is over 100




Yyears of conselidation. Reconstruction of embankments must follow the geotechnical
report recommendations.

6.

Contractors were concerned of the rock refusal at 5-Mile Reservoir along with the
statement of “spot blasting” as noted in the Geotechnicat Report (see Test Pit-1, see
Geo. Report 5.2.1 General Site Grading). An additional bid item shall be added to

address this item {Sec below),

~ End of Pre-Bid Agenda ~

Additional Rems:

A

Farr West reviewed the bonding requirements noted in 5.01B, Sec 700 of the project
specifications. Because we do not have federal funds on this project the suretles not
listed on the required surety list will not be disqualified from participating in this bid,
All other bonding requirements prescribed in the contract documents shall be followed,

8. Bid Item 29, adil as follows: Add *%” after 29; add “Non Excavatable Rock Removal *s
add “500” and add “C¥Y”
| 29* l Non Excavatable Rock Remaval l 500 , cy l |

Note this bid item is for the additional effort required per the unit price noted in Bid
dtem-3. This should only be employed after reasonable effort as has been exerted to
remove the hardened materinl (see requivements below). The Owner and Engineer
shall be consulted by the Contractor when rock refusal is discovered. Approval must be
given by the Owner before this bid item is executed. This is considered a non-pay bid
item, unless executed and quantified,

Bid Item 29% - Non-Excavatable Rock Removal: Bid item 29 includes, but is not limited
t0; full compensation for furnishing all Inbor, materials, tools, equipment and
incidentals, for doing all the work involved in the delineation, excavation, hydraulic
hammering, drilling and blasting or splitting of rock, protection and repair of existing
improvements, transport af spoils to an approved stockpile area (if required), off-haul
and disposal of rock, and import of removed rock with suitable backfill material,

Rock excavation will be paid for as an vdditional cost above and beyond general
grading cost included as part of Site Grading (Bid Item 3). Cost for removing broken
rock from the site, backfill and compaction for the construction of the reservoir shall
be paid under Bid Item 3. No additional compensation will be allowed.

The Owner will determine when rock excavation is required, In general it will be
assumed that rock excavation is required when n Caterpillar 324 Excavatoy (or
eguivalent) with a ripper tooth either meets refusal due to hardness of the materiol
being excavited. Time spent on Non-Excavatable rock will be documented by the
Owner and added to the Contract Time. No compensation will be made to the




Contractor under this Bid Item if, in the opinion of the Owner, the Contractor is not
providing adequate equipment to complete the work or reasonable effort has not been
made to determine that the reck is “Non-Excavatable”. Rock removed prior to the
Owner’s approval will not be paid for under this bid item.

*This item shall be considered a contingent item. The quantity indicated in the bid
sehedule represents no actual estimate, and may be increased or decreased by 100%
without an adjustment to the bid unit price. The increase or reduction of this quantity,
as compared with that contained in the bid schedule, shall not constitute a basis for
claim by the Contractor for extra payment or changed conditions.

The Contractor’s payment for this item shall be by the cubic yard.

9. Bid Item 63, cross out entire bid item.

| 63 | -Hectwicalonduit(ony [ 1200 | & | |
20. Bid Ité& 64, cross out entire bid item,

|64 | -Blectricatconduitan) | 360 [ ] I
11. Bid Item 67, under Description add “Blectrical Improvements”, under Cuantity add

“I” under Units add “LS” (Contractor to fill in Unit Price and Total).

LElec_trlcallmprovements | 1 [ LS , l

This bid item is added to help better combine the scope of the electrical impravements
and not limit the electrical to set quantitles. This bid item constitutes all of the
requirements names in Section 01025 under bid Iterns 63 and 64. Bid Iiem 67 included
all electrical conduits (wired and spares), trenching, wiring, pull ropes, marking tape,
electvical equipment, equipment imstallation, testing, etc, to make a complete,
operational electrical system.

Electrical Questions freceived viz smatl):

I2,

Q1. Sheet E2 shows a 504 Metered Pedestal but the one-line on sheet E3 shows a

1004. Which one should we go with? '
Al Sheet E2 - Grid F4 — Change 504 Meter main to 1004 , Change 50472 to 1004/2

on the Iine w/ 504/2 Muain CB.

13, G2. Conduits LOZE and LO2F have 6 and 10 #14 wires, respectively, shown on the

14,

conduit and wire list. What are these for?

A2. Sheet E2 -- Grid G5 — Conduit List Fems LO2E and LO2F require only £ #10 wires
and a #16 ground, No #14 wires are required.

Q3. The N9 pull boxes state having an H20 Lid. Is that to be steel or concrete and do
we need an exiension for the pull boxes?

A3, Concrete, boltdown lids. Long sweep elbows are required in and ont of the box.
Therefore, no extensions ure requived. Note all electrical boxes (botk sites) shali have
water proof connections in the pull boxes,




15. Q4. Is the Fountain Penetration Box shown on D7 E, also an N9 box with a similar
lid?
A4, Yes. See detail B/D3. Penetration boxes (both sites) shall have water proof
connections in the pull boxes.

Those present at the pre-bid meeting:

18, See attached sign in sheet.

Existing Plan Holders li.§t:

17, See attached plan holders as of date of this Addendum,

(L

Chuck Reno, P
Farr West Engineering
9-12-14




PRE-BID SIGN {N SHEET

5-Mile Reservmr and Divide Reseworr meg Prolect - PWP NO, §T-2014-323

CONTRACTOR . . CONTACY PERSON cEMAL T - THORE FAX
s ‘ P25 Y
Bat0_const. 'DAfwo‘l seln; RaZ.0constr @Ad.cort | pas-yab% | 963-92p7
: - : .- Eial FE
*|Cormppcd SeoTi” Hamn SEAMEEA @, Corinacs - ooy 324 e | 3t From
. -..s
)| Ak Borns Magees Doer bromn DALAK @ pie GRRIR Moveds. (o '7??,,-;21 7;25;—_,,5-“
: 775
HHo Cagh Te __|EY yin g Conlodiet o antiann (575546 | 5752196
) ﬁg O Cornshonn, ’ J N 7S R
g?f) COm2_ M /(eme., Aiea:ue E, B0 pecshpsetod omps SSZ 607 R k4
cgeny Cgrr,
ADanny Cogns Danry Coony Donni@Coons M2, [F101LéD 276~ 1167
Ry 2 . CReRMSTIC EteeTrze, (775 775
Botge oa . [ BOiiteess B mMR TR st | BISSSR Svi-SsL S
F . . - . 3
Koo Lot D foe Totsis @ Sl Lol e ba)207 (uat | 8350952
| Sl /&/}V - P ssar NP ns . g rey | SrssY |2 onts
e P | e Cors &7 -0766

[wég it mr/@gmgfm FEZ-Feey




PLANHOLDERS LIST
5-Mile and Divide Reservoiur Lining Profect {ST-2014-323)

Ao [Agan [Add-2 [Acd 2
SET# CONTRACTOR CONTACT | PHOMEND, | FAX NO. ADDRESS sert | mad { sont | roud ] i
1_ Hreckeide Blecric o o MmAncrews  |ressatasse frsssarmses | . L L N B
Fl | Ed King 775-245-3555 [775-575-2186 '
3 Nd\ardKalsmaL??S-?S&-OSBS 775-777-2442 |
4 Ryan Momicg{775-432-8977 [175-785:3310 -
& _|0&D Construction, Ine. Jett Bean 778-786-26T7 V7757855136 ,
8 {COMANGO Envirgnmental Gorporalian {Kathy Turbe  18t3-0a8-8890 [513-g8R-a953
7__jcoens Construction b Wes Coons _|775-246-1660 |775-246-2689 :
8 _ A& ¥ torth Movers, Inc. [Tony Awire _ 1776-R25.1538 [775-825-6171
. g, _|SermaGeosynthetic Services Treytarssn  [76-as61300 lrasssesacs i
10 _|Battle Barn Ventures, LLC |Erik Lea 775-910-3034 |775-350-4476
31_|Par Electrie Luke Fray 7753200478 [775.745-4453
2
s
19 :
15
Slorey County Mike Mevin __{715-847.0070 100 Tod Rd., Virginia City, 30 840 oy
Neveda Bhue lPlan Hoom 775-827-4441 9728 8. W; %1, Hong MV 53515 ﬂzﬁl\mmm




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required | |

1. Title: Approval of resolution 14-410 Expressing interest by Storey County in obtaining the
delivery of effluent generated by the Truckee meadows Wastewater Treatment Facility for
use at the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center in Storey County and requesting the City of Reno
and the City of Sparks to consider making available the effluent to be transported in a
pipeline to Storey County '

2. Recommended motion: Approve resolution as presented.

3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten, County Manager
Department: County Manager Telephone: 775 847-0968

4. Staff summary:

5. Supporting materials: Attached resolution.

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—i—
[Ny E—

Agenda Item No. 9




RESOLUTION NO. 14-410

A RESOLUTION EXPRESSING INTEREST BY STOREY COUNTY IN
OBTAINING THE DELIVERY OF EFFLUENT GENERATED BY THE
TRUCKEE MEADOWS WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY FOR USE
AT THE TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER IN STOREY COUNTY AND
REQUESTING THE CITY OF RENO AND THE CITY OF SPARKS TO
CONSIDER MAKING AVAILABLE THE EFFLUENT TO BE TRANSPORTED
IN A PIPELINE TO STOREY COUNTY.

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS, STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

WHEREAS, the Truckee Meadows Wastewater Treatment Facility
(“TMWEF”) located in Washoe County, Nevada currently generates effluent which
is partially disposed of in its reclaimed water system and partially disposed of in
the Truckee River; and o

- WHEREAS, the portion of the effluent disposed of in the Truckee River
degrades the quality of water in the river and might better be utilized to support
and grow economic development in Northern Nevada; and

WHEREAS, the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center (“TRI Center”) is a large
industrial area located in Storey County downstream of TMWF on the Truckee
River approximately 8-10 miles, Nevada with industrial businesses which require,
or will require in the future, large quantities of water suitable for manufacturing
process uses which could be satisfied by TMWF effluent and would not result in
return flow to the Truckee River; and

WHEREAS, in order to utilize the TMWEF effluent which is currently
disposed of in the Truckee River, a pipeline would have to be constructed from
TMWEF to TRI Center, the alignment and costs of which have not yet been
analyzed by Storey County; and

WHEREAS, before commencing a study on the feasibility, alignment,
design, engineering and costs of such a pipeline, Storey County would benefit by a
nonbinding expression of interest by the City of Reno and the City of Sparks, the
joint owners of TMWF, to consider making available the portion of TMWF
effluent currently disposed of in the Truckee River to be transported instead in a




pipeline to TRI Center for disposal, subject to further consideration of project
design and costs.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of
County Commissioners hereby expresses interest in constructing an effluent
pipeline from TMWF to TRI Center, the alignment, design, engineering and costs
of which are to be determined, and requests the City of Reno and the City of
Sparks to consider nonbinding resolutions to make available TMWF effluent to be
transported in the pipeline to TRI Center in Storey County, Nevada.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution shall be effective upon
adoption.

PROPOSED AND ADOPTED this ___dayof 2014,
THOSE VOTING AYE
THOSE VOTING NAY

ADOPTED this day of , 2014,

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY

By:

Marshall McBride, Chairman
Attest:

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk and Treasurer

S:AMaimiTRIStorey County\Resolution re Effluent.doc




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 09/7/14 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: BIA Contract / Agreement

2. Recommended motion  Approve County Manager, Sheriff & District Attorney to enter into
contract for the housing of tribal inmates.

3. Prepared by: Melissa Field
Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary:

5. Supporting materials: See attached BIA Contract.

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
_X__ Department Head Department Name: Gerald Antinoro
S
( AM~Tounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—r—
—_—

Agenda Item No.

\Z




Statement of Work
Bureau of Indian Affairs, Office of Justice Services
Storey County Adult Detention

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS
1.1. General Definitions

1.LII. “BIA-OJS” or “Agency” means the United States Department of the Interior, Bureau of
Indian Affairs (BIA), Office of Justice Services (OJS).

1.1.2.  “District” means the region(s) of BIA-QJS as designated in this contract.
1.1.3. “County” means Storey County, in the State of Nevada, in Virginia City, Nevada.
1.1.4. “Contractor” means Storey County, Virginia City, Nevada.

1.1.5. “Agency’s jurisdiction” means the jurisdiction of the BIA-OJS in the District III
Western Nevada Agency Tribes, to include but not limited to Reno Sparks Indian Colony, Fallon
Shoshone Paiute Tribe, Washoe Tribe, Walker River Indian Colony, Yerington Indian Colony,
Pyramid Lake Indian Colony, Lovelock Indian Colony, Fort McDermitt Indian Colony Indian and
all Reservation(s) and Indian Allotments.

1.1.6.  “BIA-OJS Special Agent In-Charge” means the QJS District III Special Agent-In
Charge (SAC).

1.1.7.  “Indian Country” has the same meaning as that term is defined in Section 1151 of Title
18, United States Code.

1.1.8. “Indian reservation or reservation” means within the exterior boundaries of the
jurisdiction of the Western Nevada Agency, to include but not limited to Reno Sparks Indian
Colony, Fallon Shoshone Paiute Tribe, Washoe Tribe, Walker River Indian Colony, Yerington
Indian Colony, Pyramid Lake Indian Colony, Pyramid Lake Indian Colony, Lovelock Indian
Colony, Fort McDermitt Indian Colony and all Indian Reservation(s) and Indian Allotments.

- 1.1.9.  “Tribal prisoner or tribal inmate” means an adult person arrested under authority of the
respective BIA/OJS, CFR, Tribal Law and Order Codes to include Pilot Project on Domestic
violence under TLOA; or convicted by a tribal court with personal jurisdiction over the offender
and subject matter jurisdiction over the offense for a violation of the Tribal Code, within the
Indian Country/BIA OJS jurisdiction '

Storey County Adult Detentiori
Statement of Work for Adult Detention Services

August 19, 2014
Page 1of 7




1.1.10.  *Tribal violation” means a violation which offends the criminal laws of Tribal Court or
CFR Court having jurisdiction of the arresting agency.

1.1.11. “Juvenile” means any person who has not attained the age of 18.

SECTION 2 - GENERAL INFORMATION

2.1 Scope of Work. The contractor shall provide safe and secure detention/correctional
services in accordance with the specific tasks as outlined in Section 3.

2.1.1.  Purpose. The Contractor will assist the BIA-OJS by providing housing within its
detention facility, for adult individuals who have been arrested and awaiting transport, or
awaiting adjudication, serving sentences and/or awaiting release from custody as a result of
having been arrested, or convicted of tribal violations occurring in Indian Country within the

~ BIA/OJS jurisdiction.

2.2 Contractor Personnel

22.1 The contractor shall designate a qualified facility administrator who shall be responsible
for the performance of the work and on-site.

2.2.1.1. The facility administrator or alternate shall have full authority to act for the contractor
on all contract matters relating to the operation of this contract. :

2.2.1.2. The facility administrator or alternate shall be available to discuss issues relating to the
contract with authorized government officials specific to this contract.

2.2.2.  Contractor Employees. The contractor shall ensure contract employees are qualified
and trained in accordance with facility standards. '

23 Quality Control

2.3.1.  The contractor shall make available any inspection, evaluation or monitoring reports to
BIA-OIJS staff or representatives ‘

24. Quality Assurance

2.4.1.  The government reserves the right to visit or inspect the facility at any time via any
method to ensure adequate services are being provided.

Storey County Adult Detention

Statement of Work for Adult Detention Services
August 19, 2014

Page2of 7




2.5. Cost for services

2.5.1. The cost shall be $55.00 per prisoner per day. For the purpose of computing daily cost
a “day” shall begin at 12:01 a.m. and end the following midnight.

2.5.1.1. Payment will be made for the day of the arrival but not the day of departure.
2.6. Contract Information

2.6.1 Contractor: Gerald Antenoro, Sheriff
911 State Route 341 S.
Virginia City, NV 89440
(775) 847-0959
(775) 847-0924 Fax

1.62  Agency: Joseph Brooks, Special Agent In-Charge
2600 N. Central Avenue
Phoenix, Arizona 85004
(602) 379-6958
(602) 379-6462 Fax

2.7. Period of Performance

2.7.1.  Shall be for the period beginning September 15,2014 and ending September 30, 2019.

Section 3 — SPECIFIC TASKS

3.1. The Contractor will accept tribal persons who have committed violations of tribal
criminal law and who are placed there by the District SAC or their authorized agents. The
Contractor will also fax a weekly roster of inmates in custody Monday by close of business to
(602) 379-6462 or by email to: dorothy.fulton@bia.gov.

3.1.1.  The Contractor agrees to house Tribal inmates subject to the same conditions as any
other person lodged within the facility; including all educational programming and substance
abuse counseling and/or any other programs available. The Contractor’s Detention Facility

policies and procedures shall apply to all inmates held for BIA-OJS and Tribal Agencies.

3.12.  No Bureau or Tribal arrestee/prisoner shall be released without written orders from the
appropriate tribal court.

Storey County Adult Detention -

Statement of Work for Adult Detention Services
August 19, 2014

Page3of7




3.1.3. The Contractor will not accept any person under the age of 18 years for lodging within
the facility.

3.1.4.  The Agency making the arrest shall be responsible for transporting Bureau or Tribal
arrestees/prisoners to the contract detention facility.

3.1.5.  The Contractor will provide transport services on a case by case basis.

3.1.6.  Any unusual incident which affects any Bureau or Tribal inmate/prisoner, held under
this contract is to be reported to District SAC, or designee, within twenty-four (24) hours of its
occurrence, unless the incident resulted in serious injury or medical condition, death, escape,
change of location of the tribal arrestee or prisoner, in such instances the Contractor will notify
Selanhongva McDonald, Assistant Special Agent in-Charge at (602) 379-6958, or Correctional
Specialist, Dorothy Fulton, immediately at (602) 908-7236.

3.1.7.  Bureau or Tribal prisoner(s)/inmate(s), held under this contract are not eligible for
community service without the express written approval of the District SCS.

3.2. Medical

3.2.1. Whenever feasible and practicable, emergency medical, mental or dental needs of
Tribal prisoners, who are enrolled members of a Federally-recognized Tribe, shall be provided by
the Indian Health Service or a tribal health care facility/provider.

3.2.2.  The Contractor shall promptly notify the BIA-OJS District Correctional Specialist (CS),
or designee, of such needs to afford the Agency the opportunity to arrange for the treatment,
General Transportation Services and Medical Transportation to and from any medical unit will
be included in the tiered per diem rate.

3.2.3.  In case of extreme emergency where it is not feasible or practicable to seck BIA-OJS
advice in advance, the Contractor may obtain such care for prisoners at local, Federal, or State
facilities as emergency needs dictate. In such instances the care provider will be advised by the
Contractor to contact the nearest Indian Health Service facility for further instructions and for
claims advice within 72 hours of first furnishing care or treatment.

3.2.3.1. The Contractor shall promptly notify the District CS, or designee, of actions taken when
such emergency circumstances occur.

3.24.  The following are health care facilities closest to the Contractor:

Reno Sparks Indian Health Services

Storey County Adult Deténfion

Statement of Work for Adult Detention Services
August 19, 2014

Pagedof 7




1715 Kuenzli Street

Reno, Nevada 89502
(775) 329-5162 Telephone
(775) 334-4361 FAX

3.2.5.  Incase of extreme emergency only, the following health care facility will be used:

Renown Medial Center (1 mile, Non-IHS)
115 Mill Street

Reno, NV 89502

(775) 982-4100

Or:

St. Marie’s Hospital (1 mile, Non-1HS)
235 W. 6™ Street

Reno, NV 89503

(775) 770-3000

3.2.6. Ininstances where Indian Health Service rejects claims for care provided by a non-
Indian facility and the costs cannot be recovered by the provider under other Federal or State
programs, the Contractor will be billed by the provider.

3.2.7.  BIA-OJS Division of Corrections will only reimburse the Contractor for medical
services if the treatment has been pre-approved by BIA-OJS. BIA-OJS will only reimburse the
contractor and not the actual provider of treatment, for authorized emergency medical, mental
and dental care and medications.

3.2.8. A medical voucher will be prepared in the format as “Attachment A”. Original invoices
from the health care provider must be attached to the medical voucher. Invoices must contain
name and address of vendor, full inmate name, itemized description of services provided, date of
service, cost of inmate’s treatment, and total amount to be reimbursed by BIA-OJS. A statement
certifying the accuracy of the medical voucher shall be placed on the bottom of each medical
voucher by the Contractor’s facility administrator.

3.2.9.  The Contractor will be responsible for obtaining the tribal inmate’s medical records,
provided the inmate has signed a release of information form. The Contractor will provide an
appropriate release of information form signed by the inmate for the medical record inquiries.

3.2.10. The Contractor will be responsible for providing medical screening of the inmate at the
time of booking and the BIA-OJS or Tribal Police Officer, from their respective Agency, shall
provide information regarding any current medical concerns at the time of transportation and

Storey County Adult Detention

Statement of Work for Adult Detention Services
August 19, 2014

Page 5 of 7




booking.
Section 4 - NEGATIVE DECLARATION

4.1. This Statement of Work (SOW) does not reflect, in this or any other context any Party’s
position with respect to the jurisdictional authority of another. Nothing in this SOW, or in any
conduct undertaken pursuant to this SOW, shall be construed as enlarging or diminishing the
jurisdictional authority of either party except to the extent necessary to mplement and effectuate
the provisions of this SOW. Nothing herein affects to any extent, statutory or tribal code
provisions regarding the sovereign immunity of the parties. Neither this SOW nor the activities
of the parties pursuant to this SOW shall be used to affect the legal or equitable position of any
party in any pending or future litigation. Nothing in this SOW shall be construed to impact or
impair the extradition authority and processes of the Parties.

4.1.2. Nothing in this SOW shall be construed as waiving the sovereign immunity of the
County or their employees from suit in State, Tribal or Federal court. Liability for suit in State,
Tribal or Federal court is determined by existing State, Tribal and Federal law and is not altered
by this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement waives the sovereign immunity of the United
States or BIA Police Officers or BIA Correctional Officers, except as provided for in the Federal
Tort Claims Act, 28 U.S.C. §§ 2401, 2671-2680.

Section 5 — BOARD BILL

5.1.  The Contractor will submit, by the tenth day of the month, a board bill for the previous
month’s costs of housing BIA-OJS inmates. Any discrepancies between the invoice and board
bill shall be justified in writing by the contractor.

5.2.1 The monthly board bill is to be submitted through IPP: Electronic invoicing is
authorized for this contract. Under this contract, the following documents are required to be
submitted as an attachment to the IPP Invoice: a detailed monthly invoice of incarnated inmates
with booking date/release dates.

5.2.2. 'The Contractor must use the IPP website to register access and use IPP for submitting
requests for payment. The Contractor Government Business Point of Contact (as listed in CCR) will
receive enrollment instructions via email from the Federal Reserve Bank of Boston (FRBB) within 3
- 5 business days of the contract award date. Contractor assistance with enrollment can be obtained

by contacting the IPP Production Helpdesk via email ippgroup@bos.fib.org or phone (866) 973-
3131

5.2.2.1. If the Contractor is unable to comply with the requirement to use IPP for submitting invoices
for payment, the Contractor must submit a waiver request in writing to the Contracting Officer with
its proposal or quotation.”

" Storey County Adult Detention

Statement of Wark for Adult Detention Services
August 19, 2014
PageGof 7




Section 6 —- HOLD HARMLESS
6.1. The Contractor agrees to hold harmiess the BIA-OJS from:

6.1.1.  Violation of constitutional rights arising from the detention of persons in the Contractor
facility pursuant to this SOW.

6.1.2.  The BIA-OJS and the Contractor agrees to assume its’ own liability for any and all
claims of any nature, including all costs, expenses and attorney’s fees, which may in any
manner, result from or arise out of this Contract.

Section 7 - INDEMNIFICATION, LIABILITY, AND INSURANCE

7.1. The BIA-OJS assumes no liability and will not defend or indemnify for any claims,
judgments, or liabilities by third parties for property damage, personal injury, or civil liability
arising from the actions of the Contractor or its officers, pursuant to this SOW.

7.2. The Contractor assumes no liability and will not defend or indemnify for any claims,
judgments, or liabilities by third parties for property damage, personal injury, or civil liability
arising from the actions of the BIA-OJS.

7.3. Each party shall remain solely responsible for the ordinary expenses of its employees
and property, including insurance.

7.4. The Contractor will at all times maintain insurance coverage to protect the BIA-OJS
from reasonable loss by liability claims arising out of the negligence of Contractor or its agents
or employees in the performance of this SOW.

7.5. Nothing in this SOW is intended to alter the parties’ insurance obligations toward their
employees or others.

Storey County Adult Detention

Statement of Work for Adult Detention Services
August 19, 2014

Page 7 of 7




Statement of Work
Bureau of Indian Affairs, Office of Justice Services
Storey County Adult Detention

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS
1.1, General Definitions

1.1.1.  “BIA-OJS” or “Agency” means the United States Department of the Interior, Bureau of
Indian Affairs (BIA), Office of Justice Services (OJS).

1.1.2.  “District” means the region(s) of BIA-OJS as designated in this contract.
1.1.3. “County” means Storéy County, in the State of Nevada, in Virginia City, Nevada.
1.1.4.  “Contractor” means Storey County, Virginia City, Nevada.

1.1.5.  “Agency’s jurisdiction” means the jurisdiction of the BIA-OJS in the District III

" Western Nevada Agency Tribes, to include but not limited to Reno Sparks Indian Colony, Fallon
Shoshone Paiute Tribe, Washoe Tribe, Walker River Indian Colony, Yerington Indian Colony,
Pyramid Lake Indian Colony, Lovelock Indian Colony, Fort McDermitt Indian Colony Indian and
all Reservation(s) and Indian Allotments.

1.1.6.  “BIA-OJS Special Agent In-Charge” means the OJS District IIl Special Agent-In
Charge (SAC).

1.1.7.  “Indian Country” has the same meaning as that term is defined in Section 1151 of Title
18, United States Code.

1.1.8. “Indian reservation or reservation” means within the exterior boundaries of the
jurisdiction of the Western Nevada Agency, to include but not limited to Reno Sparks Indian
Colony, Fallon Shoshone Paiute Tribe, Washoe Tribe, Walker River Indian Colony, Yerington
Indian Colony, Pyramid Lake Indian Colony, Pyramid Lake Indian Colony, Lovelock Indian
Colony, Fort McDermitt Indian Colony and all Indian Reservation(s) and Indian Allotments.

1.1.9.  “Tribal prisoner or tribal inmate” means an adult person arrested under authority of the
réspective BIA/OJS, CFR, Tribal Law and Order Codes to include Pilot Project on Domestic
violence under TLOA; or convicted by a tribal court with personal jurisdiction over the offender
and subject matter jurisdiction over the offense for a violation of the Tribal Code, within the
Indian Country/BIA OJS jurisdiction

Storey County Adult Detention

Statement of Work for Adult Detention Services

August 19, 2014
Page1of7




1.1.10. “Tribal violation” means a violation which offends the criminal laws of Tribal Court or
CFR Court having jurisdiction of the arresting agency.

1.1.11. “Juvenile” means any person who has not attained the age of 18.

SECTION 2 - GENERAL INFORMATION

2.1 Scope of Work. The contractor shall provide safe and secure detention/correctional
services in accordance with the specific tasks as outlined in Section 3.

2.1.1.  Purpose. The Contractor will assist the BIA-OJS by providing housing within its
detention facility, for adult individuals who have been arrested and awaiting transport, or
awaiting adjudication, serving sentences and/or awaiting release from custody as a result of
having been arrested, or convicted of tribal violations occurring 1n Indian Country within the
BIA/OJS jurisdiction.

2.2 Contractor Personnel

2.2.1  The contractor shall designate a qualified facility administrator who shall be responsible
for the performance of the work and on-site.

2.2.1.1. The facility administrator or alternate shall have full authority to act for the contractor
on all contract matters relating to the operation of this contract.

2.2.1.2. The facility administrator or alternate shall be available to discuss issues relating to the
contract with authorized government officials specific to this contract.

2.2.2.  Contractor Employees. The contractor shall ensure contract employees are qualified
and trained in accordance with facility standards.

23 Quality Control

2.3.1.  The coniractor shall make available any inspection, evaluation or monitoring reports to
BIA-OJS staff or representatives

24, Quality Assurance

24.1.  The government reserves the right to visit or inspect the facility at any time via any
method to ensure adequate services are being provided.

Storey County Adult Detention

Statement of Work for Adult Detention Services
August 19, 2014

Page2of 7




2.5, Cost for services

2.5.1.  The cost shall be $55.00 per prisoner per day. For the purpose of computing daily cost
a “day” shall begin at 12:01 a.m. and end the following midnight.

2.5.1.1. Payment will be made for the day of the arrival but not the day of departure.
2.6. Contract Information

2.6.1 Contractor: Gerald Antenoro, Sheriff
911 State Route 341 S.
Virginia City, NV 89440
(775) 847-0959
(775) 847-0924 Fax

1.6.2  Agency: Joseph Brooks, Special Agent In-Charge
2600 N. Central Avenue
Phoenix, Arizona 85004
(602) 379-6958
(602) 379-6462 Fax

2.7. Period of Performance

2.7.1.  Shall be for the period beginning September 15, 2014 and ending September 30, 2019.

Section 3 — SPECIFIC TASKS

3.1. The Contractor will accept tribal persons who have committed violations of tribal
criminal law and who are placed there by the District SAC or their authorized agents. The
Contractor will also fax a weekly roster of inmates in custody Monday by close of business to
(602) 379-6462 or by email to: dorothy.fulton@bia.gov.

3.1.1.  The Contractor agrees to house Tribal inmates subject to the same conditions as any
other person lodged within the facility; including all educational programming and substance
abuse counseling and/or any other programs available. The Contractor’s Detention Facility
policies and procedures shall apply to all inmates held for BIA-OJS and Tribal Agencies.

3.1.2. No Bureau or Tribal arrestee/prisoner shall be released without written orders from the
appropriate tribal court.

Storey County Adult Detention

Statement of Work for Adult Detention Services
August 19, 2014

Page 3 of 7




3.1.3. The Contractor will not accept any person under the age of 18 years for lodging within
the facility.

3.14.  The Agency making the arrest shall be responsible for transporting Bureau or Tribal
arrestees/prisoners to the contract detention facility.

3.1.5.  The Contractor will provide transport services on a case by case basis.

3.1.6.  Any unusual incident which affects any Bureau or Tribal inmate/prisoner, held under
this contract is to be reported to District SAC, or designee, within twenty-four (24) hours of its’
occurrence, unless the incident resulted in serious injury or medical condition, death, escape,
change of location of the tribal arrestee or prisoner, in such instances the Contractor will notify
Selanhongva McDonald, Assistant Special Agent in-Charge at (602) 379-695 8, or Correctional
Specialist, Dorothy Fulton, immediately at (602) 908-7236.

3.1.7.  Bureau or Tribal prisoner(s)/inmate(s), held under this contract are not eli gible for
community service without the express written approval of the District SCS.

3.2. Medical

3.2.1.  Whenever feasible and practicable, emergency medical, mental or dental needs of
Tribal prisoners, who are enrolled members of a Federally-recognized Tribe, shall be provided by
the Indian Health Service or a tribal health care facility/provider.

3.2.2.  The Contractor shall promptly notify the BIA-OJS District Correctional Specialist (CS),
or designee, of such needs to afford the Agency the opportunity to arrange for the treatment.
General Transportation Services and Medical Transportation to and from any medical unit will
be included in the tiered per diem rate.

3.2.3.  In case of extreme emergency where it is not feasible or practicable to seek BIA-OJS
advice in advance, the Contractor may obtain such care for prisoners at local, Federal, or State
facilities as emergency needs dictate. In such instances the care provider will be advised by the
Contractor to contact the nearest Indian Health Service facility for further instructions and for
claims advice within 72 hours of first furnishing care or treatment.

3.23.1. The Contractor shall promptly notify the District CS, or designee, of actions taken when
such emergency circumstances occur.

3.24. The following are health care facilities closest to the Contractor:

Reno Sparks Indian Health Services

Storey Gounty Aduit Detention

Statement of Work for Adult Detention Services
August 19, 2014

Page4of7




1715 Kuenzli Street
Reno, Nevada 89502
(775) 329-5162 Telephone
(775) 334-4361 FAX

3.2.5.  Incase of extreme emergency only, the following health care facility will be used:

Renown Medial Center (1 mile, Non-IHS)
115 Mill Street

Reno, NV 89502

(775) 982-4100

Or:

St. Marie’s Hospital (1 mile, Non-IHS)
235 W. 6™ Street

Reno, NV 89503

(775) 770-3000

3.2.6. Ininstances where Indian Health Service rejects claims for care provided by a non-
Indian facility and the costs cannot be recovered by the provider under other Federal or State
programs, the Contractor will be bilied by the provider.

3.277. BIA-OJS Division of Corrections will only reimburse the Contractor for medical
services if the treatment has been pre-approved by BIA-OJS. BIA-OIJS will only reimburse the
contractor and not the actual provider of treatment, for authorized emergency medical, mental
and dental care and medications.

3.2.8. A medical voucher will be prepared in the format as “Attachment A”. Original invoices
from the health care provider must be attached to the medical voucher. Invoices must contain
name and address of vendor, full inmate name, itemized description of services provided, date of
service, cost of inmate’s treatment, and total amount to be reimbursed by BIA-OJS. A statement
certifying the accuracy of the medical voucher shall be placed on the bottom of each medical
voucher by the Contractor’s facility administrator.

3.2.9.  The Contractor will be responsible for obtaining the tribal inmate’s medical records,
provided the inmate has signed a release of information form. The Contractor will provide an
appropriate release of information form signed by the inmate for the medical record inquiries.

32.10. The Contractor will be responsible for providing medical screening of the inmate at the
time of booking and the BIA-OJS or Tribal Police Officer, from their respective Agency, shail
provide informatjon regarding any current medical concerns at the time of transportation and

Storey County Adult Detention

Statement of Work for Adult Detention Services
August 19, 2014

Page5of 7




booking.
Section 4 - NEGATIVE DECLARATION

4.1. This Statement of Work (SOW) does not reflect, in this or any other context any Party’s
position with respect fo the jurisdictional authority of another. Nothing in this SOW, or in any
conduct undertaken pursuant to this SOW, shall be construed as enlarging or diminishing the
jurisdictional authority of either party except to the extent necessary to implement and effectuate
the provisions of this SOW. Nothing herein affects to any extent, statutory or tribal code
provisions regarding the sovereign immunity of the parties. Neither this SOW nor the activities
of the parties pursuant to this SOW shall be used to affect the legal or equitable position of any
party in any pending or future litigation. Nothing in this SOW shall be construed to impact or
impair the extradition authority and processes of the Parties.

4.1.2.  Nothing in this SOW shall be construed as waiving the sovereign immunity of the
County or their employees from suit in State, Tribal or Federal court. Liability for suit in State,
Tribal or Federal court is determined by existing State, Tribal and Federal law and is not altered
by this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement waives the sovereign immunity of the United
States or BIA Police Officers or BIA Correctional Officers, except as provided for in the Federal
Tort Claims Act, 28 U.S.C. §§ 2401, 2671-2680.

Section 5 - BOARD BILL

5.1.  The Contractor will submit, by the tenth day of the month, a board bill for the previous
month’s costs of housing BIA-OJS inmates. Any discrepancies between the invoice and board
bill shall be justified in writing by the contractor.

5.2.1 The monthly board bill is to be submitted through IPP: Electronic invoicing is
authorized for this contract. Under this contract, the following documents are required to be
submitted as an attachment to the IPP Invoice: a detailed monthly invoice of incarnated inmates
with booking date/release dates.

5.2.2. The Contractor must use the IPP website to register access and use IPP for submitting
requests for payment. The Contractor Government Business Point of Contact (as listed in CCR) will
receive enrollment instructions via email from the Federal Reserve Bank of Boston (FRBB) within 3
- 5 business days of the contract award date. Contractor assistance with enrollment can be obtained

by contacting the IPP Production Helpdesk via email ippgroup@bos.frb.org or phone (866) 973-
3131,

5.2.2.1. If the Contractor is unable to comply with the requirement to use IPP for subm1ttmg invoices
for payment, the Contractor must submit a waiver request in writing to the Contracting Officer with
its proposal or quotation.”

Storey County Adult Detention

Statement of Work for Adult Detention Services
August 19, 2014

Page6of 7




Section 6 —- HOLD HARMLESS
6.1. The Contractor agrees to hold harmless the BIA-OJS from:

6.1.1.  Violation of constitutional rights arising from the detention of persons in the Contractor
facility pursuant to this SOW.

6.1.2.  The BIA-OJS and the Contractor agrees to assume its” own liability for any and all
claims of any nature, including all costs, expenses and attorney’s fees, which may in any
manner, result from or arise out of this Contract.

Section 7 - INDEMNIFICATION, LIABILITY, AND INSURANCE

7.1. The BIA-OJS assumes no liability and will not defend or indemnify for any claims,
judgments, or liabilities by third parties for property damage, personal injury, or civil liability
arising from the actions of the Contractor or its officers, pursuant to this SOW.

7.2. The Contractor assumes no liability and will not defend or indemnify for any claims,
judgments, or liabilities by third parties for property damage, personal injury, or civil liability
arising from the actions of the BIA-OJS.

7.3. Each party shall remain solely responsible for the ordinary expenses of its employees
and property, including insurance.

7.4, The Contractor will at all times maintain insurance coverage to protect the BIA-OJS
from reasonable loss by liability claims arising out of the negligence of Contractor or its agents
or employees in the performance of this SOW.

7.5. Nothing in this SOW is intended to alter the parties’ insurance obligations toward their
employees or others. '

Storey County Adult Detention

Statement of Work for Adult Detention Services
August 19, 2014

Page 7 of 7




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report '

Meeting date: October 7, 2014 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required | |

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve the first reading of an ordinance amending Storey
County Code section 3.12.012 updating the plan of projects for the proceeds of the infrastructure tax,
and providing for other properly related matters.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve the first reading of Ordinance 14-259 updating the
plan of projects for the proceeds of the infrastructure tax.

3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: The Board on January 21, 2014, approved extending the infrastructure tax and
approved the plan of projects for the Storey County Infrastructure Tax. The Board on February 4,
2014, approved Ordinance 13-251 amending the infrastructure tax, which contains the approved plan
of projects. On September 16, 2014, the Board revised and approved the plan of projects for the
infrastructure tax and certain expenditures. This ordinance will meet the requirement of NRS
3778B.110 that the specific purpose of the funds for which the proceeds of the tax must be expended
be included in a provision of the ordinance by including the newly revised plan of projects.

5. Supporting materials: Ordinance 14-259
6. Fiscal impact: Storey County will be able to spend infrastructure tax funds on approved projects.
7. Legal review required: Yes District Attorney

8. Reviewed by;
Department Head Department Name:

<& R M_~County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e
—_ e

Agenda Item No. | %




Ordinance No. 14-259

Summary

An ordinance amending Storey County Code section 3.12.012 updating the plan of projects
for the proceeds of the infrastructure tax.

Title

An ordinance amending Storey County Code section 3.12.012 updating the
plan of projects for the proceeds of the infrastructure tax,
and providing for other properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:
SECTION I: section 3.12.012 is amended to as follows:

3.12.012 Purpose of infrastructure tax.

The proceeds of the infrastructure tax under NRS 377B may only be expended for the specific
purposes allowed by law. The board has adopted a plan for expenditures out of the Infrastructure
Special Revenue Fund which may include:

Public Works, Water
Replacement Lakeview water line 3,000,000
Five Mile Reservoir 300,000
Divide Reservoir restoration 80,000
Building and Grounds
V & T Depot purchase 600,000
V&T restoration 300,060
Gold Hill Depot restoration 250,000
Court House remodel 250,000
Fire Station #72 purchase 250,000
DA/Sheriff Building purchase 300,000

JustceCourtbuitdins porehase ———————— 450,000

Land Purchases

Gallagher/Clark lot 250,000
Gallagher/Glark Courthouse parking lot renovation 750,000 366:800
Eaton’s lot _ 100,000
Eaton’s lot renovation 160,000
Curtis lot _ ' 100,000

Draft 9-17-14




Community Development

Mark Twain

Flood control 50,000

Community Center 25,0600
Lockwood

Flood control 30,000

Community Center 30,000

Community garden 10,000
TRI

County road repair 500,000

County drainage and erosion 100,000
Commounications

Cassidian Patriot Vesta 180,000
Painted Rock

Bridge repair 25,000

These are not to exceed totals with the possibility of the Board changing the cost estimates and
financing coming from other sources. Fetal-estimatefor-this-plan-1s-57:605:000—

Proposed on , 2014,

by Commissioner

Passed on , 2014,
Vote: Ayes Commissioners
Nays Commissioners

Draft 9-17-14 2




Absent Commissioners

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on

Draft 9-17-14

Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Board of County Commissioners

, 2014,




Storey County Infrastructure Tax Plan of Projects

The Board on January 21, 2014 adopted a plan of projects for expenditures out of the
Infrastructure Special Revenue Fund.

The Board on September 16, 2014 amended the plan to delete the Justice Court building
purchase, change the name of the Gallagher/Clark renovation to the Courthouse parking lot
renovation and change the estimated cost to $750,000, and add a 10-year sunset date of January
20,2024, The Board also approved expenditure of funds for the Five Mile Reservoir restoration,
the Divide Reservoir restoration, the Gallagher/Clark lot purchase, and $21,000 for the
courthouse parking lot renovation. The current projects are:

Public Works, Water Estimated cost
Replacement Lakeview water line 3,000,000
Five Mile Reservoir 300,000
Divide Reservoir restoration 80,000

Building and Grounds

V & T Depot purchase 600,000

V&T restoration 300,000

Gold Hill Depot restoration 250,000

Court House remodel 250,000

Fire Station #72 purchase 250,000

DA/Sheriff Building purchase 300,600
Land Purchases

Gallagher/Clark lot 250,000

Courthouse parking lot renovation 750,000

Eaton’s lot 100,000

Eaton’s lot renovation 100,000

Curtis lot 100,000
Community Development
Mark Twain

Flood control 50,000

Community Center 25,000
Lockwood

Flood control 30,000

Community Center 306,000

Community garden 10,000
TRI

County road repair 500,000

County drainage and erosion 100,000
Communications

Cassidian Patriot Vesta 180,000
Painted Rock

Bridge repair 25,000

These are not to exceed totals with the possibility of the Board changing the cost estimates and
financing coming from other sources. This plan sunsets on January 20, 2024,




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 7, 2014 Estimate of time required: 15-20 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Retired Senior Volunteer Program (RSVP) Update on activities in Storey County
2. Recommended motion: NONE AS THIS IS AN ITEM FOR DISCUSSION ONLY
3. Prepared by: Cherie Nevin

Department: Community Services Telephone: 847-0986

4. Staff summary: RSVP's mission is to provide high impact independent living programs for
low-income and homebound seniors to assist them to remain independent and in their own
homes for as long as possible with dignity. RSVP offers a comprehensive support system to
seniors and disabled persons that provide services. In addition to the independent living
programs, RSVP recruits volunteers to serve community, non-profit organizations, agencies
and institutions such as hospitals, police departments, senior centers, museums; food banks
and more. Storey County has provided funding to RSVP for many years which has allowed
RSVP to continue to provide the assistance needed to seniors in our communities.

5. Supporting materials: Storey County Progress Report from RSVP
6. Fiscal impact: NONE

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
,bé%istrict Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
( >MVf)eparrment Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
"'anty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e
e bt

Agenda Item No. \4




During the reporting period of July 1, 2013 thru June 31, 2014 the Nevada Rural Counties
Retired Senior Volunteer Program (RSVP) provided the direct service programs listed below
to Storey County Seniors and disabled persons 18 and older. During this time frame 35
RSVP volunteers provided 4,257 volunteer hours in Storey County.

» 36 CLIENTS RECEIVED 750 RIDES FOR MEDICAL/SHOPPING, ETC. FROM RSVP
VOLUNTEERS.

» 16 SENIORS RECEIVED 94 HOURS HOME COMPANIONSHIP SERVICES.
> 23 SENIORS RECEIVED 25 HOURS OF RSVP CARE LAW PRO BONO LEGAL ASSISTANCE,

» 30 LOW-INCOME SENIORS RECEIVED FREE FARMERS MARKET COUPONS FOR FRESH
FRUITS & VEGETABLES.

» 14 LIFELINE UNITS WERE PROVIDED TO LOW-INCOME HOMEBOUND SENIORS,
INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS.

» 119 LOW-INCOME HOMEBOUND SENIORS WERE MAINTAINED IN THEIR OWN HOMES BY
RSVP VOLUNTEERS PROVIDING THE INDEPENDENT LIVING SERVICES LISTED HERE.

> RSVP volunteers also give of their time and talents for the good of the communities in which we
serve with assistance to federal, state, local government agencies and other non-profit service
organizations.

RSVP has two Field Representatives in place in Storey County, one working in Virginia City
and the other in the River District community. Although both of our Field Representatives
retired from their positions recently, RSVP performed outreach to fill the positions almost
immediately. Kathy Bray who is working in Virginia City has been with RSVP for several
years and is an experienced Field Representative. Terri Croxton, the new Field
Representative in River District displays great enthusiasm and really wants to expand the
RSVP program in the community. Mike Reynolds, the RSVP Mobility Manager will be working
with Terri on a weekly basis training for transportation as well as assisting her as a Field
Representative.

Several sources of outreach have been performed. Brochures and transportation flyers are
continually distributed throughout the communities, a news release was placed in the paper
as well as an ad for transportation services, Kris Hughes and Susan Haas attended a
Volunteer recognition luncheon in River District, Denise Victorine was visiting the Virginia City
Senior Center weekly, Kathy Bray attended the National Night Out event and had an RSVP
table on display, Susan Haas and Kathy Bray met with Sherriff Mendoza to collaborate about
ways to expand the RSVP program and have another scheduled September 30", Kathy Bray
attended the Fraternal Order of Eagles Meeting and did a presentation on the programs
RSVP offers, while installing a Lifeline unit recently, Kathy Bray also signed the client and
caregiver up for Respite services.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 7, 2014 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Fire Prevention Week Proclamation

2. Recommended motion:
Proclaim October 5-11, 2014 as Fire Prevention Week in Storey County.

3. Prepared by: Cherie Nevin
Department: Community Services Telephone: 847-0986

4, Staff summary:

Fire Prevention Week (FPW) was established to commemorate the Great Chicago Fire, the tragic 1871
conflagration that killed more than 250 people, left 100,000 homeless, destroyed more than 17,400
structures and burned more than 2,000 acres. The fire began on October 8, but continued into and did most
of its damage on October 9, 1871, Virginia City has had similar tragic fires during the same time period. In
1920, President Woodrow Wilson issued the first National Fire Prevention Day proclamation, and since
1922, Fire Prevention Week has been observed on the Sunday through Saturday period in which October 9
falls. Fire Prevention Week is the longest running public health and safety observance on record. This
year’s FPW campaign, "Smoke Alarms Save Lives: Test Yours Every Month," provides an ideal
opportunity to educate the public about the importance of having working smoke alarms and testing them
every month. Storey County is committed to ensuring the safety and security of all those living and visiting
in Storey County and we encourage you to do the same and pass this proclamation declaring Fire
Prevention Week in Storey County.

5. Supporting materials: Proclamation attached
6. Fiscal impact: NONE

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
( ! M rtment Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[1] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e bt

Agenda Item No. 1D




STOREY COUNTY PROCLAMATION IN SUPPORT OF
FIRE PREVENTION WEEK, October 5-11, 2014

WHEREAS, Storey County is committed to ensuring the safety and security of all those living in and visiting in
Storey County,

WHEREAS, fire is a serious public safety concern both locally and nationally, and homes are the locations where
people are at greatest risk from fire; and

WHEREAS, home fires killed more than 2,700 people in the United States in 2013, according to the National Fire
Protection Association (NFPA), and fire departments in the United States responded to 369,500 home fires; and

WHEREAS, working smoke alarms cut the risk of dying in reported home fires in half; and
WHEREAS, three out of five home fire deaths result from fires in properties without working smoke alarms; and
WHEREAS, in one-fifth of all homes with smoke alarms, none were working; and

WHEREAS, when smoke alarms should have operated but did not do so it was usually because batteries were
missing, disconnected, or dead; and

WHEREAS, Storey County residents should install smoke alarms in every sleeping room, outside each separate
sleeping area, and on every level of the home; and

WHEREAS, Storey County residents should install smoke alarms and alert devices that meet the needs of people
who are deaf or hard of hearing; and

WHEREAS, Storey County residents who have planned and practiced a home fire escape plan are more prepared
and will therefore be more likely to survive a fire; and

WHEREAS, Storey County first responders are dedicated to reducing the occurrence of home fires and home fire
injuries through prevention and protection education; and

WHEREAS, Storey County residents are responsive to public education measures and are able to take personal
steps to increase their safety from fire, especially in their homes; and

WHEREAS, the 2014 Fire Prevention Week theme, “Working Smoke Alarms Save Lives: Test Yours Every
Month!” effectively serves to remind us that we need working smoke alarms to give us the time to get out safely.

THEREFORE, Storey County Board of Commissioners do hereby proclaim October 5-11, 2014, as Fire Prevention
Week throughout this county, and I urge all the people of Storey County to test their smoke alarms at least every
month by pushing the test button, and to support the many public safety activities and efforts of fire and emergency
services during Fire Prevention Week 2014.

Passed, approved and adopted this day of , 2014, by Storey County Board of County
Commissioners.
Attest by:
Marshall McBride, Chairman Vanessa Stephens
Storey County Commissioners Storey County Clerk
William Maddox

Storey County District Attorney




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: jO I i | 1Y Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval
2. Recommended motion; Approval
3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to

Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None

District Attorney

Department Name: Community Development

Other agency review:

9. Beard action:
1 Approved
[ Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e ——
o bnsmmaa)

Agenda Ttem No. |l




Storey County Community Debelopment
Buginess

P OBox 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 84?~0§66 + Fax (775) 8470935 » buslic@storeycounty.org

Ticenging

To:

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office September 29, 2014
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the October 7, 2014, COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code

o

requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD

SECOND READINGS
A. INTELLISOURCE, LLC - General / 3200 USA Parkway (HR for Zulily) TRI
B. AMERICAN FAGLE ELECTRIC, INC. — Contractor / 1055 Industrial Way #6 ~ Sparks (Elect Cont)
C. JOHNCO ENTERPRISES — Contractor / 2875 N Escondido Court ~ Reno (Contractor)
D. FRAZIER MASONRY CORP - Contractor / 747 East Ave L8 ~ Lancaster, CA (Contractor)
E. COMSTOCK PAINTING & HANDYMAN - Contractor / 4450 Lousetown ~ VCH (Contractor)
F. TCR CONSTRUCTION, LLC ~ Contractor / 3976 Kentwood Court ~ Reno (Contractor)
G. ARDAGH METAL PACKAGING USA, INC. — General / 900 Waltham Way (can mfg) TRI
H. A-Z WELDING & FABRICATION, LLC ~ General / 1215 Alexandria (welding fab) TRI
L. ROSSCO ENT., dba AP STAINLESS MFG — General / 1215 Alexandria (manufacturing)  TRI

Inspection Required

Shannon Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osbome, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept.
Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Assessor’s Office




